AGENDA



Covid-19 Meeting Notice

To address concerns relating to COVID-19 and to comply with the prohibitions on
gatherings under Santa Barbara County Health Officer Order No. 2020-12.14, this
meeting will be held by remote video conferencing without a physical meeting
location, as authorized by Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20.

Members of the public who wish to observe the meeting and/or offer public
comment by video conferencing should contact the District at least 4 hours
before the meeting at (805) 967-4519 or RMangus @GoletaSanitary.org to obtain
the meeting ID and passcode.

Members of the public with disabilities who wish to request a reasonable
modification or accommodation to observe the meeting and/or offer public
comment should contact the District at least 8 hours before the meeting at the
foregoing telephone number or email address for instructions on how to access
the meeting.



AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT
A PUBLIC AGENCY

One William Moffett Place
Goleta, California 93117

December 7, 2020
CALL TO ORDER: 6:30 p.m.
ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS
BOARD MEMBERS: Sharon Rose
Jerry D. Smith
Steven T. Majoewsky

George W. Emerson
Edward Fuller

CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING

The Board will consider approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November
16, 2020.

PUBLIC COMMENTS - Members of the public may address the Board on items within
the jurisdiction of the Board.

POSTING OF AGENDA — The agenda notice for this meeting was posted at the main
gate of the Goleta Sanitary District and on the District’s web site 72 hours in advance of
the meeting.

BUSINESS:

1. CONSIDERATION AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 92 REGULATING
THE USE OF THE GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT SEWERAGE SYSTEM
AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 77
(Board may take action on this item.)

2. STATUS REPORT OF 2020 PRE-WINTER STORM PREPARATION
ACTIVITIES

3. CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF PURCHASE OF NEW 4-INCH
PORTABLE TRASH PUMP WITH SOUND ATTENUATED ENCLOSURE
(Board may take action on this item.)



Regular Meeting Agenda
December 7, 2020
Page 2

4. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

5. LEGAL COUNSEL'S REPORT

6. COMMITTEE/DIRECTOR'S REPORTS AND APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF
DIRECTOR’S ACTIVITIES

7. PRESIDENT'S REPORT
8. ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS

9. CORRESPONDENCE
(The Board will consider correspondence received by and sent by the District since
the last Board Meeting.)

10. APPROVAL OF BOARD COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES AND
RATIFICATION OF CLAIMS PAID BY THE DISTRICT
(The Board will be asked to ratify claims.)

ADJOURNMENT

Any public records which are distributed less than 72 hours prior to this meeting to all, or a majority of all, of
the District’s Board members in connection with any agenda item (other than closed sessions) will be
available for public inspection at the time of such distribution at the District’'s office located at One William
Moffett Place, Goleta, California 93117.

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2020\Agenda Items 2020\Agenda\2020-12-07 Agenda.doc



file:///\\gsdserv10\governance\BOARD\AGENDA%202020\Agenda%20Items%202020\Agenda\2020-12-07%20Agenda.doc

MINUTES



MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT

A PUBLIC AGENCY

DISTRICT OFFICE CONFERENCE ROOM
ONE WILLIAM MOFFETT PLACE

CALL TO ORDER:

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:

OTHERS PRESENT:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

POSTING OF AGENDA:

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

BUSINESS:

GOLETA, CALIFORNIA 93117

November 16, 2020

President Rose called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

Sharon Rose, Robert O. Wageneck, Jerry D. Smith,
Steven T. Majoewsky, George W. Emerson

None

Steve Wagner, General Manager/District Engineer, Rob
Mangus, Finance and Human Resources Manager/Board
Secretary and Richard Battles, Legal Counsel from Howell
Moore & Gough LLP.

Tom Evans, Director, Goleta Water District

Director Smith made a motion, seconded by Director
Wageneck, to approve the minutes of the Regular Board
meeting of 11/02/20. The motion carried by the following
vote:

(20/11/2141)

AYES: 5 Rose, Wageneck, Smith, Majoewsky
Emerson

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

The agenda notice for this meeting was posted at the
main gate of the Goleta Sanitary District and on the
District’'s website 72 hours in advance of the meeting.

None

1. CONSIDERATION OF AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR GSD 2020 CCTVI PROJECT

Mr. Wagner gave the staff report.

Director Smith made a motion, seconded by Director Majoewsky to waive the $3.07
discrepancy and authorize the General Manager to execute a professional services
contract in the form of addendum to proposal with National Plant Services for the GSD

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2020\Minutes 2020\2020-11-16 Regular Minutes.docx



Regular Meeting Minutes
November 16, 2020
Page 2

2020 CCTVI Project in an amount not to exceed $372,570 and also authorize the
General Manager to approve contract change orders as needed up to an amount not to
exceed 5% of the contract amount or $18,628.

The motion carried by the following vote:

(20/11/2142)

AYES: 5 Rose, Wageneck, Smith, Majoewsky, Emerson
NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

2. CONSIDERATION OF AGREEMENT WITH FILIPPIN ENGINEERING, INC. FOR
PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES ON THE GSD 2020
CCTVI PROJECT
Mr. Wagner gave the staff report.

Director Wageneck made a motion, seconded by Director Emerson to authorize the
General Manager execute a professional services contract in the form of addendum to
proposal with Filippin Engineering, Inc. for project management services in the amount of
$17,640 for GSD 2020 CCTVI Project.

The motion carried by the following vote:

(20/11/2143)

AYES: 5 Rose, Wageneck, Smith, Majoewsky, Emerson
NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

3. REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION OF DESIGN AND ENGINEERING SERVICES
PROPOSAL FOR BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY STRATEGIC PLAN PHASE 1
IMPROVEMENTS
Mr. Wagner gave the staff report.

Director Wageneck made a motion, seconded by Director Majoewsky to authorize the
General Manager execute a professional services contract in the form of addendum to
proposal with Hazen & Sayer for the Biosolids and Energy Strategic Plan Phase 1
Improvements, Tasks 1-6 in the amount of $917,500.

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2020\Minutes 2020\2020-11-16 Regular Minutes.docx



Regular Meeting Minutes
November 16, 2020
Page 3

The motion carried by the following vote:

(20/11/2144)

AYES: 5 Rose, Wageneck, Smith, Majoewsky, Emerson
NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

4. GENERAL MANAGER'’S REPORT
Mr. Wagner gave the report.

5. LEGAL COUNSEL'S REPORT
Mr. Battles reported that the Supreme Court has de-published and granted review of a
recent case whereby the California Court of Appeal clarified the standard by which a
public agency’s at-large voting system will be deemed to violate the California Voting
Rights Act, having the potential to significantly impact California Voting Rights litigation.

6. COMMITTEE/DIRECTORS’ REPORTS AND APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF
DIRECTORS’ ACTIVITIES

Director Majoewsky — Reported on the Goleta West Sanitary District meeting he
attended via Zoom.

Director Emerson — No report.

Director Smith — Reported that most of the business items covered were the topic of the
Engineering Committee meeting he attended.

Director Wageneck — Gave a brief update on the lighting projects he is involved with and
that he attended the Engineering Committee meeting, too.

7. PRESIDENT'S REPORT
President Rose — Read her part two of the Goleta Water District report from October and
updated on the November meeting. She also updated the Board on the Local Chapter of
CSDA issues and events.

8. ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS
No Board action was taken to return with an item.

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2020\Minutes 2020\2020-11-16 Regular Minutes.docx



Regular Meeting Minutes
November 16, 2020
Page 4

9.

CORRESPONDENCE
The Board reviewed and discussed the list of correspondence to and from the District in
the agenda.

10. APPROVAL OF BOARD COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES AND RATIFICATION OF
CLAIMS PAID BY THE DISTRICT
Director Majoewsky made a motion, seconded by Director Smith, to ratify and approve
the claims, for the period 11/03/20 to 11/16/20 as follows:
Running Expense Fund #4640 $ 342,255.64
Depreciation Replacement Reserve Fund #4655 $ 31,054.59
The motion carried by the following vote:
(20/11/2145)
AYES: 5 Rose, Wageneck, Smith, Majoewsky, Emerson
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None
ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:02 p.m.

Sharon Rose Robert O. Mangus, Jr.
Governing Board President Governing Board Secretary
Robert O. Wageneck Jerry D. Smith

Steven T. Majoewsky George W. Emerson

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2020\Minutes 2020\2020-11-16 Regular Minutes.docx



AGENDA ITEM #1



AGENDA ITEM: 1

MEETING DATE: December 7, 2020

NATURE OF ITEM

Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 92 Regulating the Use of the
Goleta Sanitary District Sewerage System and repealing Ordinance No. 77

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The District's Sewer Use Ordinance (SUO) No. 77 governs the use of the
District’'s sewerage facilities in accordance with various state and federal statutes
and regulations. The SUO is revised from time to time in response to changes in
legislative and/or regulatory requirements as well as physical changes to the
District's Water Resource Recovery Facility (WRRF). Completion of the WRRF
upgrade in 2012, along with revisions to the District’s National Pollution
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit and changing influent
characteristics, triggered a technical re-evaluation of the District’s local limits
along with other revisions to the District's SUO.

In March of 2018, the District hired RvL & Associates (RvL) to conduct a
technically-based evaluation of the District’s local limits (TBLL) and to review the
SUO for recommended changes. This effort has been completed and RvL'’s
recommendations have been reviewed by District staff and legal counsel. District
staff prepared draft Ordinance No. 92 to incorporate the changes recommended
by RvL, as well as other revisions which staff deemed appropriate based on
regulatory changes and other factors. The District also solicited input from its
industrial users with respect to the proposed changes to the existing SUO. A
meeting with the interested Industrial Users was held on November 16, 2020. No
substantive issues were raised during the meeting but a few minor corrections
were identified and incorporated into the attached final draft version of the
proposal SUO.

COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The proposed revisions to the District's SUO based on the TBLL and regulatory
changes include the following:

e Maodifications to the local limit allocation approach to protect the WRRF

e Revisions to the existing local limits along with the addition of new
constituents

e Additional requirements for backflow prevention facilities

e Changes to wastewater discharge permit classifications to facilitate expanded
control of non-residential wastewater discharge

e Additional enforcement actions



¢ Prohibition of alkaline hydrolysis
e Updates to definitions, prohibitions, timeframes and/or deadlines

A revised draft SUO is attached to this report along with a redlined version of the
existing SUO that tracks the proposed changes. It is recommended that the
Board adopt Ordinance No. 92, subject to any revisions that the Board deems

appropriate.
REFERENCE MATERIAL

Draft Ordinance No. 92 Regulating the Use of the Goleta Sanitary District
Sewerage System (clean and redlined versions)



ORDINANCE NO. 92

ORDER OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT
ADOPTING AN ORDINANCE AND GENERAL REGULATION REGULATING THE USE
OF THE GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT SEWERAGE SYSTEM AND REPEALING

ORDINANCE NO. 77

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Goleta Sanitary District of the County of Santa

Barbara, State of California, that the following ordinance and general regulation be adopted:



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1 — GENERAL PROVISIONS

11
1.2
1.3
1.4

Purpose and Policy
Administration
Abbreviations

Definitions

Section 2 — PUBLIC SEWERS REQUIRED

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5
2.6
2.7
2.8
2.9

Introduction

Sanitation

Wastewater

Buildings

Compliance with Notice

Private System

Exemption

Private System Failures

Waiver of 200-foot Requirement

Section 3 - BUILDING SEWERS and CONNECTIONS

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5
3.6
3.7
3.8
3.9
3.10
3.11

Introduction

Connection Permission

Connection to Main

Costs

Separate Laterals

Use of Existing Lateral by New Building
Specifications

Back Water Valve — Back Flow Preventor
Compliance with Standards

Classes of Service

Capacity Fee

Section 4 — GENERAL SEWER USE REQUIREMENTS

4.1
4.2

Prohibited Discharge Standards
National Categorical Pretreatment Standards

1



4.3  State Pretreatment Standards
4.4  Local Limits

45  District’s Right of Revision
4.6  Dilution

4.7  Bypass Definitions

4.8  Bypass Prohibited

4.9  Bypass Notifications

Section 5 - PRETREATMENT OF WASTEWATER

5.1 Pretreatment Facilities

5.2 Additional Pretreatment Measures
5.3  Accidental Discharge/Slug Discharge Control Plans
5.4 Trucked or Hauled Wastewater

5.5  Pollution Prevention, Waste Minimization, Recycling, and Treatment

Section 6 — INDIVIDUAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMITS
6.1  Wastewater Analysis

6.2 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Requirement

6.3 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permitting: Existing Connections
6.4 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permitting: New Connections
6.5 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Application Contents

6.6  Application Signatories and Certifications

6.7 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Decisions

6.8 Industrial Wastewater Discharge Permit Classifications

Section 7 — INDIVIDUAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT ISSUANCE
7.1  Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Duration

7.2 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Contents
7.3 Permit Modification

7.4 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer
7.5 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Revocation
7.6 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Reissuance

7.7 Regulation of Waste Received from Other Jurisdictions



Section 8 — REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

8.1  Baseline Monitoring Reports

8.2  Compliance Schedule Progress Reports

8.3  Reports on Compliance with Categorical Pretreatment Standard Deadline
8.4  Periodic Compliance Reports

8.5  Reports of Changed Conditions

8.6  Reports of Potential Problems

8.7  Reports from Unpermitted Users

8.8  Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling and Reporting

8.9  Discharge of Hazardous Waste - Notification of Unintentional Discharge
8.10 Analytical Requirements

8.11 Sample Collection

8.12 Date of Receipt of Reports

8.13 Recordkeeping

8.14  Certification Statements

Section 9 — COMPLIANCE MONITORING
9.1 Right of Entry: Inspection and Sampling

9.2 Inspection Warrants

Section 10 - CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Section 11 - PUBLICATION OF USERS IN SIGNIFICANT NONCOMPLIANCE

Section 12 — ADMINISTRATIVE ENFORCEMENT REMEDIES
12.1 Notification of Violation

12.2  Consent Orders

12.3  Show Cause Hearing

12.4  Compliance Orders

12,5 Cease and Desist Orders
12.6  Administrative Penalties
12.7 Emergency Suspensions
12.8 Termination of Discharge



Section 13 — JUDICIAL ENFORCEMENT REMEDIES

131
13.2
13.3
13.4

Injunctive Relief
Civil Penalties
Criminal Prosecution

Remedies Nonexclusive

Section 14 — SUPPLEMENTAL ENFORCEMENT ACTION

141
14.2
143

Payment of Outstanding Fees and Penalties
Public Nuisances

Performance Bonds

Section 15 — AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES TO DISCHARGE VIOLATIONS

Section 16 — MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

16.1
16.2
16.3
16.4
16.5

Pretreatment Charges and Fees
Severability

Publication

Effective Date

Repeal of Prior Ordinance



SECTION 1 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Purpose and Policy

This ordinance sets forth uniform requirements for Users of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works of the
Goleta Sanitary District (the District) and enables the District to comply with all applicable State and
Federal laws, including the Clean Water Act (33 United States Code section 1251 et seq.) and the General
Pretreatment Regulations (Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations Part 403).

The objectives of this ordinance are:

A. To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the Publicly Owned Treatment Works, POTW,
that will interfere with its operation;

B. To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the Publicly Owned Treatment Works that will
pass through the Publicly Owned Treatment Works, inadequately treated, into receiving waters, or
otherwise be incompatible with the Publicly Owned Treatment Works;

C. To protect both (i) Publicly Owned Treatment Works personnel who may be affected by
wastewater and sludge in the course of their employment and (ii) the general public;

D. To promote reuse and recycling of wastewater and sludge from the Publicly Owned Treatment
Works; and

E. To enable the District to comply with its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
permit conditions, sludge use and disposal requirements, and any other Federal or State laws to
which the Publicly Owned Treatment Works is subject.

This ordinance (i) shall apply to all Users of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works; (ii) authorizes the
issuance of individual wastewater discharge permits; (iii) provides for monitoring, compliance, and
enforcement activities; (iv)establishes administrative review procedures; and (v) requires User reporting.

1.2 Administration

Except as otherwise provided herein, the Manager shall administer, implement, and enforce the provisions
of this ordinance. Any powers granted to or duties imposed upon the Manager may be delegated by the
Manager to other duly authorized District employees.

1.3 Abbreviations
The following abbreviations, when used in this ordinance, District permits, reports and/or correspondence
shall have the designated meanings:

BOD — Biochemical Oxygen Demand

BMP — Best Management Practice

BMR — Baseline Monitoring Report

CFR — Code of Federal Regulations

CIU — Categorical Industrial User

EPA — U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
ERP — Enforcement Response Plan

FOG — Fats, Oil & Grease

FSE — Food Service Establishment

GPD — gallons per day

IU — Industrial User

MAHL — Maximum Allowable Headworks Loading

mg/L — milligrams per liter

NOV — Notice of Violation

NPDES — National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System

POTW — Publicly Owned Treatment Works
RCRA — Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
SIU — Significant Industrial User

SNC - Significant Non-compliance

TDS — Total Dissolved Solids

TSS — Total Suspended Solids

ug/L — micrograms per liter

U.S.C. — United States Code



1.4 Definitions
Unless a provision explicitly states otherwise, the following terms and phrases, as used in this ordinance,
District permits, reports and/or correspondence shall have the meanings hereinafter designated.

A. Act or the Act. The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known as the Clean Water Act, as amended,
33 U.S.C. section 1251 et seq.

B. Administrative Penalty. A civil penalty (monies) for violating any portion(s) of this ordinance or the User’s
permit.

C. Approval Authority. The California Regional Water Quality Control Board Central Coast Region.

D. Authorized or Duly Authorized Representative of the User.

(1) If the User is a corporation:

(a) The president, secretary, treasurer, or a vice-president of the corporation in charge of a principal
business function, or any other person who performs similar policy or decision-making functions for the
corporation; or

(b) The manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating facilities, provided the manager
is authorized to make management decisions that govern the operation of the regulated facility including
having the explicit or implicit duty of making major capital investment recommendations, and initiate and
direct other comprehensive measures to assure long-term environmental compliance with environmental
laws and regulations; can ensure that the necessary systems are established or actions taken to gather
complete and accurate information for individual wastewater discharge permit requirements; and where
authority to sign documents has been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate
procedures.

(2) If the User is a partnership or sole proprietorship: a general partner or proprietor, respectively.

(3) If the User is a Federal, State, or local governmental facility: a director or highest official appointed or
designated to oversee the operation and performance of the activities of the government facility, or their
designee.

(4) The individuals described in paragraphs 1 through 3, above, may designate a Duly Authorized
Representative if the authorization is in writing, the authorization specifies the individual or position
responsible for the overall operation of the facility from which the discharge originates or having overall
responsibility for environmental matters for the company or facility, and the written authorization is
submitted to the District.

E. Biochemical Oxygen Demand or BOD. The quantity of oxygen utilized in the biochemical oxidation of
organic matter under standard laboratory procedures for five (5) days at 20 degrees centigrade, usually
expressed as a concentration (e.g., mg/l).

F. Best Management Practices or BMPs. Schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, maintenance
procedures, and other management practices to implement the prohibitions listed in Section 4.1 A and B of this
ordinance [40 CFR 403.5(a)(1) and (b)]. BMPs include treatment requirements, operating procedures, and
practices to control plant site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw materials
storage. BMPs also include alternative means (i.e., management plans) of complying with, or in place of certain
established categorical Pretreatment Standards and effluent limits.




G. Cateqgorical Pretreatment Standard or Categorical Standard. Any regulation containing pollutant
discharge limits promulgated by EPA in accordance with sections 307(b) and (c) of the Act (33 U.S.C. section
1317) that apply to a specific category of Users and that appear in 40 CFR Chapter I, Subchapter N, Parts 405-471.

H. Categorical Industrial User. An Industrial User subject to a categorical Pretreatment Standard or
Categorical Standard.

I. Chemical Oxygen Demand. A measure of the oxygen required to oxidize all compounds, both organic and
inorganic, in water.

J.  Control Authority. The Goleta Sanitary District.

K. Daily Maximum. The arithmetic average of all effluent samples for a pollutant collected during a calendar
day.

L. Daily Maximum Limit. The maximum allowable discharge limit of a pollutant during a calendar day.
Where Daily Maximum Limits are expressed in units of mass, the daily discharge is the total mass discharged
over the course of the day. Where Daily Maximum Limits are expressed in terms of a concentration, the daily
discharge is the arithmetic average measurement of the pollutant concentration derived from all measurements
taken that day.

M. District. The Goleta Sanitary District or the Governing Board of the Goleta Sanitary District.

N. Enforcement Response Plan. A plan including detailed procedures indicating how the District will
investigate and respond to instances of noncompliant discharge.

O. Environmental Protection Agency or EPA. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency or, where
appropriate, the Regional Water Management Division Director, the Regional Administrator, or other duly
authorized official of said agency.

P. Eguivalent Residential Unit. The annual wastewater treatment plant capacity allocation for one single
family residence used to calculate sewer use fees based on the industrial user category.

Q. Existing Source. Any source of discharge that is not a “New Source.”

R. Grab Sample. A sample that is taken from a wastestream without regard to the flow in the wastestream and
over a period of time not to exceed fifteen (15) minutes.

S. Gravity Separation Interceptor. A tank or basin in which wastewater is held for a period of time during
which the heavier solids settle to the bottom and the lighter materials float to the water surface. Gravity
Separation Interceptor shall also mean a settling tank or sedimentation basin that is designed to treat the
Pollutant(s) of concern.

T. Grease Interceptor. A plumbing device designed to separate and retain most fats, oils, grease and solids,
excluding sanitary wastes, before entering the public sewer collection system.

U. Hazardous Waste. A waste that meets any of the criteria for identification of a Hazardous Waste adopted
by any Federal or State agency, whichever criteria is most stringent.

V. Hexane Extractable Material (HEM). Material extracted by hexane using EPA procedure 1664 or as
modified by EPA or found by EPA to be equivalent. The HEM represents polar and non-polar organic oil and
grease compounds, often referred to as oil and grease.

W. Indirect Discharge or Discharge. The introduction of pollutants into the POTW from any nondomestic
source.




X. Infectious Waste. Wastes which contain pathogenic organisms that can invade the tissues of the body and
cause disease.

Y. Instantaneous Limit. The maximum concentration of a pollutant allowed to be discharged at any time,
determined from the analysis of any discrete or composited sample collected, independent of the industrial flow
rate and the duration of the sampling event.

Z. Interference. A discharge that, alone or in conjunction with a discharge or discharges from other sources,
inhibits or disrupts the POTW, its treatment processes or operations or its sludge processes, use or disposal and
therefore is a cause of a violation of the District’s NPDES permit or of the prevention of sewage sludge use or
disposal in compliance with any of the following statutory/regulatory provisions or permits issued thereunder, or
any more stringent State or local regulations: section 405 of the Act; the Solid Waste Disposal Act, including
Title Il commonly referred to as the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA); any State regulations
contained in any State sludge management plan prepared pursuant to Subtitle D of the Solid Waste Disposal Act;
the Clean Air Act; the Toxic Substances Control Act; and the Marine Protection, Research, and Sanctuaries Act.

AA. Local Limits. Specific discharge limits developed and enforced by the District upon industrial or
commercial facilities to implement the general and specific discharge prohibitions listed in 40 CFR 403.5(a)(1)
and (b), as set forth in Section 4.4 of this ordinance.

BB. Manager. The person designated by the District to supervise the operation of the POTW, and who is charged
with certain duties and responsibilities by this ordinance. The term also means a Duly Authorized Representative
of the Manager.

CC. Lower Explosive Limit. The point where the concentration of a gas in air is sufficient to result in an
explosion if an ignition source is present.

DD. Medical Waste. Isolation wastes, infectious agents, human blood and blood products, pathological wastes,
sharps, body parts, contaminated bedding, surgical wastes, potentially contaminated laboratory wastes, and
dialysis wastes.

EE. Monthly Average. The sum of all “daily discharges” measured during a calendar month divided by the
number of “daily discharges” measured during that month.

FF.Monthly Average Limit. The highest allowable average of “daily discharges” over a calendar month,
calculated as the sum of all “daily discharges” measured during a calendar month divided by the number of “daily
discharges” measured during that month.

GG. New Source.

(1) Any building, structure, facility, or installation from which there is (or may be) a discharge of pollutants, the
construction of which commenced after the publication of proposed Pretreatment Standards under section 307(c)
of the Act that will be applicable to such source if such Standards are thereafter promulgated in accordance with
that section, provided that:

(a) The building, structure, facility, or installation is constructed at a site at which no other source is located;
or

(b) The building, structure, facility, or installation totally replaces the process or production equipment that
causes the discharge of pollutants at an Existing Source; or

(c) The production or wastewater generating processes of the building, structure, facility, or installation are
substantially independent of an Existing Source at the same site. In determining whether these are
substantially independent, factors such as the extent to which the new facility is integrated with the existing
plant, and the extent to which the new facility is engaged in the same general type of activity as the EXisting
Source, should be considered.



(2) Construction on a site at which an Existing Source is located results in a modification rather than a New
Source if the construction does not create a new building, structure, facility, or installation meeting the criteria
of Section (1)(b) or (c) above but otherwise alters, replaces, or adds to existing process or production
equipment.

(3) Construction of a New Source as defined under this paragraph has commenced if the owner or operator has:
(a) Begun, or caused to begin, as part of a continuous onsite construction program

(i) any placement, assembly, or installation of facilities or equipment; or

(i) significant site preparation work including clearing, excavation, or removal of existing
buildings, structures, or facilities which is necessary for the placement, assembly, or installation
of new source facilities or equipment; or

(b) Entered into a binding contractual obligation for the purchase of facilities or equipment which is
intended to be used in its operation within a reasonable time. Options to purchase or contracts which can be
terminated or modified without substantial loss, and contracts for feasibility, engineering, and design studies
do not constitute a contractual obligation under this paragraph.

HH. NPDES Permit. A National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit, which is the regulatory
document issued by the State of California as authorized by the EPA.

I1. Noncontact Cooling Water. Water used for cooling that does not come into direct contact with any raw
material, intermediate product, waste product, or finished product.

JJ. Outside Contributor. Another municipality, governmental agency or User located outside the District’s
direct jurisdiction that contributes wastewater to the District’s treatment facility and/or POTW.

KK. Pass Through. A discharge which exits the POTW into waters of the United States in quantities or
concentrations which, alone or in conjunction with a discharge or discharges from other sources, is a cause of a
violation of any requirement of the District’s NPDES permit, including an increase in the magnitude or duration
of a violation.

LL. Person. Any individual, partnership, copartnership, firm, company, corporation, association, joint stock
company, trust, estate, governmental entity, or any other legal entity; or their legal representatives, agents, or
assigns. This definition includes all Federal, State, and local governmental entities.

MM. pH. A measure of the acidity or alkalinity of a solution, expressed in standard units.

NN. Pollutant. Dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, filter backwash, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge,
munitions, Medical Wastes, chemical wastes, biological materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or
discarded equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt, municipal, agricultural and industrial wastes, and certain
characteristics of wastewater (e.g., pH, temperature, TDS, TSS, turbidity, color, BOD, chemical oxygen demand
toxicity, chlorides or odor).

0OO. Pretreatment. The reduction of the amount of pollutants, the elimination of pollutants, or the alteration of
the nature of pollutant properties in wastewater prior to, or in lieu of, introducing such pollutants into the POTW.
This reduction or alteration can be obtained by physical, chemical, or biological processes, except bacterial
enzymes; by process changes; or by other means, except by diluting the concentration of the pollutants unless
allowed by an applicable Pretreatment Standard.

PP. Pretreatment Requirements. Any substantive or procedural requirement related to pretreatment imposed
on a User, other than a Pretreatment Standard.

QQ. Pretreatment Standards or Standards. Pretreatment Standards shall mean prohibited discharge standards,
categorical Pretreatment Standards, Local Limits and any regulation containing pollutant discharge limits
promulgated by the EPA in accordance with Section 307(b) and (c) et seq. of the Act which applies to industrial

9




users. These include “categorical standards” which establish specific concentration limits for certain pollutants
and total prohibitions of other pollutants as specified in 40 CFR 403 et seq., as well as Local Limits adopted by
the District including, but not limited to, those discharge limitations contained in this ordinance.

RR. Prohibited Discharge Standards or Prohibited Discharges. Absolute prohibitions against the discharge
of certain substances; these prohibitions appear in Section 4.1 of this ordinance.

SS. Publicly Owned Treatment Works or POTW. A treatment works, as defined by section 212 of the Act

(33 U.S.C. section 1292), which is owned by the District. This definition includes any devices or systems used
in the collection, storage, treatment, recycling, and reclamation of sewage or industrial wastes of a liquid nature
and any conveyances, which convey wastewater to a treatment plant.

TT. RCRA. Resource Conservation and Recovery Act which is defined in 42 U.S.C. 6901 et seq.

UU. Sampling Manhole. A structure provided at the user’s expense for the District or user to measure and
record wastewater constituent mass, concentrations, collect a representative sample, or provide access to plug or
terminate the discharge.

VV. Secondary Containment. A second barrier or an outer wall of a double enclosure, which is designed to
contain any leak or spill from a storage container.

WW. Septic Tank Waste. Any sewage from holding tanks such as vessels, chemical toilets, campers, trailers,
and septic tanks.

XX. Sewage. Human excrement and gray water (household showers, dishwashing operations, etc.).

YY. Significant Industrial User (SIU).

A Significant Industrial User is:
(1) An Industrial User subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards; or
(2) An Industrial User that:

(a) Discharges an average of twenty-five thousand (25,000) gallons per day or more of process
wastewater to the POTW (excluding sanitary, noncontact cooling and boiler blowdown wastewater);

(b) Contributes a process wastestream which makes up five (5) percent or more of the average dry
weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the POTW treatment plant; or

(c) Is designated as such by the District on the basis that it has a reasonable potential for adversely
affecting the POTW’s operation or for violating any Pretreatment Standard or Requirement.

ZZ. Slug Load or Slug Discharge. Any discharge at a flow rate or concentration, which could cause a violation
of the prohibited discharge standards in Section 4.1 of this ordinance. A Slug Discharge is any Discharge of a
non-routine, episodic nature, including but not limited to an accidental spill or a non-customary batch Discharge,
which has a reasonable potential to cause Interference or Pass Through, or in any other way violate the POTW’s
regulations, Local Limits or Permit conditions.

aaa. Slug Discharge Control Plan. A plan designed to prevent the uncontrolled discharge of raw pollutants into
the POTW.

bbb. Storm Water. Any flow occurring during or following any form of natural precipitation, and resulting from
such precipitation, including snowmelt.

ccc. Total Suspended Solids or Suspended Solids. The total suspended matter that floats on the surface of, or
is suspended in, water, wastewater, or other liquid, and that is removable by laboratory filtering.

10



ddd. Toxic Pollutant. Pollutants or combination of Pollutants, including disease-causing agents, which after
discharge and upon exposure, ingestion, inhalation, or assimilation into any organism either directly from the
environment or indirectly by ingestion through the food chain, will, on the basis of information available to the
Administrator of the EPA, cause death, disease, behavioral abnormalities, cancer, genetic mutations, physiological
malfunctions, or malfunctions in reproduction or physical deformations in such organisms or their offspring. Such
Pollutants that have been identified as toxic are listed in 40 CFR 122, Appendix D.

eee. Twenty-five percent (25%) Rule. Requirement for grease interceptors to be maintained such that the
combined FOG and solids accumulation does not exceed 25% of the design hydraulic depth of the grease
interceptor. This is to ensure that the minimum hydraulic retention time and required available hydraulic volume
is maintained to effectively intercept and retain FOG so it is not discharged to the public sewer collection system.

fff. User or Industrial User. A source of indirect discharge.

ggg. Wastewater. Liquid and water-carried industrial wastes and sewage from residential dwellings, commercial
buildings, industrial and manufacturing facilities, and institutions, whether treated or untreated, which are
contributed to the POTW.

hhh. Wastewater Treatment Plant or Treatment Plant. That portion of the POTW which is designed to
provide treatment of municipal sewage and industrial waste.

SECTION 2 - PUBLIC SEWERS REQUIRED

2.1 Introduction
This Section 2 is applicable only to areas within the boundaries of the District.

2.2  Sanitation

No person shall place, deposit, or discharge or permit to be placed, deposited, or discharged in an unsanitary
manner upon public or private property within the District, any human or animal excrement, garbage, or other
objectionable waste.

2.3 Wastewater
No person shall discharge or permit to be discharged any sewage to any natural outlet within the District.

2.4  Buildings

The owners of all houses, buildings, or properties used for human occupancy, employment, recreation, or other
purposes and located within two hundred (200) feet of a public street, alley, or right-of-way where a public sewer
exists or is installed in the future shall within ninety (90) days after date of written notice to do so, at such owner’s
expense, install suitable toilets and sanitary facilities in said houses, buildings, or properties situated within the
District and connect such facilities to a public sewer, except where said houses, buildings, or properties are
separated from the public sewer by U.S. Highway 101, a railway right-of-way, watercourse, lagoon, or other
natural barrier.

2.5  Compliance with Notice
It shall be unlawful for any person to maintain within the District any privy, cesspool, septic tank, or other facility
for disposal of sewage ninety (90) days after the date of written notice provided for in Section 2.4 of this ordinance.

2.6 Private System

It shall be unlawful for any person to construct within the District any privy, cesspool, septic tank, or other facility
for disposal of sewage within two hundred (200) feet of a public street, alley, or right-of-way where a public sewer
exists at the time of such construction, except where said houses, buildings, or properties are separated from the
public sewer by U.S. Highway 101, a railway right-of-way, watercourse, lagoon, or other natural barrier.

11



2.7 Exemption
Where public sewers are not available within two hundred (200) feet of a house, building, or property situated
within the District, the owner may install facilities for disposal of sewage temporarily until public sewers are
extended to within two hundred (200) feet of said house, building, or property; provided that any such facilities
shall meet the standards of and be approved by the Health Departments of the County of Santa Barbara and the
State of California.

2.8  Private System Failures

In the event any owner of any house, building, property used for human occupancy, employment, recreation, or
other purpose situated within the District, receives notice from the District or the Health Department of the County
of Santa Barbara that any privy, cesspool, septic tank, or other facility for disposal of sewage is not operating to
the satisfaction of the District or said Health Department, then, and in that event such owner shall, if public sewers
are not available within two hundred (200) feet of said house, building, or property immediately repair said privy,
cesspool, septic tank, or other facility for disposal of sewage to the satisfaction of the District and the Health
Department of the County of Santa Barbara. If not so repaired, any use of said facilities shall be unlawful.

2.9  Waiver of 200-foot Requirement

The Governing Board of the District may at its sole discretion, by minute order of said Board, approve an
exemption given to any facility meeting the conditions of Section 2.7 of this ordinance even after a public sewer
is installed within the 200-foot zone.

SECTION 3 - BUILDING SEWERS AND CONNECTIONS

3.1 Introduction
This Section 3 is applicable only to areas within the boundaries of the District.

3.2 Connection Permission
No unauthorized person shall uncover, make any connections with or openings into, use, alter, or disturb any
public sewer or appurtenance thereof without first obtaining a written permit from the Manager.

3.3 Connection to Main

All connections to the public sewer shall be made at the WYE branch where possible, and by workmen
experienced and competent in making such connections. In the event it is not possible to make a connection at a
WYE branch, then the connection shall be made in the manner prescribed by the Manager. The property owner is
responsible for maintaining the building sewer from the building up to and including the WYE connection.

3.4  Costs

All costs and expenses incident to the installation, connection, and maintenance thereof, of the building sewer
shall be borne by the owner. The owner shall indemnify the District from any loss or damage that may directly
or indirectly arise from the installation or maintenance of the building sewer.

3.5  Separate Laterals

A separate and independent building sewer shall be provided for every building; except where one building stands
at the rear of another on the same lot and is under the same ownership, the building sewer from the front building
may be extended to the rear building and the whole considered as one building sewer, as in the case of a guest
cottage or apartment. Prior to the approval of a subdivision or lot split, the owner of the property shall make
provision for the installation of a separate building sewer for each lot. Each lot shall be separately and
independently connected to the District sewer facilities.

3.6 Use of Existing Lateral by New Building
Existing building sewers may be used in connection with new buildings only when they are found on examination
and test by the Manager to meet all requirements of this Section 3.

12



3.7 Specifications

The building sewer shall be a suitable material permitted in the current edition of the District’s Standard
Specifications for Design and Construction of Sanitary Sewers. Joints shall be tight and waterproof. Any part of
the building sewer that is located within ten (10) feet of a water service pipe shall be constructed of cast iron soil
pipe with coupling joints or as allowed by the California Plumbing Code, current edition. All sewers shall be
constructed in accordance to and in compliance with the current edition of the District’s Specifications for Design
and Construction of Sanitary Sewers.

3.8 Back Water Valve — Back Flow Preventor

In every building where the floor elevation is lower than the manhole rim elevation of the upstream manhole
to the connection for the building, the property owner shall be responsible for, and shall make provision for
the installation, maintenance and repair of a back-water valve to prevent the flow of sewage from the main
line into the building through the lateral.

3.9  Compliance with Standards

In every building hereafter erected within the limits of the District, all plumbing fixtures shall conform to the
provisions of the ordinances and codes of the City of Goleta, County of Santa Barbara, State of California,
applying thereto.

3.10 Classes of Service

There shall be four (4) classes of building sewer connection permits: (1) residential, (2) commercial
establishments, (3) establishments producing industrial wastes, and (4) institutional facilities. In all cases, the
owner or his agent shall make application on a special form furnished by the District. The permit application
shall be supplemented by plans, specifications, and other information considered pertinent in the judgment of the
Manager. A permit and inspection fee for each connection to the sewer lines of the District shall be paid to the
District at the time the application is filed.

3.11 Capacity Fee

A wastewater capacity fee shall be paid by each User as established from time to time by the District to cover the
cost of providing capacity in the POTW. The wastewater capacity fee shall be payable prior to the time a new
User commences a use of the POTW. The District will calculate the wastewater capacity fee in accordance with
Capacity Ordinance(s), as said ordinances may be amended, replaced or superseded in the future.

SECTION 4 - GENERAL SEWER USE REQUIREMENTS

4.1 Prohibited Discharge Standards

A. General Prohibitions. No User shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the POTW any pollutant or
wastewater which causes Pass Through or Interference. These general prohibitions apply to all Users of the
POTW whether or not they are subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards or any other National, State, or local
Pretreatment Standards or Requirements.

B. Specific Prohibitions. No User shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the POTW the following
pollutants, substances, or wastewater:

(1) Explosive Mixtures. Liquids, solids or gases which by reason of their nature or quantity are, or may
be, sufficient either alone or by interaction with other substances to cause fire or explosion or be injurious
in any other way to the sewerage facilities or to the operation of the system, in accordance with 40 CFR
403.5(b)(1); and Pollutants which create a fire or explosive hazard in the POTW, including, but not limited
to, wastestreams with a closed-cup flashpoint of less than 140 degrees F (60 degrees C) using the test
methods specified in 40 CFR 261.21. Prohibited materials may include, but are not limited to: gasoline,

13




kerosene, naphtha, benzene, toluene, xylene, ethers, alcohols, ketones, aldehydes, peroxides, chlorates,
perchlorates, bromates, carbides, hydrides, sulfides or any other substances which the District, the State or
EPA has notified the user is a fire hazard or a hazard to the system;

(2) Corrosive Wastes. Wastewater having a pH less than 6.0 or more than 11, or otherwise causing
corrosive structural damage to the POTW or equipment. Prohibited materials include, but are not limited to,
acids, caustics, sulfides, concentrated chloride and fluoride compounds, and substances which will react
with water to form acidic products.

(3) Solid or Viscous Wastes. Solid or viscous substances which will or may cause obstruction to the flow
in a sewer, or otherwise interfere with the proper operation of the wastewater treatment system, but in no
case solids greater than one-half (1/2) inch in any dimension. Prohibited materials may include, but are not
limited to, grease, uncomminuted garbage, animal guts or tissues, paunch manure, bones, hair, hides or
fleshings, entrails, whole blood, feathers, ashes, cinders, sand, spent lime, stone or marble dust, polishing
compounds, resin beads, metal, glass, straw, shavings, grass clippings, rags, spent grains, spent hops, waste
paper, wood, plastic, tar, asphalt residues, residues from refining or processing of fuel or lubricating oil, and
similar substances;

(4) Excessive Discharge Rate.

a. Hydraulic: A rate of flow which results from the averaging of the flow rates over a period of 15
consecutive minutes and which is greater than five (5) times the twenty-four (24) hour total volume
expressed in million gallons per day (MGD) shall be considered excessive.

b. Loadings: Those concentrations of pollutants such as toxics, BOD’s, suspended solids, grease and
oil, and other constituents, which in a grab sample are greater by a factor of five (5) than the average 24-
hour concentration allowed in the Industrial Wastewater Discharge Permit or that concentration
permitted in the effluent of the treatment plant to the ocean. Any greater concentration will be considered
as excessive.

c. Interference: Under no conditions shall any pollutant, including oxygen-demanding pollutants
(BOD, etc.), be released in a discharge at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which, either singly
or by interaction with other pollutants, will cause Interference with the POTW.

d. Unpolluted waters: Any unpolluted waters including, but not limited to storm water, surface water,
ground water, artesian well water, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, swimming pool drainage,
condensate, deionized water, noncontact (once through) cooling water, and unpolluted wastewater which
will increase the hydraulic load on the POTW, unless specifically authorized by the Manager.

(5) Heat. Wastewater having a temperature greater than 120 degrees F (49 degrees C), or which will inhibit
biological activity in the treatment plant resulting in Interference, but in no case heat in wastewater
quantities which causes the temperature at the introduction into the treatment plant to exceed 104 degrees F
(40 degrees C);

(6) Eats, Oils and Grease.

a. Oil and grease concentrations or amounts from industrial facilities violating federal pretreatment
standards, or local standards, whichever is more stringent.

b. Wastewater from industrial facilities containing floatable fats, wax, grease or oils.

c. Wax, grease, non-biodegradable cutting oil, or oil concentration of mineral or petroleum origin (non-
living sources) of more than 100 mg/L whether emulsified or not, or containing substances which may
solidify or become viscous at temperatures between 32 and 150 degrees F (0 and 65 C) at the point of
discharge into the system or in amounts that will cause Interference or Pass Through.

d. Total fat, wax, grease, or oil concentration of animal or vegetable origin (living sources) of more than
100 mg/L, whether emulsified or not, or containing substances which may solidify or become viscous at
temperatures between 32- and 150-degrees F (0 and 65 C) at the point of discharge into the system or in
amounts that will cause interference or pass through.

14




e. No additives may be introduced into a wastewater system for the purpose of emulsifying FOG or
biologically/chemically treating FOG for remediation or as a supplement to interceptor maintenance,
unless specific written authorization from the District is obtained. To ensure that the minimum hydraulic
retention time and required available hydraulic volume is maintained to effectively intercept and retain
FOG so it is not discharged to the District’s wastewater collection system, pretreatment interceptors shall
be maintained such that the combined FOG and solids accumulation does not exceed 25% of the design
hydraulic depth of the interceptor; All FOG pretreatment interceptors shall be maintained in accordance
with the Twenty-five percent (25%) Rule.

(7) Toxic Substances. Any pollutants which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors, or fumes within
the POTW in a quantity that may cause acute worker health and safety problems;

(8) Nuisance. Any waste which will cause, threaten to cause, or is capable of causing either alone or by
interaction with other substances a detrimental environmental impact or a nuisance in the waters of the state
or a condition unacceptable to any public agency having regulatory jurisdiction over the District.

(9) Trucked or Hauled Waste. Any trucked or hauled pollutants are prohibited, except at discharge points
designated by the District;

(10) Noxious Material. Noxious or malodorous liquids, gases, solids, or other wastewater which, either
singly or by interaction with other wastes, are sufficient to create a public nuisance or a hazard to life, or to
prevent entry into the sewers for maintenance or repair;

(11) Discolored Materials. Wastewater which imparts color which cannot be removed by the treatment
process, such as, but not limited to, dye wastes and vegetable tanning solutions, which consequently causes
or threatens to cause a violation of the District’s NPDES permit;

(12) Shredded Garbage. Garbage that has not been ground or comminuted to such a degree that all
particles will be carried freely in suspension under flow conditions normally prevailing the public sewers,
with no particle greater than one-half (1/2) inch in any dimension;

(13) Radioactive Wastes. Radioactive wastes or isotopes are not to exceed limits specified in Sections
30285 and 30287 of the California Administrative Code;

(14) Reclamation or Reuse. Any waste which will cause, threaten to cause, or is capable of causing either
alone or by interaction with other substances the District’s effluent or any other product of the treatment
process, residues, sludges, or scum to be unsuitable for reclamation and reuse or to interfere with the
reclamation process;

(15) Industrial Residues. Sludges, screenings, or other residues from the pretreatment of industrial
wastes;

(16) Medical/Infectious Wastes, except as specifically authorized by the Manager in an individual
wastewater discharge permit;

(17) Foaming Agents: Detergents, surface-active agents, or other substances which that might cause
excessive foaming in the POTW,

(18) Perchloroethylene: Perchloroethylene and its derivatives and like compounds (collectively, “PCE”),
including, but not limited to, chemicals and/or solvents used in the dry-cleaning process, by automobile and
mechanical repair facilities and other industries, where such chemicals and/or solvents contain PCE. Any

15



discharge containing PCE shall be subject to the same concentration limitations that apply to drinking water
within the jurisdiction where the User is located;

(19) Volatile Organic Compounds: Volatile organic compounds found in petroleum derivatives such as
gasoline and diesel fuel, including, but not limited to, benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene and xylenes
(collectively “VOCs”). Any discharge containing VOCs shall be subject to the same concentration
limitations that apply to drinking water within the jurisdiction where the User is located,;

(20) Prohibition on Hydrolysate: No person shall discharge hydrolysate wastes or wastewater resulting
from alkaline hydrolysis/resomation either directly or indirectly to the sanitary sewer except as specifically
authorized by the Manager in an individual wastewater discharge permit.

Storage of Prohibited Waste: Pollutants, substances, or wastewater prohibited by this Section 4.1 shall not be
processed or stored in such a manner that they could be discharged to the POTW.

4.2 National Categorical Pretreatment Standards
Users must comply with the categorical Pretreatment Standards found at 40 CFR Chapter I, Subchapter N, Parts
405-471. When wastewater subject to a categorical Pretreatment Standard is mixed with wastewater not
regulated by the same Standard, the Manager shall impose the combined wastestream formula to calculate an
alternate or adjusted categorical limit in accordance with 40 CFR 403.6(e).

4.3  State Pretreatment Standards
The EPA has delegated the responsibility to oversee Federal pretreatment programs to the California State Water
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and Regional Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCB). The SWRCB and
RWQCB are responsible for the review and approval of the District’s pretreatment program. Users must comply
with California pretreatment requirements as set forth in the District’s NPDES Permit.

4.4 Local Limits
A. The District is authorized to establish Local Limits pursuant to 40 CFR 403.5(c). The following Pollutant
limits are established to protect against Pass Through and Interference. No person shall discharge wastewater
containing in excess of the following Maximum Limits; provided, however, that where more restrictive
limitations are imposed by Permit or Federal Pretreatment Standards, the more restrictive standards shall apply:

Constituent Concentration, mg/L Instantaneous Maximum, mg/L
Conventional Pollutants:

Ammonia (N) 662 n/a
Biochemical Oxygen Demand 1,880* n/a
Total Suspended Solids 2,031 n/a
Oil & Grease 100 200
Priority Pollutant Metals:

Arsenic 0.11 0.20
Cadmium 0.13 0.28
Chromium 5.3 21
Copper 24 6.9
Lead 15 4.2
Mercury 0.071 0.24
Molybdenum 15 1.5
Nickel 2.3 2.3
Selenium 0.31 0.31
Silver 1.0 4.9
Zinc 3.2 8.6

16


http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Volatile_organic_compound
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Petroleum
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Benzene
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Toluene
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ethylbenzene
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Xylene

Constituent Concentration, mg/L Instantaneous Maximum, mg/L

Minerals:

TDS n/a* n/a
Chloride 300* n/a
Other Toxics:

Cyanide 1.1 4.4

pH 6-11 units 6-11 units

*possible allocation of mass limit for user’s discharging >1% of MAHL

B. The above Local limits apply at the point where the wastewater is discharged to the POTW, also known as the
end-of-pipe. All concentrations for metallic substances are for total metal unless indicated otherwise. The District
may impose mass limitations in addition to concentration-based limitations.

C. The Manager may develop Best Management Practices (BMP’s) by ordinance or in individual wastewater
discharge permits to implement Local Limits and the requirements of Section 4.1 of this ordinance.

4.5 District’s Right of Revision
The District reserves the right to establish, by ordinance or in individual wastewater discharge permits, more
stringent Standards or Requirements on discharges to the POTW consistent with the purpose of this ordinance.

4.6 Dilution

No User shall ever increase the use of process water, or in any way attempt to dilute a discharge, as a partial or
complete substitute for adequate treatment to achieve compliance with a discharge limitation unless expressly
authorized by an applicable Pretreatment Standard or Requirement. The Manager may impose mass limitations
on Users who are using dilution to meet applicable Pretreatment Standards or Requirements, or in other cases
when the imposition of mass limitations is appropriate.

4.7  Bypass - Definitions
A. For the purposes of this ordinance,
1. Bypass means the intentional diversion of wastestreams from any portion of a User’s treatment facility.
2. Severe property damage means substantial physical damage to property, damage to the treatment
facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and permanent loss of natural resources
which can reasonably be expected to occur in the absence of a bypass. Severe property damage does not
mean economic loss caused by delays in production.

4.8  Bypass Prohibited.
A. Bypass is prohibited. The Manager may take enforcement action against a User for a bypass unless:

1. Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe property damage; and
2. There were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary treatment facilities,
retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal periods of equipment downtime. This
condition is not satisfied if adequate back-up equipment should have been installed in the exercise of
reasonable engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal periods of equipment
downtime or preventative maintenance; and
3. The User submitted notices as required under Section 4.9 of this ordinance.

B. A User may allow a bypass to occur only if it does not cause violations of Pretreatment Standards,
Industrial User Permit, or the District’s NPDES Permit and is for essential maintenance to assure efficient
operation. The Manager may approve a planned bypass after considering its potential adverse effects.

2



4.9 Bypass Notifications.
A. If a User plans for a bypass, the User must submit prior notice to the Manager at least ten (10) days
before the date of the bypass.

B. A User shall submit a verbal notice of an unanticipated bypass that exceeds applicable Pretreatment
Standards or Permit limits to the Manager within twenty-four (24) hours from the time it becomes aware
of the bypass. A written submission shall also be provided within five (5) days of the time the User
becomes aware of the bypass. The written submission shall contain (i) a description of the bypass and
its cause, (ii) the duration of the bypass, including exact dates and times, and, (iii) the steps taken or
planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the bypass. The Manager may waive the
written report on a case by case basis if the oral report has been received with twenty-four (24) hours.

SECTION 5 - PRETREATMENT OF WASTEWATER

5.1 Pretreatment Facilities

Users shall provide wastewater treatment as necessary to comply with this ordinance and shall achieve compliance
with all categorical Pretreatment Standards, Local Limits, and the prohibitions set out in Section 4.1 of this
ordinance within the time limitations specified by EPA, the State, or the Manager, whichever is more stringent.
Any facilities necessary for compliance shall be provided, operated, and maintained at the User’s expense.
Detailed plans describing such facilities and operating procedures shall be submitted to the Manager for review,
and shall be acceptable to the Manager before such facilities are constructed. The review of such plans and
operating procedures shall in no way relieve the User from the responsibility of modifying such facilities as
necessary to produce a discharge acceptable to the District under the provisions of this ordinance.

5.2 Additional Pretreatment Measures
A. Whenever deemed necessary, the Manager may require Users to restrict their discharge during peak flow
periods, designate that certain wastewater be discharged only into specific sewers, relocate and/or consolidate
points of discharge, separate sewage wastestreams from industrial wastestreams, and such other conditions
as may be necessary to protect the POTW and determine the User’s compliance with the requirements of this
ordinance.

B. The Manager may require any person discharging into the POTW to install and maintain, on their property
and at their expense, a suitable storage and flow-control facility to ensure equalization of flow. An individual
wastewater discharge permit may be issued solely for flow equalization.

C. Grease, oil, and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the Manager, they are
necessary for the proper handling of wastewater containing excessive amounts of grease and oil, or sand;
except that such interceptors shall not be required for residential users. All interception units shall be of a
type and capacity approved by the Manager, shall comply with the District ordinances, and shall be so located
to be easily accessible for cleaning and inspection. Such interceptors shall be inspected, cleaned, and repaired
in accordance with District requirements by the User at their expense.

D. Users with the potential to discharge flammable substances may be required to install and maintain an
approved combustible gas detection meter.

E. The Manager may require any persons discharging into the POTW to install and maintain, on their
property and at their expense a flowmeter to authenticate the amount of effluent discharge for determination
of compliance with permit limits (daily and/or peak flow, mass, etc.) and/or for District billing purposes.

5.3 Accidental Discharge/Slug Discharge Control Plans

The Manager shall evaluate whether each SIU needs an accidental discharge/slug discharge control plan or other
action to control Slug Discharges. The Manager may require any User to develop, submit for approval, and
implement such a plan or take such other action that may be necessary to control Slug Discharges. Alternatively,

18



the Manager may develop such a plan for any User. An accidental discharge/slug discharge control plan shall
address, at a minimum, the following:

A. Description of discharge practices, including nonroutine batch discharges;
B. Description of stored chemicals;

C. Procedures for immediately notifying the Manager of any accidental or Slug Discharge, as required by
Section 8.6 of this ordinance; and

D. Procedures to prevent adverse impact from any accidental or Slug Discharge. Such procedures include,
but are not limited to, inspection and maintenance of storage areas, handling and transfer of materials,
loading and unloading operations, control of plant site runoff, worker training, building of containment
structures or equipment, measures for containing toxic organic pollutants, including solvents, and/or
measures and equipment for emergency response.

5.4 Pollution Prevention, Waste Minimization, Recycling, and Treatment

All Users implement a program of waste minimization to reduce the generation of Hazardous Wastes in
accordance with Federal, State, and local policies. This program, at a minimum, shall include adequate
housekeeping measures and product substitution to less hazardous raw materials as much as economically feasible
and recycling of all wastestreams as technically feasible.

Waste minimization must be demonstrated wherever feasible, in the following order of priority, as determined by
EPA policy derived from the Pollution Prevention Act of 1990:

A. Source Reduction: Substitution to less hazardous materials, spill prevention and control measures,
proper storage and handling of chemicals and raw materials, or any methods that accomplish source
reduction.

B. Recycling, Recovery, and /or Reuse: Practice recovery, recycling, and reuse for such waste streams as
solvents, oils ethylene glycol, silver and concentrated bath or spent solutions or other process wastestreams.
C. Treatment: Treatment techniques designed to render Hazardous Wastes harmless or suitable for proper
disposal.

D. Disposal: Destruction of Hazardous Wastes must take precedence over landfilling, but in any case, all
disposal must be in compliance with Federal, State, and local Hazardous Waste disposal laws.

SECTION 6 - INDIVIDUAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMITS

6.1 Wastewater Analysis

When requested by the Manager, a User must submit information on the nature and characteristics of its
wastewater within ten (10) days of the request. The Manager is authorized to prepare a form for this purpose and
may periodically require Users to update this information.

6.2 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Requirement

A. No Significant Industrial User shall discharge wastewater into the POTW without first obtaining an individual
wastewater discharge permit from the Manager, except that a Significant Industrial User that has filed a timely
application pursuant to Section 6.3 of this ordinance may continue to discharge for the time period specified
therein.

B. The Manager may require other Users to obtain individual wastewater discharge permits as necessary to carry
out the purposes of this ordinance.

C. Any violation of the terms and conditions of an individual wastewater discharge permit shall be deemed a
violation of this ordinance and subjects the wastewater discharge permittee to the sanctions set out in Sections 12
through 14 of this ordinance. Obtaining an individual wastewater discharge permit does not relieve a permittee

19



of its obligation to comply with all Federal and State Pretreatment Standards or Requirements or with any other
requirements of Federal, State, and local law.

6.3 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permitting: Existing Connections

Any User required to obtain an individual wastewater discharge permit who was discharging wastewater into the
POTW prior to the effective date of this ordinance and who wishes to continue such discharges in the future, shall,
within twenty (20) days after said date, apply to the Manager for an individual wastewater discharge permit in
accordance with Section 6.5 of this ordinance, and shall not cause or allow discharges to the POTW to continue
after sixty (60) days of the effective date of this ordinance except in accordance with an individual wastewater
discharge permit issued by the Manager.

6.4 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permitting: New Connections

Any User required to obtain an individual wastewater discharge permit who proposes to begin or recommence
discharging into the POTW must obtain such permit prior to the beginning or recommencing of such discharge.
An application for this individual wastewater discharge permit, in accordance with Section 6.5 of this ordinance,
must be filed at least sixty (60) days prior to the date upon which any discharge will begin or recommence.

6.5 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Application Contents
A. All Users required to obtain an individual wastewater discharge permit must submit a permit application.
The Manager may require Users to submit all or some of the following information as part of a permit
application:

(1) Identifying Information.

a. The name and address of the facility, including the name of the operator and owner.
b. Contact information, description of activities, facilities, and plant production processes on the
premises;

(2) Environmental Permits. A list of any environmental control permits held by or for the facility.

(3) Description of Operations.

a. A brief description of the nature, average rate of production (including each product produced by
type, amount, processes, and rate of production), and standard industrial classifications of the
operation(s) carried out by such User. This description should include a schematic process diagram,
which indicates points of discharge to the POTW from the regulated processes;

b. Types of wastes generated, and a list of all raw materials and chemicals used or stored at the
facility which are, or could accidentally or intentionally be, discharged to the POTW;

c. Number and type of employees, hours of operation, and proposed or actual hours of operation;

d. Type and amount of raw materials processed (average and maximum per day);

e. Site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans, and details to show all sewers, floor drains,
and appurtenances by size, location, and elevation, and all points of discharge;

(4) Time and duration of discharges;
(5) The location for monitoring all wastes covered by the permit;

(6) Flow Measurement. Information showing the measured average daily and maximum daily flow, in
gallons per day, to the POTW from regulated process streams and other streams, as necessary, to allow
use of the combined wastestream formula set out in Section 4.2(40 CFR 403.6(e)).

(7) Measurement of Pollutants.

a. The categorical Pretreatment Standards applicable to each regulated process and any new
categorically regulated processes for Existing Sources.

20



b. The results of sampling and analysis identifying the nature and concentration, and/or mass, where
required by the Standard or by the Manager, of regulated pollutants in the discharge from each
regulated process.

c. Instantaneous, Daily Maximum, and long-term average concentrations, or mass, where required,
shall be reported.

d. The sample shall be representative of daily operations and shall be analyzed in accordance with
procedures set out in Section 8.10 of this ordinance. Where the Standard requires compliance with a
BMP or pollution prevention alternative, the User shall submit documentation as required by the
Manager or the applicable Standards to determine compliance with the Standard.

e. Sampling must be performed in accordance with procedures set out in Section 8.11 of this
ordinance.

(8) Any other information as may be deemed necessary by the Manager to evaluate the permit
application.

B. Incomplete or inaccurate applications will not be processed and will be returned to the User for revision.

6.6 Application Signatories and Certifications
A. All wastewater discharge permit applications, User reports and certification statements must be signed by an
Authorized Representative of the User and contain the certification statement in Section 8.14 A of this ordinance.

B. If the designation of an Authorized Representative is no longer accurate because a different individual or
position has responsibility for the overall operation of the facility or overall responsibility for environmental
matters for the company, a new written authorization satisfying the requirements of Section 1.4 C of this ordinance
must be submitted to the Manager prior to or together with any reports to be signed by an Authorized
Representative.

6.7 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Decisions

The Manager will evaluate the data furnished by the User and may require additional information. Within thirty
(30) days of receipt of a complete permit application, the Manager will determine whether to issue an individual
wastewater discharge permit. The Manager may deny any application for an individual wastewater discharge
permit.

6.8 Industrial Wastewater Discharge Permit Classification
Industrial Wastewater Discharge Permits shall be classified as follows:

Class A: This classification is for Significant Industrial Users, SIUs, defined in Section 1.4 of this ordinance, and
are industrial users regulated under National Categorical Pretreatment Standards, and/or have a reasonable
potential for adversely affecting the POTW’s operation or for violating any Pretreatment Standard or
Requirement.

Class B: This classification is for Industrial Users that are not classified as an SIU, but may require a permit to
communicate and formalize industrial wastewater discharge rules and obligations i.e. implementation of Best
Management Practice(s), District inspection/compliance monitoring, equipment installation, self-
monitoring/reporting, etc. and will involve verification of ongoing compliance with this ordinance and
pretreatment standards or requirements.

Class C: This classification is for:
(1) non-residential users that handle and store toxic or hazardous wastes on site but can demonstrate and
certify that they do not directly or indirectly discharge these wastes to the sewer;
(2) Users who require discharge approval for a temporary and/or short-term duration;

21



(3) Users that have the same or substantially similar types of operations, discharge same types of waste,
require similar compliance monitoring and/or best management practices, require the same standard
treatment equipment and are more appropriately controlled under this type of document.

These non-residential users may be required to submit (a) an application for a Class C permit setting forth

requirements for self-monitoring, reporting, and/or equipment installation, or (b) an certified zero industrial

wastewater discharge statement setting forth such survey or other information as the District may require to
establish that such user will not directly or indirectly discharge toxic or hazardous wastes to the sewer.

SECTION 7 - INDIVIDUAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT ISSUANCE

7.1 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Duration

An individual wastewater discharge permit shall be issued for a specified time period, not to exceed five (5) years
from the effective date of the permit. An individual wastewater discharge permit may be issued for a period less
than five (5) years, at the discretion of the Manager. Each individual wastewater discharge permit will indicate a
specific date upon which it will expire.

7.2 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Contents

An individual wastewater discharge permit shall include such conditions as are deemed reasonably necessary by
the Manager to prevent Pass Through or Interference, protect the quality of the water body receiving the treatment
plant’s effluent, protect worker health and safety, facilitate sludge management and disposal, protect the
wastewater reclamation facility and protect against damage to the POTW.

A. Individual wastewater discharge permits must contain:

(1) A statement that indicates the wastewater discharge permits issuance date, expiration date and effective
date;

(2) A statement that the wastewater discharge permit is nontransferable without prior notification to the
District in accordance with Section 7.4 of this ordinance, and provisions for furnishing the new owner or
operator with a copy of the existing wastewater discharge permit;

(3) Effluent limits, including Best Management Practices, based on applicable Pretreatment Standards;

(4) Self-monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and record-keeping requirements. These requirements
shall include an identification of pollutants (or best management practice) to be monitored, sampling location,
sampling frequency, and sample type based on Federal, State, and local law.

(5) A statement of applicable civil and criminal penalties for violation of Pretreatment Standards and
Requirements, and any applicable compliance schedule. Such schedule may not extend the time for
compliance beyond that required by applicable Federal, State, or local law.

(6) Requirements to control Slug Discharge, unless the Manager determines that such requirements are not
necessary.

B. Individual wastewater discharge permits may contain, but need not be limited to, the following conditions:

(1) Limits on the average and/or maximum rate of discharge, time of discharge, and/or requirements for flow
regulation and equalization;

(2) Requirements for the installation of pretreatment technology, pollution control, or construction of
appropriate containment devices, designed to reduce, eliminate, or prevent the introduction of pollutants into
the treatment works;

(3) Requirements for the development and implementation of spill control plans or other special conditions
including management practices necessary to adequately prevent accidental, unanticipated, or nonroutine
discharges;

22



(4) Development and implementation of waste minimization plans to reduce the amount of pollutants
discharged to the POTW;

(5) The unit charge or schedule of User charges and fees for the management of the wastewater discharged
to the POTW,

(6) Requirements for installation and maintenance of inspection and sampling facilities and equipment,
including flow measurement devices;

(7) A statement that compliance with the individual wastewater discharge permit does not relieve the
permittee of responsibility for compliance with all applicable Federal and State Pretreatment Standards,
including those which become effective during the term of the individual wastewater discharge permit; and

(8) Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Manager to ensure compliance with this ordinance, and
State and Federal laws, rules, and regulations.

7.3 Permit Modification
A. The Manager may modify an individual wastewater discharge permit for good cause, including, but not limited
to, the following reasons:

(1) To incorporate any new or revised Federal, State, or local Pretreatment Standards or Requirements;

(2) To address significant alterations or additions to the User’s operation, processes, or wastewater volume
or character since the time of the individual wastewater discharge permit issuance;

(3) A change in the POTW that requires either a temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the
authorized discharge;

(4) Information indicating that the permitted discharge poses a threat to the District’s POTW, District
personnel, the POTW’s beneficial sludge and/or reclaimed water use, or the receiving waters;

(5) Violation of any terms or conditions of the individual wastewater discharge permit;

(6) Misrepresentations or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater discharge permit
application or in any required reporting;

(7) Revision of or a grant of variance from categorical Pretreatment Standards pursuant to 40 CFR 403.13;
(8) To correct typographical or other errors in the individual wastewater discharge permit; or

(9) To reflect a transfer of the facility ownership or operation to a new owner or operator where requested
in accordance with Section 7.4 of this ordinance.

7.4 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer

Individual wastewater discharge permits may be transferred to a new owner or operator only if the permittee gives
at least sixty (60) days advance notice to the Manager and the Manager approves the individual wastewater
discharge permit transfer. The notice to the Manager must include a written certification by the new owner or
operator which:

A. States that the new owner and/or operator has no immediate intent to change the facility’s operations
and processes;

B. ldentifies the specific date on which the transfer is to occur; and

C. Acknowledges full responsibility for complying with the existing individual wastewater discharge
permit.

Failure to provide advance notice of a transfer renders the individual wastewater discharge permit void as of the
date of facility transfer.

23



7.5 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Revocation
The Manager may revoke an individual wastewater discharge permit for good cause, including, but not limited
to, the following reasons:

A. Failure to notify the Manager of significant changes to the wastewater prior to the changed discharge;

B. Failure to provide prior notification to the Manager of changed conditions pursuant to Section 8.5 of
this ordinance;

C. Misrepresentation or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater discharge permit
application;

D. Falsifying self-monitoring reports and certification statements;

E. Tampering with monitoring equipment;

F. Refusing to allow the Manager timely access to the facility premises and records;

G. Failure to meet effluent limitations;

H. Failure to pay fines;

I. Failure to pay sewer charges;

J. Failure to meet compliance schedules;

K. Failure to complete a wastewater survey or the wastewater discharge permit application;

L. Failure to provide advance notice of the transfer of business ownership of a permitted facility; or

M. Violation of any Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, or any terms of the wastewater discharge
permit or this ordinance.

Individual wastewater discharge permits shall be voidable upon cessation of operations or transfer of business
ownership. All individual wastewater discharge permits issued to a User are void upon the issuance of a new
individual wastewater discharge permit to that User.

7.6 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Reissuance

A User with an expiring individual wastewater discharge permit shall apply for individual wastewater discharge
permit reissuance by submitting a complete permit application, in accordance with Section 6.5 of this ordinance,
a minimum of sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the User’s existing individual wastewater discharge permit.

7.7 Regulation of Waste Received from Other Jurisdictions
A. If an Outside Contributor contributes wastewater to the District’s POTW, the District shall enter into an
agreement with the Outside Contributor.
B. An agreement, as required by paragraph A, above, shall contain the following conditions:
(1) A requirement for the Outside Contributor to adopt sewer use requirements which (i) are at least as
stringent as this ordinance, (ii) contain Local Limits, which are at least as stringent as those set out in
Section 4.4 of this ordinance, and (iii) includes requirements for Baseline Monitoring Reports. The
sewer use requirements shall specify that such requirements and limits must be revised as necessary
to reflect changes made to the District’s ordinance or Local Limits;
(2) A provision specifying which pretreatment implementation activities, including individual wastewater
discharge permit issuance, inspection and sampling, and enforcement, will be conducted by the

24



Outside Contributor; which of these activities will be conducted by the Manager; and which of these
activities will be conducted jointly by the Outside Contributor and the Manager;

(3) A requirement for the Outside Contributor to provide the Manager with access to all information that
the Outside Contributor obtains as part of its pretreatment activities;

(4) Limits on the nature, quality, and volume of the contributing municipality’s wastewater at the point
where it discharges to the POTW;

(5) Requirements for monitoring the Outside Contributor’s discharge;

(6) A provision ensuring the Manager access to the facilities of users located within the outside
contributor jurisdictional boundaries for the purpose of inspection, sampling and any other duties
deemed necessary by the Manager;

(7) A provision specifying remedies available for breach of the terms of the agreement; and

(8) A provision specifying that, where the Outside Contributor has primary responsibility for permitting,
compliance monitoring, or enforcement, the District has the right to take action to enforce the terms
of the Outside Contributor’s sewer use requirements or to impose and enforce Pretreatment Standards
and Requirements directly against dischargers in the event the Outside Contributor is unable or
unwilling to take such action.

SECTION 8 - REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

8.1 Baseline Monitoring Reports

A. Within either one hundred eighty (180) days after the effective date of a categorical Pretreatment Standard,
or the final administrative decision on a category determination under 40 CFR 403.6(a)(4), whichever is later,
existing Categorical Industrial Users currently discharging to or scheduled to discharge to the POTW shall submit
to the Manager a report which contains the information listed in paragraph B, below. At least ninety (90) days
prior to commencement of their discharge, New Sources, and sources that become Categorical Industrial Users
subsequent to the promulgation of an applicable categorical Standard, shall submit to the Manager a report which
contains the information listed in paragraph B, below. A New Source shall report the method of pretreatment it
intends to use to meet applicable categorical Standards. A New Source also shall give estimates of its anticipated
flow and quantity of pollutants to be discharged.

B. Users described above shall submit the information set forth below.

(1) All information required in Section 6.5A (1) a, Section 6.5A (2), Section 6.5A (3) a, and Section 6.5A
(6) of this ordinance.

(2) Measurement of pollutants.
a. The User shall provide the information required in Section 6.5A (7) a through d of this ordinance.

b. The User shall take a minimum of one representative sample to compile that data necessary to
comply with the requirements of this paragraph.

c. Samples should be taken immediately downstream from pretreatment facilities if such exist or
immediately downstream from the regulated process if no pretreatment exists. If other wastewaters
are mixed with the regulated wastewater prior to pretreatment the User should measure the flows
and concentrations necessary to allow use of the combined wastestream formula in 40 CFR
403.6(e) to evaluate compliance with the Pretreatment Standards. Where an alternate concentration
or mass limit has been calculated in accordance with 40 CFR 403.6(e) this adjusted limit along
with supporting data shall be submitted to the Control Authority;

d. Sampling and analysis shall be performed in accordance with Section 8.10 of this ordinance;

e. The Manager may allow the submission of a baseline report which utilizes only historical data so
long as the data provides information sufficient to determine the need for industrial pretreatment
measures;

25



f. The baseline report shall indicate the time, date and place of sampling and methods of analysis,
and shall certify that such sampling and analysis is representative of normal work cycles and
expected pollutant Discharges to the POTW.

(3) Compliance Certification. A statement, reviewed by the User’s Authorized Representative as defined
in Section 1.4 C of this ordinance and certified by a qualified professional, indicating whether Pretreatment
Standards are being met on a consistent basis, and, if not, whether additional operation and maintenance
(O&M) and/or additional pretreatment is required to meet the Pretreatment Standards and Requirements.

(4) Compliance Schedule. If additional pretreatment and/or O&M will be required to meet the Pretreatment
Standards, the shortest schedule by which the User will provide such additional pretreatment and/or O&M
must be provided. The completion date in this schedule shall not be later than the compliance date
established for the applicable Pretreatment Standard. A compliance schedule pursuant to this Section must
meet the requirements set out in Section 8.2 of this ordinance.

(5) Signature and Report Certification. All baseline monitoring reports must be certified in accordance
with Section 8.14 A of this ordinance and signed by an Authorized Representative as defined in Section
1.4 C of this ordinance.

8.2 Compliance Schedule Progress Reports
The following conditions shall apply to the compliance schedule required by Section 8.1(B)(4) of this ordinance:

A. The schedule shall contain progress increments in the form of dates for the commencement and
completion of major events leading to the construction and operation of additional pretreatment required
for the User to meet the applicable Pretreatment Standards (such events include, but are not limited to,
hiring an engineer, completing preliminary and final plans, executing contracts for major components,
commencing and completing construction, and beginning and conducting routine operation);

B. No increment referred to above shall exceed nine (9) months;

C. The User shall submit a progress report to the Manager no later than fourteen (14) days following
each date in the schedule and the final date of compliance including, as a minimum, whether or not it
complied with the increment of progress, the reason for any delay, and, if appropriate, the steps being
taken by the User to return to the established schedule; and

D. Inno event shall more than nine (9) months lapse between such progress reports to the Manager.

8.3 Reports on Compliance with Categorical Pretreatment Standard Deadline

Within ninety (90) days following the date for final compliance with applicable categorical Pretreatment
Standards, or in the case of a New Source following commencement of the introduction of wastewater into the
POTW, any User subject to such Pretreatment Standards and Requirements shall submit to the Manager a report
containing the information described in Section 6.5A(6) and (7) and 8.1B(2) of this ordinance. For all users
subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards expressed in terms of allowable pollutant discharge per unit of
production (or other measures of operation), this report shall include the User’s actual production during the
appropriate sampling period. All compliance reports must be signed and certified in accordance with Section 8.14
A of this ordinance. All sampling will be done in conformance with Section 8.11 of this ordinance.

8.4 Periodic Compliance Reports
A. All Significant Industrial Users must, at a frequency determined by the District, submit no less than
twice per year (by January 31% and July 31% for the six-month periods ending December 31% and June
30" reports indicating the nature, concentration of pollutants in the discharge which are limited by
Pretreatment Standards and the measured or estimated average and maximum daily flows for the reporting
period. In cases where the Pretreatment Standard requires compliance with a Best Management Practice

26



(BMP) or pollution prevention alternative, the User must submit documentation required by the District
or the Pretreatment Standard necessary to determine the compliance status of the User.

B. All periodic compliance reports must be signed and certified in accordance with Section 8.14 A of this
ordinance.

C. All wastewater samples must be representative of the User’s discharge. Wastewater monitoring and
flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, kept clean, and maintained in good working order
at all times. The failure of a User to keep its monitoring facility in good working order shall not be
grounds for the User to claim that sample results are unrepresentative of its discharge.

D. If a User subject to the reporting requirement in this Section monitors any regulated pollutant at the
appropriate sampling location more frequently than required by the Manager, using the procedures
prescribed in Section 8.11 of this ordinance, the results of this monitoring shall be included in the report.

8.5 Reports of Changed Conditions
Each User must notify the District of any significant changes to the User’s operations or system which might alter
the nature, quality, or volume of its wastewater at least thirty (30) days before the change.

A. The District may require the User to submit such information as may be deemed necessary to evaluate
the changed condition, including the submission of a wastewater discharge permit application under
Section 6.5 of this ordinance.

B. The District may issue an individual wastewater discharge permit under Section 7.6 of this ordinance
or modify an existing wastewater discharge permit under Section 7.3 of this ordinance in response to
changed conditions or anticipated changed conditions.

8.6 Reports of Potential Problems
A. In the case of any discharge, including, but not limited to, accidental discharges, discharges of a
nonroutine, episodic nature, a noncustomary batch discharge, a Slug Discharge or Slug Load, that might
cause potential problems for the POTW, the User shall immediately telephone and notify the Manager of
the incident. This notification shall include the location of the discharge, type of waste, concentration and
volume, if known, and corrective actions taken by the User.

B. Within five (5) days following such discharge, the User shall, unless waived by the District, submit a
detailed written report describing the cause(s) of the discharge and the measures to be taken by the User
to prevent similar future occurrences. Such notification shall not relieve the User of any expense, loss,
damage, or other liability which might be incurred as a result of damage to the POTW, natural resources,
or any other damage to person or property; nor shall such notification relieve the User of any fines,
penalties, or other liability which may be imposed pursuant to this ordinance.

C. A notice shall be permanently posted on the User’s bulletin board or other prominent place advising
employees who to call in the event of a discharge described in paragraph A, above. Employers shall
ensure that all employees, who could cause such a discharge to occur, are advised of the emergency
notification procedure.

D. Significant Industrial Users are required to notify the Manager immediately of any changes at its
facility affecting the potential for a Slug Discharge.

8.7 Reports from Unpermitted Users

All Users not required to obtain an individual wastewater discharge permit shall provide appropriate reports to
the Manager as the Manager may require.

27



8.8 Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling and Reporting

If sampling performed by a User indicates a violation, the User must notify the Manager within twenty-four (24)
hours of becoming aware of the violation. The User shall also repeat the sampling and analysis and submit the
results of the repeat analysis to the Manager within thirty (30) days after becoming aware of the violation.
Resampling by the Industrial User is not required if the District performs sampling at the User’s facility at least
once a month, or if the District performs sampling at the User between the time when the initial sampling was
conducted and the time when the User or the District receives the results of this sampling, or if the District has
performed the sampling and analysis in lieu of the Industrial User.

8.9 Discharge of Hazardous Waste - Notification of Unintentional Discharge
Discharge of hazardous wastes, except as specified in this ordinance, is prohibited. Notification of any
unintentional discharge of hazardous waste shall be reported in accordance with Section 8.6 of this Ordinance.

8.10 Analytical Requirements

All pollutant analyses, including sampling techniques to collect and preserve, to be submitted as part of a
wastewater discharge permit application or report shall be performed in accordance with the techniques prescribed
in 40 CFR Part 136 and amendments thereto, unless otherwise specified in an applicable categorical Pretreatment
Standard. 1f 40 CFR Part 136 does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the pollutant in question, or
where the EPA determines that the Part 136 sampling and analytical techniques are inappropriate for the pollutant
in question, sampling and analyses shall be performed by using validated analytical methods or any other
applicable sampling and analytical procedures, including procedures suggested by the Manager or other parties
approved by EPA.

8.11 Sample Collection

Samples collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based on data obtained through appropriate sampling
and analysis performed during the period covered by the report, based on data that is representative of conditions
occurring during the reporting period. A Chain-of-Custody form is required to be submitted with all monitoring
data.

A. Except as indicated in Section B and C below, the User must collect wastewater samples using 24-hour
flow-proportional composite sampling techniques, unless time-proportional composite sampling or grab
sampling is authorized by the Manager. Where time-proportional composite sampling or grab sampling
is authorized by the District, the samples must be representative of the discharge. Using protocols
(including appropriate preservation) specified in 40 CFR Part 136 and appropriate EPA guidance, multiple
grab samples collected during a 24-hour period may be composited prior to the analysis as follows: for
cyanide, total phenols, and sulfides the samples may be composited in the laboratory or in the field; for
volatile organics and oil and grease, the samples may be composited in the laboratory. Composite samples
for other parameters unaffected by the compositing procedures as documented in approved EPA
methodologies may be authorized by the District, as appropriate. In addition, grab samples may be
required to show compliance with Instantaneous Limits.

B. Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, total phenols, sulfides, and volatile organic
compounds must be obtained using grab collection techniques.

C. For sampling required in support of baseline monitoring and 90-day compliance reports required in
Sections 8.1 and 8.3 of this ordinance [40 CFR 403.12(b) and (d)], a minimum of four (4) grab samples
must be used for pH, cyanide, total phenols, oil and grease, sulfide and volatile organic compounds for
facilities for which historical sampling data do not exist; for facilities for which historical sampling data
are available, the Manager may authorize a lower minimum. For the reports required by paragraphs
Section 8.4 of this ordinance (40 CFR 403.12(e) and 403.12(h)), the Industrial User is required to collect
the number of grab samples necessary to assess and assure compliance by with applicable Pretreatment
Standards and Requirements.

28



8.12 Date of Receipt of Reports

Written reports will be deemed to have been submitted on the date postmarked. For reports, which are not mailed,
postage prepaid, into a mail facility serviced by the United States Postal Service, the date of receipt of the report
shall govern.

8.13 Recordkeeping

Users subject to the reporting requirements of this ordinance shall retain, and make available for inspection and
copying, all records of information obtained pursuant to any monitoring activities required by this ordinance, any
additional records of information obtained pursuant to monitoring activities undertaken by the User independent
of such requirements, and documentation associated with Best Management Practices established under Section
4.4 C of this ordinance. Records shall include the date, exact place, method, and time of sampling, and the name
of the person(s) taking the samples; the dates analyses were performed; who performed the analyses; the analytical
techniques or methods used; and the results of such analyses. These records shall remain available for a period
of at least three (3) years. This period shall be automatically extended for the duration of any litigation concerning
the User or the District, or where the User has been specifically notified of a longer retention period by the
Manager.

8.14  Certification Statements
A. Certification of Permit Applications, User Reports and Initial Monitoring Waiver

The following certification statement is required to be signed and submitted by Users submitting permit
applications in accordance with Section 6.6 of this ordinance; Users submitting baseline monitoring reports under
Section 8.1 B (5) of this ordinance; Users submitting reports on compliance with the categorical Pretreatment
Standard deadlines under Section 8.3; and Users submitting periodic compliance reports required by Section 8.4
A-D of this ordinance. The following certification statement must be signed by an Authorized Representative as
defined in Section 1.4 C of this ordinance:

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction
or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system,
or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the
best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. | am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

SECTION 9 - COMPLIANCE MONITORING

9.1 Rightof Entry: Inspection and Sampling

The District shall have the right to enter the premises of any User to determine whether the User is complying
with all requirements of this ordinance and any individual wastewater discharge permit or order issued hereunder.
Users shall allow the District ready access to all parts of the premises for the purposes of inspection, sampling,
records examination and copying, and the performance of any additional duties.

A. Where a User has security measures in force which require proper identification and clearance before
entry into its premises, the User shall make necessary arrangements with its security guards so that, upon
presentation of suitable identification, the District shall be permitted to enter without delay for the
purposes of performing specific responsibilities.

B. The District shall have the right to set up on the User’s property, or require installation of, such devices
as are necessary to conduct sampling and/or metering of the User’s operations.

29



C. The District may require the User to install monitoring equipment as necessary. The facility’s
sampling and monitoring equipment shall be maintained at all times in a safe and proper operating
condition by the User at its own expense. All devices used to measure wastewater flow and quality shall
be calibrated according to manufacturer’s specifications to ensure their accuracy.

D. Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the facility to be inspected and/or
sampled shall be promptly removed by the User at the written or verbal request of the District and shall
not be replaced. The costs of clearing such access shall be borne by the User.

E. Unreasonable delays in allowing the District access to the User’s premises shall be a violation of this
ordinance.

F. The monitoring facility shall (i) provide ample room in or near the monitoring facility to allow accurate
sampling and preparation of samples and analysis, (ii) comply with all District requirements, (iii) comply
with all applicable local construction standards and specifications, and (iv) be constructed and maintained
in such manner so as to enable the District to perform independent monitoring activities.

9.2 Inspection Warrants

If the District has been refused access to a building, structure, or property, or any part thereof, and is able to
demonstrate probable cause to believe that there may be a violation of this ordinance, or that there is a need to
inspect and/or sample as part of a routine inspection and sampling program of the District designed to verify
compliance with this ordinance or any permit or order issued hereunder, or to protect the overall public health,
safety and welfare of the community, they may seek issuance of an inspection warrant from the Santa Barbara
Superior Court pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1822.50 et seq.

SECTION 10 - CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Information and data on a User obtained from reports, surveys, wastewater discharge permit applications,
individual wastewater discharge permits, and monitoring programs, and from the District’s inspection and
sampling activities, shall be available to the public without restriction, unless the User specifically requests, and
is able to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the District, that (i) the release of such information would divulge
information, processes, or methods of production entitled to protection as trade secrets under applicable State law,
and (ii) such information is exempt from disclosure under the California Public Records Act (California
Government Code Section 6250 et seq.). Any such request must be asserted at the time of submission of the
information or data. When requested and demonstrated by the User furnishing a report that such information
should be held confidential, the portions of a report which might disclose trade secrets or secret processes shall
not be made available for inspection by the public, but shall be made available immediately upon request to
governmental agencies for uses related to the NPDES program or pretreatment program, and in enforcement
proceedings involving the person furnishing the report. Wastewater constituents and characteristics and other
effluent data, as defined at 40 CFR 2.302, shall not be recognized as confidential information and shall be available
to the public without restriction.

SECTION 11 - PUBLICATION OF USERS IN SIGNIFICANT NONCOMPLIANCE

The District shall publish annually, in a newspaper of general circulation that provides meaningful public notice
within the jurisdictions served by the POTW, a list of the Users which, at any time during the previous twelve
(12) months, were in Significant Noncompliance with applicable Pretreatment Standards and Requirements. The
term Significant Noncompliance shall be applicable to all Significant Industrial Users (or any other Industrial
User that violates paragraphs (C), (D) or (H) of this Section 11) and shall mean:

A. Chronic violations of wastewater discharge limits, defined here as those in which sixty-six percent
(66%) or more of all the measurements taken for the same pollutant parameter taken during a six- (6-)
month period exceed (by any magnitude) a numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including
Instantaneous Limits as defined in Section 2 of this ordinance;

30



B. Technical Review Criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in which thirty-three percent (33%)
or more of wastewater measurements taken for each pollutant parameter during a six- (6-) month period
equals or exceeds the product of the numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement including
Instantaneous Limits, as defined by Section 2 of this ordinance multiplied by the applicable criteria (1.4
for BOD, TSS, fats, oils and grease, and 1.2 for all other pollutants except pH);

C. Any other violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement as defined by Section 2 of this
ordinance (Daily Maximum, long-term average, Instantaneous Limit, or narrative standard) that the
District determines has caused, alone or in combination with other discharges, Interference or Pass
Through, including endangering the health of POTW personnel or the general public;

D. Any discharge of a pollutant that has caused imminent endangerment to the public or to the
environment, or has resulted in the District’s exercise of its emergency authority to halt or prevent such a
discharge;

E. Failure to meet, within ninety (90) days of the scheduled date, a compliance schedule milestone
contained in an individual wastewater discharge permit or enforcement order for starting construction,
completing construction, or attaining final compliance;

F. Failure to provide within forty-five (45) days after the due date, any required reports, including baseline
monitoring reports, reports on compliance with categorical Pretreatment Standard deadlines, periodic
self-monitoring reports, and reports on compliance with compliance schedules;

G. Failure to accurately report noncompliance; or

H. Any other violation(s), which may include a violation of Best Management Practices, which the
District determines will adversely affect the operation or implementation of the local pretreatment
program.

SECTION 12 - ADMINISTRATIVE ENFORCEMENT REMEDIES

12.1 Notification of Violation

When the Manager finds that a User has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of this ordinance, an
individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or
Requirement, the Manager may serve upon that User a written Notice of Violation. Within thirty (30) days of the
receipt of such Notice of Violation, the User shall submit to the Manager an explanation of the violation and a
plan for the satisfactory correction and prevention thereof, to include specific required actions. Submission of
such a plan in no way relieves the User of liability for any violations occurring before or after receipt of the Notice
of Violation. Nothing in this Section 12 shall limit the authority of the Manager to take any action, including
emergency actions or any other enforcement action, without first issuing a Notice of Violation.

12.2  Consent Orders

The Manager may, on behalf of the District, enter into Consent Orders, assurances of compliance, or other similar
documents establishing an agreement with any User responsible for noncompliance. Such documents shall
include specific action to be taken by the User to correct the noncompliance within a time period specified by the
document. Such documents shall have the same force and effect as the administrative orders issued pursuant to
Sections 12.4 and 12.5 of this ordinance and shall be judicially enforceable.

12.3  Show Cause Hearing

The Manager may order a User which has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of this ordinance, an

individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or

Requirement, to appear before the Manager and show cause why the proposed enforcement action should not be

taken. Notice shall be served on the User specifying the time and place for the meeting, the proposed enforcement

action, the reasons for such action, and a request that the User show cause why the proposed enforcement action
31



should not be taken. The notice of the meeting shall be served personally or by registered or certified mail (return
receipt requested) at least thirty (30) days prior to the hearing. Such notice may be served on any Authorized
Representative of the User as defined in Section 1.4 C and required by Section 6.6 A of this ordinance. A show
cause hearing shall not be a bar against, or prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User.

12.4 Compliance Orders

When the Manager finds that a User has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of this ordinance, an
individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or
Requirement, the Manager may issue an order to the User responsible for the discharge directing that the User
come into compliance within a specified time. If the User does not come into compliance within the time
provided, sewer service may be discontinued unless adequate treatment facilities, devices, or other related
appurtenances are installed and properly operated. Compliance orders also may contain other requirements to
address the noncompliance, including additional self-monitoring and management practices designed to minimize
the amount of pollutants discharged to the sewer. A compliance order may not extend the deadline for compliance
established for a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, nor does a compliance order relieve the User of liability
for any violation, including any continuing violation. Issuance of a compliance order shall not be a bar against,
or a prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User.

12.5 Cease and Desist Orders

When the Manager finds that a User has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of this ordinance, an
individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or
Requirement, or that the User’s past violations are likely to recur, the Manager may issue an order to the User
directing it to cease and desist all such violations and directing the User to:

A. Immediately comply with all requirements; and

B. Take such appropriate remedial or preventive action as may be needed to properly address a continuing or
threatened violation, including halting operations and/or terminating the discharge. Issuance of a cease and
desist order shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User.

12.6  Administrative Penalties

A. If the District seeks to impose an administrative penalty, the District shall issue an administrative complaint
to any person who violates any requirement adopted or ordered by the District pursuant to this ordinance. The
administrative complaint shall allege the act or failure to act that constitutes the violation of the District's
requirements, the provisions of law authorizing civil liability to be imposed, and the proposed penalty.

B. The administrative complaint shall be served by personal delivery or certified mail (return receipt requested)
on the person subject to the District's discharge requirements, and shall inform the person served that a hearing
shall be conducted within sixty (60) days after the person has been served. The hearing shall be before a hearing
officer designated by the Governing Board of the District. The person who has been issued an administrative
complaint may waive the right to a hearing, in which case the District shall not conduct a hearing. A person
dissatisfied with the decision of the hearing officer may appeal to the Governing Board of the District within thirty
(30) days of notice of the hearing officer's decision.

C. If after the hearing, or appeal, if any, it is found that the person has violated reporting or discharge
requirements, the hearing officer or Governing Board may assess a civil penalty against that person. In
determining the amount of the civil penalty, the hearing officer or Governing Board may take into consideration
all relevant circumstances, including, but not limited to, the extent of harm caused by the violation, the economic
benefit derived through any noncompliance, the nature and persistence of the violation, the length of time over
which the violation occurs and corrective action, if any, attempted or taken by the discharger.

D. Administrative penalties may be imposed by the District as follows:

32



(1) Inan amount which shall not exceed two thousand dollars ($2,000) for each day for failing or refusing
to furnish technical or monitoring reports.

(2) In an amount which shall not exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000) for each day for failing or
refusing to timely comply with any compliance schedule established by the local agency.

(3) In an amount which shall not exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000) per violation for each day for
discharges in violation of any waste discharge limitation, permit condition, or requirement issued,
reissued, or adopted by the local agency.

(4) In an amount which does not exceed ten dollars ($10) per gallon for discharges in violation of any
suspension, cease and desist order or other orders, or prohibition issued, reissued, or adopted by a local
agency.

(5) The amount of any civil penalties imposed under this section which have remained delinquent for a
period of sixty (60) days shall constitute a lien against the real property of the discharger from which the
discharge originated resulting in the imposition of the civil penalty. The lien provided herein shall have
no force and effect until recorded with the Santa Barbara County Recorder and, when recorded, shall have
the force and effect and priority of a judgment lien and continue for ten (10) years from the time of
recording unless sooner released, and shall be renewable in accordance with the provisions of Sections
683.110 to 683.220, inclusive, of the California Code of Civil Procedure.

E. All moneys collected under this Section 12 shall be deposited in a special account of the District and shall be
made available for the monitoring, treatment, and control of discharges into the local agency’s sanitation or sewer
system or for other mitigation measures.

F. Unless appealed, orders setting administrative civil penalties shall become effective and final upon issuance
thereof, and payment shall be made within thirty (30) days. Copies of these orders shall be served by personal
service or by registered mail upon the party served with the administrative complaint and upon other persons who
appeared at the hearing and requested a copy.

G. The District may, at its option, elect to petition the Superior Court to confirm any order establishing civil
penalties and enter judgment in conformity therewith in accordance with the provisions of Sections 1285 to
1287.6, inclusive, of the California Code of Civil Procedure.

H. No penalties shall be recoverable under this Section 12 for any violation for which civil liability is recovered
under Government Code Section 54740.

I. Any party aggrieved by a final order issued by the Governing Board of the District under this Section 12.6after
granting review of the order of a hearing officer, may obtain review of the order of the Governing Board in the
Superior Court by filing in the court a petition for writ of mandate within thirty (30) days following the service of
a copy of a decision and order issued by the Governing Board. Any party aggrieved by a final order of a hearing
officer issued under this Section 12.6, for which the Governing Board denies review, may obtain review, of the
order of the hearing officer in the Superior Court by filing in the court a petition for writ of mandate within thirty
(30) days following service of a copy of a decision and order denying review by the Governing Board.

J. If no aggrieved party petitions for writ of mandate within the time provided by this Section 12.6, an order of
the Governing Board or a hearing officer shall not be subject to review by any court or agency, except that the
Governing Board may grant review on its own motion of an order after the expiration of the time limits set by this
Section 12.6.

K. The evidence before the court shall consist of the record before the Governing Board, including the hearing
officer's record, and any other relevant evidence which, in the judgment of the court, should be considered to

33


http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CACPS683.110&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062741
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CACPS683.110&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062741
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CACPS683.220&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062741
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CACPS1285&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062741
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CACPS1287.6&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062741
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CAGTS54740&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000211&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062741
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CAGTS54740.5&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000211&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062742
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CAGTS54740.5&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000211&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062742

effectuate and implement policies of this division. In every such case, the court shall exercise its independent
judgment on the evidence.

L. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, subdivisions (e) and (f) of Section 1094.5 of the California Code
of Civil Procedure shall govern proceedings pursuant to this Section 12.6.

12.7 Emergency Suspensions

The Manager may immediately suspend a User’s discharge, after informal notice to the User, whenever such
suspension is necessary to stop an actual or threatened discharge, which reasonably appears to present, or cause
an imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or welfare of persons. The Manager may also
immediately suspend a User’s discharge, after notice, that threatens to interfere with the operation of the POTW,
or which presents, or may present, an endangerment to the environment.

A. Any User notified of a suspension of its discharge shall immediately stop or eliminate its contribution.
In the event of a User’s failure to immediately comply voluntarily with the suspension order, the Manager
may take such steps as deemed necessary, including immediate severance of the sewer connection, to
prevent or minimize damage to the POTW, its receiving stream, or endangerment to any individuals. The
Manager may allow the User to recommence its discharge when the User has demonstrated to the
satisfaction of the Manager that the period of endangerment has passed, unless the termination
proceedings in Section 12.8 of this ordinance are initiated against the User.

B. A User that is responsible, in whole or in part, for any discharge presenting imminent endangerment
shall submit a detailed written statement, describing the causes of the harmful contribution and the
measures taken to prevent any future occurrence, to the Manager prior to the date of any show cause or
termination hearing under Sections 12.3 or 12.8 of this ordinance.

Nothing in this Section 12.7 shall be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any Emergency Suspension.

12.8 Termination of Discharge
In addition to the provisions in Section 7.5 of this ordinance, any User who violates the following conditions is
subject to discharge termination:

A. Violation of individual wastewater discharge permit conditions;
B. Failure to accurately report the wastewater constituents and characteristics of its discharge;

C. Failure to report significant changes in operations or wastewater volume, constituents, and characteristics
prior to discharge;

D. Refusal of reasonable access to the User’s premises for the purpose of inspection, monitoring, or sampling;
or

E. Violation of the Pretreatment Standards in Section 4 of this ordinance.

Such User will be notified of the proposed termination of its discharge and be offered an opportunity to show
cause under Section 12.3 of this ordinance why the proposed action should not be taken. Exercise of this option
by the Manager shall not be a bar to, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User.

SECTION 13 - JUDICIAL ENFORCEMENT REMEDIES

13.1 Injunctive Relief

When the Manager finds that a User has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of this ordinance, an
individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or
Requirement, the Manager may petition the Superior Court through the District’s attorney for the issuance of a
temporary or permanent injunction, as appropriate, which restrains or compels the specific performance of the

34


http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?referencepositiontype=T&docname=CACPS1094.5&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&referenceposition=SP%3b7fdd00001ca15&pbc=2CFC3CDA&tc=-1&ordoc=5062742
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?referencepositiontype=T&docname=CACPS1094.5&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&referenceposition=SP%3bae0d0000c5150&pbc=2CFC3CDA&tc=-1&ordoc=5062742
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?referencepositiontype=T&docname=CACPS1094.5&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&referenceposition=SP%3bae0d0000c5150&pbc=2CFC3CDA&tc=-1&ordoc=5062742

individual wastewater discharge permit, order, or other requirement imposed by this ordinance on activities of the
User. The Manager may also seek such other action as is appropriate for legal and/or equitable relief, including
a requirement for the User to conduct environmental remediation. A petition for injunctive relief shall not be a
bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action against a User.

13.2  Civil Penalties

A. Pursuant to California Government Code Sections 54739 and 54740 and the Clean Water Act, a User who has
violated, or continues to violate, any provision of this ordinance, an individual wastewater discharge permit, or
order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement may be civilly liable in a sum of not
to exceed twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) a day for each violation.

B. The District may petition the Superior Court to impose, assess, and recover the sums provided for in Section
13.2 A of this ordinance. In determining the amount, the court shall take into consideration all relevant
circumstances, including, but not limited to, the extent of harm caused by the violation, the economic benefit
derived through any noncompliance, the nature and persistence of the violation, the length of time over which the
violation occurs, and corrective action, if any, attempted or taken by the discharger.

C. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, all civil penalties imposed by the court for a violation of this
Section 13.2 shall be distributed to the District.

D. Remedies under this Section 13.2 are in addition to and do not supersede or limit any and all other remedies,
civil or criminal, but no liability shall be recoverable under this Section 13.2 for any violation for which
administrative penalties are recovered under California Government Code Section 54740.5.

13.3  Criminal Prosecution

A. A User who willfully or negligently discharges pollutants, except in compliance with waste discharge
requirements, or who willfully or negligently violates any order, prohibition, waste discharge requirement,
effluent standard, water quality related effluent standard, federal standard or performance, pretreatment or toxicity
standard or requirement, or who refuses to comply with the requirements adopted to control the disposal of
pollutants into wells, or who fails to comply with the conditions of their permit, compliance schedule or any
standard, condition or requirement set forth in this ordinance, shall be punished by a fine of not more than One
Thousand Dollars ($1,000) for each day such violation occurs, or by imprisonment for not more than thirty (30)
days, or both.

B. A User who knowingly makes any false statement, representation, record, report, plan or other document filed
with a Regional Water Quality Control Board or the State Water Resources Control Board, or who falsifies,
tampers with or knowingly renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method required by the laws of the State
of California, shall be punished by a fine of not more than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000), or by imprisonment
for not more than six (6) months, or both.

C. Ifthe District believes a criminal offense has been committed hereunder, it may refer the matter to the District
Attorney for prosecution.

13.4 Remedies Nonexclusive

The remedies provided for in this ordinance are not exclusive. The Manager may take any, all, or any combination
of these actions against a noncompliant User. Enforcement of pretreatment violations will generally be in
accordance with the District’s Enforcement Response Plan. However, the Manager may take other action against
any User when the circumstances warrant. Further, the Manager is empowered to take more than one enforcement
action against any noncompliant User.

35


http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CAGTS54740.5&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000211&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=1256030

SECTION 14 - SUPPLEMENTAL ENFORCEMENT ACTION

14.1  Payment of Outstanding Fees and Penalties

The Manager may decline to issue or reissue an individual wastewater discharge permit to any User who has
failed to pay any outstanding fees, fines or penalties incurred as a result of any provision of this ordinance, a
previous individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued hereunder.

14.2  Public Nuisances

A violation of any provision of this ordinance, an individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued
hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement is hereby declared a public nuisance and shall be
corrected or abated as directed by the Manager. Any person(s) creating a public nuisance shall be subject to the
provisions of California law governing such nuisances.

14.3 Performance Bonds

The Manager may decline to issue or reissue an individual wastewater discharge permit to any User who has
failed to comply in any material respect with any provisions of this ordinance, a previous individual wastewater
discharge permit or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or requirement, unless such User
first files a bond in a form satisfactory to the Manager, payable to the District in a sum not to exceed a value
determined by the Manager to be necessary to achieve consistent compliance.

SECTION 15 - AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES TO DISCHARGE VIOLATIONS

A User shall have such affirmative defenses to an enforcement action brought against it for noncompliance with
this ordinance as may be provided by State and Federal law.

SECTION 16—MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

16.1 Pretreatment Charges and Fees
The District may adopt reasonable fees for reimbursement of costs of setting up and operating the District’s
Pretreatment Program, which may include:

A. Fees for wastewater discharge permit applications including the cost of processing such applications;

B. Fees for monitoring, inspection, and surveillance procedures including the cost of collection and analyzing a
User’s discharge, and reviewing monitoring reports and certification statements submitted by Users;

C. Fees for reviewing and responding to accidental discharge procedures and construction;
D. Fees for filing appeals;

E. Fees to recover administrative and legal costs associated with the enforcement activity taken by the Manager
to address User noncompliance; and

F. Other fees as the District may deem necessary to carry out the requirements contained herein. These fees
relate solely to the matters covered by this ordinance and are separate from all other fees, fines, and penalties
chargeable by the District.

16.2  Severability

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held to be
unconstitutional, ineffective or in any manner in conflict with the laws of the United States, or of the State of
California, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Governing
Board of the District hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each section, subsection,

36



sentence, clause and phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection, sentence,
clause or phrase be declared unconstitutional, ineffective, or in any manner in conflict with the laws of the United
States or the State of California.

16.3 Publication

The Secretary of the District is hereby directed to cause a display advertisement relating to this ordinance to be
published once in a newspaper published and of general circulation in the District in accordance with Health &
Safety Code Section 6490.

16.4 Effective Date
This ordinance shall take effect and be in force one week following publication as provided in Section 16.3
hereof.

16.5 Repeal of Prior Ordinance
As of the effective date of this ordinance, District Ordinance No. 77 is repealed in its entirety.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of , 2020, by the following vote of the
Governing Board of the Goleta Sanitary District:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTENTIONS:
ABSENT:

Sharon Rose
Governing Board President
COUNTERSIGNED

Robert O. Mangus, Jr.,
Governing Board Secretary

37



ORDINANCE NO. 7792

ORDER OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT
ADOPTING AN ORDINANCE AND GENERAL REGULATION REGULATING THE USE
OF THE GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT SEWERAGE SYSTEM AND REPEALING

ORBINANCESNOS44-AND740RDINANCE NO. 77

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Goleta Sanitary District of the County of Santa

Barbara, State of California, that the following ordinance and general regulation be adopted:



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1 — GENERAL PROVISIONS

11
1.2
1.3
1.4

Purpose and Policy
Administration
Abbreviations

Definitions

Section 2 — PUBLIC SEWERS REQUIRED

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5
2.6
2.7
2.8
2.9

Introduction

Sanitation

Wastewater

Buildings

Compliance with Notice

Private System

Exemption

Private System Failures

Waiver of 200-foot Requirement

Section 3 - BUILDING SEWERS and CONNECTIONS

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5
3.6
3.7
3.8

Introduction

Connection Permission

Connection to Main

Costs

Separate Laterals

Use of Existing Lateral by New Building
Specifications

Back Water Valve — Back Flow Preventor

3.9  Compliance with Standards

3.910 Classes of Service

3.11

Capacity Fee

Section 4 — GENERAL SEWER USE REQUIREMENTS

4.1
4.2

Prohibited Discharge Standards
National Categorical Pretreatment Standards

1



4.3  State Pretreatment Standards
4.4  Local Limits
Section4-{Continued)

45  District’s Right of Revision
4.6  Dilution

4.7  Bypass Definitions

4.8  Bypass Prohibited

4.9  Bypass Notifications

Section 5 — PRETREATMENT OF WASTEWATER

5.1
5.2
5.3
5.4
5.5

Pretreatment Facilities

Additional Pretreatment Measures

Accidental Discharge/Slug Discharge Control Plans
Trucked or Hauled Wastewater

Pollution Prevention, Waste Minimization, Recycling, and Treatment

Section 6 — INDIVIDUAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMITS

6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4
6.5
6.6
6.7
6.8

Wastewater Analysis

Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Requirement

Individual Wastewater Discharge Permitting: Existing Connections
Individual Wastewater Discharge Permitting: New Connections
Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Application Contents
Application Signatories and Certifications

Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Decisions

Industrial Wastewater Discharge Permit Classifications

Section 7 — INDIVIDUAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT ISSUANCE

7.1
7.2
7.3
7.4
7.5
7.6
7.7

Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Duration
Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Contents
Permit Modification

Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer
Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Revocation
Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Reissuance

Regulation of Waste Received from Other Jurisdictions



Section 8 — REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

8.1  Baseline Monitoring Reports

8.2  Compliance Schedule Progress Reports

8.3  Reports on Compliance with Categorical Pretreatment Standard Deadline
8.4  Periodic Compliance Reports

8.5  Reports of Changed Conditions

8.6  Reports of Potential Problems

8.7  Reports from Unpermitted Users

8.8  Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling and Reporting

8.9  Discharge of Hazardous Waste - Notification of Unintentional Discharge

8.10 Analytical Requirements
8.11 Sample Collection

8.12 Date of Receipt of Reports
8.13 Recordkeeping

8.14  Certification Statements

Section 9 — COMPLIANCE MONITORING
9.1 Right of Entry: Inspection and Sampling

9.2 Inspection Warrants

Section 10 - CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Section 11 - PUBLICATION OF USERS IN SIGNIFICANT NONCOMPLIANCE

Section 12 — ADMINISTRATIVE ENFORCEMENT REMEDIES
12.1 Notification of Violation

12.2  Consent Orders

12.3  Show Cause Hearing

12.4  Compliance Orders

12,5 Cease and Desist Orders
12.6  Administrative Penalties
12.7 Emergency Suspensions
12.8 Termination of Discharge



Section 13 — JUDICIAL ENFORCEMENT REMEDIES

131
13.2
13.3
13.4

Injunctive Relief
Civil Penalties
Criminal Prosecution

Remedies Nonexclusive

Section 14 — SUPPLEMENTAL ENFORCEMENT ACTION

141
14.2
14.3

Payment of Outstanding Fees and Penalties
Public Nuisances

Performance Bonds

Section 15 — AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES TO DISCHARGE VIOLATIONS

Section 16 — MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

16.1
16.2
16.3
16.4
16.5

Pretreatment Charges and Fees
Severability

Publication

Effective Date

Repeal of Prior Ordinance




SECTION 1 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Purpose and Policy

This ordinance sets forth uniform requirements for Users of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works of the
Goleta Sanitary District (the District) and enables the District to comply with all applicable State and
Federal laws, including the Clean Water Act (33 United States Code section 1251 et seq.) and the General
Pretreatment Regulations (Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations Part 403).

The objectives of this ordinance are:

A. To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the Publicly Owned Treatment Works, POTW,
that will interfere with its operation;

B. To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the Publicly Owned Treatment Works that will
pass through the Publicly Owned Treatment Works, inadequately treated, into receiving waters, or
otherwise be incompatible with the Publicly Owned Treatment Works;

C. To protect both (i) Publicly Owned Treatment Works personnel who may be affected by
wastewater and sludge in the course of their employment and (ii) the general public;

D. To promote reuse and recycling of-industrial wastewater and sludge from the Publicly Owned
Treatment Works; and

E. To enable the District to comply with its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
permit conditions, sludge use and disposal requirements, and any other Federal or State laws to
which the Publicly Owned Treatment Works is subject.

This ordinance (i) shall apply to all Users of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works; (ii) authorizes the
issuance of individual wastewater discharge permits; (iii) provides for monitoring, compliance, and
enforcement activities; (iv)establishes administrative review procedures; and (v) requires User reporting.

1.2 Administration

Except as otherwise provided herein, the Manager shall administer, implement, and enforce the provisions
of this ordinance. Any powers granted to or dutles imposed upon the Manager may be delegated by the
Manager to : other duly authorized District
employees.

1.3 Abbreviations
The following abbreviations, when used in this ordinance, District permits, reports and/or correspondence
shall have the designated meanings:

BOD - Biochemical Oxygen Demand NOV — Notice of Violation

BMP — Best Management Practice NPDES — National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
BMR — Baseline Monitoring Report System

CFR — Code of Federal Regulations POTW — Publicly Owned Treatment Works

CIU — Categorical Industrial User RCRA — Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
EPA — U.S. Environmental Protection Agency SIU — Significant Industrial User

ERP — Enforcement Response Plan SNC - Significant Non-compliance

FOG — Fats, Oil & Grease TDS — Total Dissolved Solids

FSE — Food Service Establishment TSS — Total Suspended Solids

GPD — gallons per day ug/L — micrograms per liter

IU — Industrial User U.S.C. — United States Code

mg/L — milligrams per liter



1.4 Definitions
Unless a provision explicitly states otherwise, the following terms and phrases, as used in this ordinance,
District permits, reports and/or correspondence shall have the meanings hereinafter designated.

A. Act or the Act. The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known as the Clean Water Act, as amended,
33 U.S.C. section 1251 et seq.

B. Administrative Penalty. A civil penalty (monies) for violating any portion(s) of this ordinance or the User’s

Dermit A-='='—='=' ---- e e LR e LR S et =—--.—5"5'='='—75?-="5——g'='='--—f—7e'=“-§'—;'e'='-5

C. Approval Authority. The California Regional Water Quality Control Board Central Coast Reqgion.

D. Authorized or Duly AutherizedRepresentative Authorized Representative of the User.
(1) If the User is a corporation:

(a) The president, secretary, treasurer, or a vice-president of the corporation in charge of a principal
business function, or any other person who performs similar policy or decision-making functions for the
corporation; or

(b) The manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating facilities, provided the manager
is authorized to make management decisions that govern the operation of the regulated facility including
having the explicit or implicit duty of making major capital investment recommendations, and initiate and
direct other comprehensive measures to assure long-term environmental compliance with environmental
laws and regulations; can ensure that the necessary systems are established or actions taken to gather
complete and accurate information for individual wastewater discharge permit requirements; and where
authority to sign documents has been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate
procedures.

(2) If the User is a partnership or sole proprietorship: a general partner or proprietor, respectively.

(3) If the User is a Federal, State, or local governmental facility: a director or highest official appointed or
designated to oversee the operation and performance of the activities of the government facility, or their
designee.

(4) The individuals described in paragraphs 1 through 3, above, may designate a Duly Authorized
Representative if the authorization is in writing, the authorization specifies the individual or position
responsible for the overall operation of the facility from which the discharge originates or having overall
responsibility for environmental matters for the company or facility, and the written authorization is
submitted to the District.

DE. Biochemical Oxygen Demand or BOD. The quantity of oxygen utilized in the biochemical oxidation of
organic matter under standard laboratory procedures for five (5) days at 20 degrees centigrade, usually
expressed as a concentration (e.g., mg/l).

EF. Best Management Practices or BMPs. Schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, maintenance
procedures, and other management practices to implement the prohibitions listed in Section 4.1 A and B of this
ordinance [40 CFR 403.5(a)(1) and (b)]. BMPs include treatment requirements, operating procedures, and
practices to control plant site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw materials
storage. BMPs also include alternative means (i.e., management plans) of complying with, or in place of certain
established categorical Pretreatment Standards and effluent limits.




FG. Categorical Pretreatment Standard or Categorical Standard. Any regulation containing pollutant
discharge limits promulgated by EPA in accordance with sections 307(b) and (c) of the Act (33 U.S.C. section
1317) that apply to a specific category of Users and that appear in 40 CFR Chapter I, Subchapter N, Parts 405-471.

H. Categorical Industrial User. An Industrial User subject to a categorical Pretreatment Standard or
Categorical Standard.

I. Chemical Oxygen Demand. A measure of the oxygen required to oxidize all compounds, both organic and
inorganic, in water.

J.  Control Authority. The Goleta Sanitary District.

K. Daily Maximum. The arithmetic average of all effluent samples for a pollutant collected during a calendar
day.

L. Daily Maximum Limit. The maximum allowable discharge limit of a pollutant during a calendar day.
Where Daily Maximum Limits are expressed in units of mass, the daily discharge is the total mass discharged
over the course of the day. Where Daily Maximum Limits are expressed in terms of a concentration, the daily
discharge is the arithmetic average measurement of the pollutant concentration derived from all measurements
taken that day.

M. District. The Goleta Sanitary District or the Governing Board of the Goleta Sanitary District.

N. Enforcement Response Plan. A plan including detailed procedures indicating how the District will
investigate and respond to instances of industrial-user-roncomphiancenoncompliant discharge.

O. Environmental Protection Agency or EPA. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency or, where
appropriate, the Regional Water Management Division Director, the Regional Administrator, or other duly
authorized official of said agency.

P. Eguivalent Residential Unit. ArThe annual YWAATPwastewater treatment plant capacity allocation for one
single family residence egual-te-74.095-gaHens-used to calculate sewer use fees based on the industrial user
category.

PQ. Existing Source. Any source of discharge that is not a “New Source.”

OR. Grab Sample. A sample that is taken from a wastestream without regard to the flow in the wastestream
and over a period of time not to exceed fifteen (15) minutes.

RS. Gravity Separation Interceptor. A tank or basin in which Wastewaterwastewater is held for a period of
time during which the heavier solids settle to the bottom and the lighter materials float to the water surface.
Gravity Separation Interceptor shall also mean a settling tank or sedimentation basin that is designed to treat the
Pollutant(s) of concern.

ST. Grease Interceptor. A plumbing device designed to separate and retain most fats, oils, grease and solids,
excluding sanitary wastes, before entering the public sewer collection system.

FU. Hazardous Waste. A waste that meets any of the criteria for identification of a Hazardous Waste adopted
by any Federal or State agency, whichever criteria is most stringent.

U

V. Hexane Extractable Material (HEM). Material extracted by hexane using EPA procedure 1664 or as
modified by EPA or found by EPA to be equivalent. The HEM represents polar and non-polar organic oil and
grease compounds, often referred to as oil and grease.

W. Indirect Discharge or Discharge. The introduction of pollutants into the POTW from any nondomestic
source.




V--X. Infectious Waste. Wastes which contain pathogenic organisms that can invade the tissues of the body
and cause disease.

WY, Instantaneous Limit. The maximum concentration of a pollutant allowed to be discharged at any time,
determined from the analysis of any discrete or composited sample collected, independent of the industrial flow
rate and the duration of the sampling event.

XZ. Interference. A discharge that, alone or in conjunction with a discharge or discharges from other sources,
inhibits or disrupts the POTW, its treatment processes or operations or its sludge processes, use or disposal and
therefore is a cause of a violation of the District’s NPDES permit or of the prevention of sewage sludge use or
disposal in compliance with any of the following statutory/regulatory provisions or permits issued thereunder, or
any more stringent State or local regulations: section 405 of the Act; the Solid Waste Disposal Act, including
Title Il commonly referred to as the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA); any State regulations
contained in any State sludge management plan prepared pursuant to Subtitle D of the Solid Waste Disposal Act;
the Clean Air Act; the Toxic Substances Control Act; and the Marine Protection, Research, and Sanctuaries Act.

¥—AA. Local Limits. Specific discharge limits developed and enforced by the District upon industrial or
commercial facilities to implement the general and specific discharge prohibitions listed in 40 CFR 403.5(a)(1)
and (b), as set forth in Section 4.4 of this ordinance.

Z-BB. Manager. The person designated by the District to supervise the operation of the POTW, and who is
charged with certain duties and responsibilities by this ordinance._The term also means a Duly Authorized
Representative of the Manager.

AA-CC. Lower Explosive Limit. The point where the concentration of a gas in air is sufficient to result in an
explosion if an ignition source is present.

BB-

DD. Medical Waste. Isolation wastes, infectious agents, human blood and blood products, pathological wastes,
sharps, body parts, contaminated bedding, surgical wastes, potentially contaminated laboratory wastes, and
dialysis wastes.

EE. Monthly Average. The sum of all “daily discharges” measured during a calendar month divided by the
number of “daily discharges” measured during that month.

FF.-Monthly Average Limit. The highest allowable average of “daily discharges” over a calendar month,
calculated as the sum of all “daily discharges” measured during a calendar month divided by the number of “daily
discharges” measured during that month.

GG. —New Source.

(1) Any building, structure, facility, or installation from which there is (or may be) a discharge of pollutants, the
construction of which commenced after the publication of proposed Pretreatment Standards under section 307(c)
of the Act that will be applicable to such source if such Standards are thereafter promulgated in accordance with
that section, provided that:

(a) The building, structure, facility, or installation is constructed at a site at which no other source is located;
or

(b) The building, structure, facility, or installation totally replaces the process or production equipment that
causes the discharge of pollutants at an Existing Source; or

(c) The production or wastewater generating processes of the building, structure, facility, or installation are
substantially independent of an Existing Source at the same site. In determining whether these are
substantially independent, factors such as the extent to which the new facility is integrated with the existing



plant, and the extent to which the new facility is engaged in the same general type of activity as the Existing
Source, should be considered.

(2) Construction on a site at which an Existing Source is located results in a modification rather than a New
Source if the construction does not create a new building, structure, facility, or installation meeting the criteria
of Section (1)(b) or (c) above but otherwise alters, replaces, or adds to existing process or production
equipment.

(3) Construction of a New Source as defined under this paragraph has commenced if the owner or operator has:
(a) Begun, or caused to begin, as part of a continuous onsite construction program

(i) any placement, assembly, or installation of facilities or equipment; or

(ii) significant site preparation work including clearing, excavation, or removal of existing
buildings, structures, or facilities which is necessary for the placement, assembly, or installation
of new source facilities or equipment; or

(b) Entered into a binding contractual obligation for the purchase of facilities or equipment which is
intended to be used in its operation within a reasonable time. Options to purchase or contracts which can be
terminated or modified without substantial loss, and contracts for feasibility, engineering, and design studies
do not constitute a contractual obligation under this paragraph.

FFHH. NPDES Permit. A National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit, which is the regulatory
document issued by the State of California as authorized by the EPA.

GGll. Noncontact Cooling Water. Water used for cooling that does not come into direct contact with any raw
material, intermediate product, waste product, or finished product.

HHJJ. Outside Contributor. Another municipality, governmental agency or User located outside the
District’s direct jurisdiction that contributes wastewater to the District’s treatment facility and/or POTW.

KK. Pass Through. A discharge which exits the POTW into waters of the United States in quantities or
concentrations which, alone or in conjunction with a discharge or discharges from other sources, is a cause of a
violation of any requirement of the District’s NPDES permit, including an increase in the magnitude or duration
of a violation.

HLL. Person. Any individual, partnership, copartnership, firm, company, corporation, association, joint stock
company, trust, estate, governmental entity, or any other legal entity; or their legal representatives, agents, or
assigns. This definition includes all Federal, State, and local governmental entities.

JMM. pH. A measure of the acidity or alkalinity of a solution, expressed in standard units.

KKNN. Pollutant. Dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, filter backwash, sewage, garbage, sewage
sludge, munitions, Medical Wastes, chemical wastes, biological materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or
discarded equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt, municipal, agricultural and industrial wastes, and certain
characteristics of wastewater (e.g., pH, temperature, TDS, TSS, turbidity, color, BOD, chemical oxygen demand
toxicity, chlorides or odor).

LLOO. Pretreatment. The reduction of the amount of pollutants, the elimination of pollutants, or the alteration
of the nature of pollutant properties in wastewater prior to, or in lieu of, introducing such pollutants into the
POTW. This reduction or alteration can be obtained by physical, chemical, or biological processes, except
bacterial enzymes; by process changes; or by other means, except by diluting the concentration of the pollutants
unless allowed by an applicable Pretreatment Standard.

MMPP. Pretreatment Requirements. Any substantive or procedural requirement related to pretreatment
imposed on a User, other than a Pretreatment Standard.




NNOQQ. Pretreatment Standards or Standards. Pretreatment Standards shall mean prohibited discharge
standards, categorical Pretreatment Standards, Local Limits and any regulation containing pollutant discharge
limits promulgated by the EPA in accordance with Section 307(b) and (c) et seq. of the Act which applies to
industrial users. These include “categorical standards” which establish specific concentration limits for certain
pollutants and total prohibitions of other pollutants as specified in 40 CFR 403 et seq., as well as Local Limits
adopted by the Geleta-Sanitary-District including, but not limited to, those discharge limitations contained in this
ordinance.

OORR. Prohibited Discharge Standards or Prohibited Discharges. Absolute prohibitions against the
discharge of certain substances; these prohibitions appear in Section 4.1 of this ordinance.

PRSS. Publicly Owned Treatment Works or POTW. A treatment works, as defined by section 212 of the
Act (33 U.S.C. section 1292), which is owned by the District. This definition includes any devices or systems
used in the collection, storage, treatment, recycling, and reclamation of sewage or industrial wastes of a liquid
nature and any conveyances, which convey wastewater to a treatment plant.

QOTT. RCRA. Resource Conservation and Recovery Act which is defined in 42 U.S.C. 6901 et seq.

RRUU. Sampling Manhole. A structure provided at the user’s expense for the District or user to measure and
record wastewater constituent mass, concentrations, collect a representative sample, or provide access to plug or
terminate the discharge.

SSVV. Secondary Containment. A second barrier or an outer wall of a double enclosure, which is designed
to contain any leak or spill from a storage container.

FFWW. Septic Tank Waste. Any sewage from holding tanks such as vessels, chemical toilets, campers,
trailers, and septic tanks.

UUXX. Sewage. Human excrement and gray water (household showers, dishwashing operations, etc.).

VAZLYY. Significant Industrial User (S1U).
Exceptas-provided-inparagraphs{3)-and{4)-of this-Section\A4-a A Significant Industrial User is:

(1) An Industrial User subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards; or
(2) An Industrial User that:

(a) Discharges an average of twenty-five thousand (25,000) gallons per day or more of process
wastewater to the POTW (excluding sanitary, noncontact cooling and boiler blowdown wastewater);

(b) Contributes a process wastestream which makes up five (5) percent or more of the average dry
weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the POTW treatment plant; or

(c) Is designated as such by the District on the basis that it has a reasonable potential for adversely
affecting the POTW’s operation or for violating any Pretreatment Standard or Requirement.




WAZZ. Slug Load or Slug Discharge. Any discharge at a flow rate or concentration, which could cause a
violation of the prohibited discharge standards in Section 4.1 of this ordinance. A Slug Discharge is any Discharge
of a non-routine, episodic nature, including but not limited to an accidental spill or a non-customary batch
Discharge, which has a reasonable potential to cause Interference or Pass Through, or in any other way violate
the POTW’s regulations, Local Limits or Permit conditions.

e
aaa. Slug Discharge Control Plan. A plan designed to prevent the uncontrolled discharge of raw pollutants into
the POTW.

¥¥bbb. Storm Water. Any flow occurring during or following any form of natural precipitation, and resulting
from such precipitation, including snowmelt.

ZZcce. Total Suspended Solids or Suspended Solids. The total suspended matter that floats on the surface
of, or is suspended in, water, wastewater, or other liquid, and that is removable by laboratory filtering.

aaaddd. Toxic Pollutant. Pollutants or combination of Pollutants, including disease-causing agents, which after
discharge and upon exposure,_ingestion, inhalation, or assimilation into any organism either directly from the
environment or indirectly by ingestion through the food chain, will, on the basis of information available to the
Administrator of the EPA, cause death, disease, behavioral abnormalities, cancer, genetic mutations, physiological
malfunctions, or malfunctions in reproduction or physical deformations in such organisms or their offspring. Such
Pollutants that have been identified as toxic are listed in 40 CFR 122, Appendix D.

bbbeee. Twenty-five percent (25%) Rule. Requirement for grease interceptors to be maintained such that the
combined FOG and solids accumulation does not exceed 25% of the design hydraulic depth of the grease
interceptor. This is to ensure that the minimum hydraulic retention time and required available hydraulic volume

is maintained to effectively intercept and retain FOG so it is netdischargednot discharged to the publiesewerpublic
sewer collection system.

eeefff. User or Industrial User. A source of indirect discharge.

dddggg. Wastewater. Liquid and water-carried industrial wastes and sewage from residential dwellings,
commercial buildings, industrial and manufacturing facilities, and institutions, whether treated or untreated, which
are contributed to the POTW.

eeehhh. Wastewater Treatment Plant or Treatment Plant. That portion of the POTW which is designed to
provide treatment of municipal sewage and industrial waste.

SECTION 2 - PUBLIC SEWERS REQUIRED

2.1 Introduction
This Section 2 is applicable only to areas within the boundaries of the District.

2.2 Sanitation

11



No person shall place, deposit, or discharge or permit to be placed, deposited, or discharged in an unsanitary
manner upon public or private property within the District, any human or animal excrement, garbage, or other
objectionable waste.

2.3 Wastewater
No person shall discharge or permit to be discharged any sewage to any natural outlet within the District.

2.4 Buildings

The owners of all houses, buildings, or properties used for human occupancy, employment, recreation, or other
purposes and located within two hundred (200) feet of a public street, alley, or right-of-way where a public sewer
exists or is installed in the future shall within ninety (90) days after date of written notice to do so, at such owner’s
expense, install suitable toilets and sanitary facilities in said houses, buildings, or properties situated within the
District and connect such facilities to a public sewer, except where said houses, buildings, or properties are
separated from the public sewer by U.S. Highway 101, a railway right-of-way, watercourse, lagoon, or other
natural barrier.

2.5  Compliance with Notice
It shall be unlawful for any person to maintain within the District any privy, cesspool, septic tank, or other facility
for disposal of sewage ninety (90) days after the date of written notice provided for in Section 2.4 of this ordinance.

2.6 Private System

It shall be unlawful for any person to construct within the District any privy, cesspool, septic tank, or other facility
for disposal of sewage within two hundred (200) feet of a public street, alley, or right-of-way where a public sewer
exists at the time of such construction, except where said houses, buildings, or properties are separated from the
public sewer by U.S. Highway 101, a railway right-of-way, watercourse, lagoon, or other natural barrier.

2.7  Exemption
Where public sewers are not available within two hundred (200) feet of a house, building, or property situated
within the District, the owner may install facilities for disposal of sewage temporarily until public sewers are
extended to within two hundred (200) feet of said house, building, or property; provided that any such facilities
shall meet the standards of and be approved by the Health Departments of the County of Santa Barbara and the
State of California.

2.8  Private System Failures

In the event any owner of any house, building, property used for human occupancy, employment, recreation, or
other purpose situated within the District, receives notice from the District or the Health Department of the County
of Santa Barbara that any privy, cesspool, septic tank, or other facility for disposal of sewage is not operating to
the satisfaction of the District or said Health Department, then, and in that event such owner shall, if public sewers
are not available within two hundred (200) feet of said house, building, or property immediately repair said privy,
cesspool, septic tank, or other facility for disposal of sewage to the satisfaction of the District and the Health
Department of the County of Santa Barbara. If not so repaired, any use of said facilities shall be unlawful.

2.9  Waiver of 200-foot Requirement
The Governing Board of the BistrictmayDistrict may at its sole discretion, by minute order of said Board, approve
an exemption given to any facility meeting the conditions of Section 2.7 of this ordinance even after a public
sewer is installed within the 200-foot zone.

SECTION 3 - BUILDING SEWERS AND CONNECTIONS

3.1 Introduction
This Section 3 is applicable only to areas within the boundaries of the District.

12



3.2 Connection Permission
No unauthorized person shall uncover, make any connections with or openings into, use, alter, or disturb any
public sewer or appurtenance thereof without first obtaining a written permit from the Manager.

3.3 Connection to Main

All connections to the public sewer shall be made at the WYE branch where possible, and by workmen
experienced and competent in making such connections. In the event it is not possible to make a connection at a
WYE branch, then the connection shall be made in the manner prescribed by the Manager. The property owner is
responsible for maintaining the building sewer from the building up to and including the WYE connection.

3.4  Costs

All costs and expenses incident to the installation, connection, and maintenance thereof, of the building sewer
shall be borne by the owner. The owner shall indemnify the District from any loss or damage that may directly
or indirectly arise from the installation or maintenance of the building sewer.

3.5  Separate Laterals

A separate and independent building sewer shall be provided for every building; except where one building stands
at the rear of another on the same lot and is under the same ownership, the building sewer from the front building
may be extended to the rear building and the whole considered as one building sewer, as in the case of a guest
cottage or apartment. Prior to the approval of a subdivision or lot split, the owner of the property shall make
provision for the installation of a separate building sewer for each lot. Each lot shall be separately and
independently connected to the District sewer facilities.

3.6 Use of Existing Lateral by New Building
OldExisting building sewers may be used in connection with new buildings only when they are found on
examination and test by the Manager to meet all requirements of this Section 3.

3.7 Specifications

The building sewer shall be
ASIM%B@G#I%&HGH—QQ—]@A‘FQ—G#EGH&I—%GI—W& smtable materlal permltted in the current ed|t|on of the
District’s Standard Specifications for Design and Construction of Sanitary Sewers. Joints shall be tight and
waterproof. Any part of the building sewer that is located within ten (10) feet of a water service pipe shall be
constructed of cast iron soil pipe with coupling joints: or as allowed by the California Plumbing Code, current
edition.  All sewers shall be constructed in accordance to and in compliance with the current edition of the
District’s Specifications for Design and Construction of Sanitary Sewers.

38

3.8 Back Water Valve — Back Flow Preventor

In every building where the floor elevation is lower than the manhole rim elevation of the upstream manhole
to the connection for the building, the property owner shall be responsible for, and shall make provision for
the installation, maintenance and repair of a back-water valve to prevent the flow of sewage from the main
line into the building through the lateral.

3.9  Compliance with Standards

In every building hereafter erected within the limits of the District, all plumbing fixtures shall conform to the
provisions of the ordinances and codes of the City of Goleta, County of Santa Barbara, State of California,
applying thereto.

3.910 Classes of Service

There shall be four (4) classes of building sewer connection permits:— (1) residential, (2) commercial

establishments, (3) establishments producing industrial wastes, and (4) institutional facilities. In all cases, the
13



owner or his agent shall make application on a special form furnished by the District. The permit application
shall be supplemented by plans, specifications, and other information considered pertinent in the judgment of the
Manager. A permit and inspection fee for each connection to the sewer lines of the District shall be paid to the
District at the time the application is filed.

3.11 Capacity Fee

A wastewater capacity fee shall be paid by each User as established from time to time by the District to cover the
cost of providing capacity in the POTW. The wastewater capacity fee shall be payable prior to the time a new
User commences a use of the POTW. The District will calculate the wastewater capacity fee in accordance with
Capacity Ordinance(s), as said ordinances may be amended, replaced or superseded in the future.

SECTION 4 - GENERAL SEWER USE REQUIREMENTS

4.1 Prohibited Discharge Standards

A. General Prohibitions. No User shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the POTW any pollutant or
wastewater which causes Pass Through or Interference. These general prohibitions apply to all Users of the
POTW whether or not they are subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards or any other National, State, or local
Pretreatment Standards or Requirements.

B. Specific Prohibitions. No User shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the POTW the following
pollutants, substances, or wastewater:

(1) Explosive Mixtures. Liquids, solids or gases which by reason of their nature or quantity are, or may
be, sufficient either alone or by interaction with other substances to cause fire or explosion or be injurious
in any other way to the sewerage facilities or to the operation of the system, in accordance with 40 CFR
403.5(b)(1); andPeHutantsand Pollutants which create a fire or explosive hazard in the POTW, including,
but not limited to, wastestreams with a closed-cup flashpoint of less than 140 degrees F (60 degrees C) using
the test methods specified in 40 CFR 261.21. Prohibited materials_may include, but are not limited to:
gasoline, kerosene, naphtha, benzene, toluene, xylene, ethers, alcohols, ketones, aldehydes, peroxides,
chlorates, perchlorates, bromates, carbides, hydrides, sulfides or any other substances which the District,
the State or EPA has notified the user is a fire hazard or a hazard to the system;

(2) Corrosive Wastes. Wastewater having a pH less than 6.0 or more than 9:511, or otherwise causing
corrosive structural damage to the POTW or equipment. Prohibited materials include, but are not limited to,
acids, caustics, sulfides, concentrated chloride and fluoride compounds, and substances which will react
with water to form acidic products.

(3) Solid or Viscous Wastes. Solid or viscous substances which will or may cause obstruction to the flow
in a sewer, or otherwise interfere with the proper operation of the wastewater treatment system, but in no
case solids greater than one-half (1/2) inch in any dimension. Prohibited materials may include, but are not
limited to, grease, uncomminuted garbage, animal guts or tissues, paunch manure, bones, hair, hides or
fleshings, entrails, whole blood, feathers, ashes, cinders, sand, spent lime, stone or marble dust, polishing
compounds, resin beads, metal, glass, straw, shavings, grass clippings, rags, spent grains, spent hops, waste
paper, wood, plastic, tar, asphalt residues, residues from refining or processing of fuel or lubricating oil, and
similar substances;

(4) Excessive Discharge Rate.

a. Hydraulic: A rate of flow which results from the averaging of the flow rates over a period of 15
consecutive minutes and which is greater than five (5) times the twenty-four (24) hour total volume
expressed in million gallons per day (MGD) shall be considered excessive.

b. Loadings: Those concentrations of pollutants such as toxics, BOD’s, suspended solids, grease and
oil, and other constituents, which in a grab sample are greater by a factor of five (5) than the average 24-

14



hour concentration allowed in the Industrial Wastewater Discharge Permit or that concentration
permitted in the effluent of the treatment plant to the ocean. Any greater concentration will be considered
as excessive.

c. Interference: Under no conditions shall any pollutant, including oxygen-demanding pollutants
(BOD, etc.), be released in a discharge at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which, either singly
or by interaction with other pollutants, will cause Interference with the POTW.

d. Unpolluted waters: Any unpolluted waters including, but not limited to storm water, surface water,
ground water, artesian well water, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, swimming pool drainage,
condensate, deionized water, noncontact (once through) cooling water, and unpolluted wastewater which
will increase the hydraulic load on the POTW, unless specifically authorized by the Manager.

(5) Heat. Wastewater having a temperature greater than 104120 degrees F (4049 degrees C), or which will
inhibit biological activity in the treatment plant resulting in Interference, but in no case heat in wastewater
quantities which causes the temperature at the introduction into the treatment plant to exceed 104 degrees F
(40 degrees C);

(6) Eats, Oils and Grease.

a. Oil and grease concentrations or amounts from industrial facilities violating federal pretreatment
standards, or local standards, whichever is more stringent.

b. Wastewater from industrial facilities containing floatable fats, wax, grease or oils.

c. Wax, grease, non-biodegradable cutting oil, or oil concentration of mineral or petroleum origin (non-
living sources) of more than 100 mg/L whether emulsified or not, or containing substances which may
solidify or become viscous at temperatures between 32 and 150 degrees F (0 and 65 C) at the point of
discharge into the system or in amounts that will cause Interference or Pass Through.

d. Total fat, wax, grease, or oil concentration of animal or vegetable origin (living sources) of more than
100 mg/L, whether emulsified or not, or containing substances which may solidify or become viscous at
temperatures between 32- and 150--degrees F (0 and 65 C) at the point of discharge into the system or in
amounts that will cause interference or pass through.

e. No additives may be introduced into a wastewater system for the purpose of emulsifying FOG or
biologically/chemically treating FOG for remediation or as a supplement to interceptor maintenance,
unless specific written authorization from the District is obtained. To ensure that the minimum hydraulic
retention time and required available hydraulic volume is maintained to effectively intercept and retain
FOG so it is notdischargednot discharged to the District’s wastewater collection system, pretreatment
interceptors shall be maintained such that the combined FOG and solids accumulation does not exceed
25% of the design hydraulic depth of the interceptor; All FOG pretreatment interceptors shall be
maintained in accordance with the Twenty-five percent (25%) Rule

treatmentsystem:(7) Toxic Substances. Any pollutants which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors,
or fumes within the POTW in a quantity that may cause acute worker health and safety problems;

(8) Nuisance. -Any waste which will cause, threaten to cause, or is capable of causing either alone or by
interaction with other substances a detrimental environmental impact or a nuisance in the waters of the state
or a condition unacceptable to any public agency having regulatory jurisdiction over the District;.

(9) Trucked or Hauled Waste. Any trucked or hauled pollutants are prohibited, except at discharge points
designated by the District;

15



(10) Noxious Material. Noxious or malodorous liquids, gases, solids, or other wastewater which, either
singly or by interaction with other wastes, are sufficient to create a public nuisance or a hazard to life, or to
prevent entry into the sewers for maintenance or repair;

(11) Discolored Materials. Wastewater which imparts color which cannot be removed by the treatment

process such as, but not I|m|ted to, dye wastes and vegetable tanning solutlons WhICh consequently causes

Of the D1str1ct s NPDES perm1t

(12) kmproperly Shredded Garbage. Garbage that has not been ground or comminuted to such a degree
that all particles will be carried freely in suspension under flow conditions normally prevailing the public
sewers, with no particle greater than one-half (1/2) inch in any dimension;

(13) Radloactlve Wastes

RadwaeuvewastesRadloactlve Wastes or |sotopes are not to exceed I|m|ts spe0|f|ed in Sectlons 30285 and

30287 of the California Administrative Code;

(14) Reclamation or Reuse. Any waste which will cause, threaten to cause, or is capable of causing either
alone or by interaction with other substances the District’s effluent or any other product of the treatment
process, residues, sludges, or scum to be unsuitable for reclamation and reuse or to interfere with the
reclamation process;

(15) Suspended-Sehids-Industrial Residues. Sludges, screenings, or other residues from the
pretreatment of industrial wastes;

(16)- Medical/Infectious Wastes, except as specifically authorized by the Manager in an individual
wastewater discharge permit;

(18) InterferenceFoaming Agents: Detergents, surface-active agents, or other substances which that might

cause excessive foaming in the POTW,

(19) Perchloroethylene: Perchloroethylene and its derivatives and like compounds (collectively, “PCE”),
including, but not limited to, chemicals and/or solvents used in the dry--cleaning process, by automobile
and mechanical repair facilities and other industries, where such chemicals and/or solvents contain PCE.
Any discharge containing PCE shall be subject to the same concentration limitations that apply to drinking
water within the jurisdiction where the User is located;

(20) Volatile Organic Compounds: Volatile organic compounds found in petroleum derivatives such as
gasoline and diesel fuel, including, but not limited to, benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene and xylenes
(collectively “VOCs”). Any discharge containing VOCs shall be subject to the same concentration
limitations that apply to drinking water within the jurisdiction where the User is located,;

(21) Prohibition on Hydrolysate: No person shall discharge hydrolysate wastes or wastewater resulting
from alkaline hydrolysis/resomation either directly or indirectly to the sanitary sewer except as specifically
authorized by the Manager in an individual wastewater discharge permit.

16



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Volatile_organic_compound
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Petroleum
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Benzene
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Toluene
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ethylbenzene
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Xylene

Storage of Prohibited Waste: Pollutants, substances, or wastewater prohibited by this Section 4.1 shall not be
processed or stored in such a manner that they could be discharged to the POTW.

4.2 National Categorical Pretreatment Standards
Users must comply with the categorical Pretreatment Standards found at 40 CFR Chapter I, Subchapter N, Parts
405-471. When wastewater subject to a categorical Pretreatment Standard is mixed with wastewater not
regulated by the same Standard, the Manager shall impose the combined wastestream formula to calculate an
alternate or adjusted categorical limit inaceordaneein accordance with 40 CFR 403.6(e).

4.3  State Pretreatment Standards
The EPA has delegated the responsibility to oversee Federal pretreatment programs to the California State Water
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and Regional Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCB). The SWRCB and
RWQCB are responsible for the review and approval of the District’s pretreatment program. Users must comply
with California pretreatment requirements as set forth in the District’s NPDES Permit.

4.4 Local Limits
A. The District is authorized to establish Local Limits pursuant to 40 CFR 403.5(c). The following Pollutant
limits are established to protect against Pass Through and Interference. No person shall discharge wastewater
containing in excess of the following MaximumbimitsMaximum Limits; provided, however, that where more
restrictive limitations are imposed by Permit or Federal Pretreatment Standards, the more restrictive standards
shall apply:

Constituent Concentration, mo/L Instantaneous Maximum, mag/L
Conventional Pollutants:
Ammonia (N) 662 n/a
Biochemical Oxygen Demand 1,880* n/a
Total Suspended Solids 2,031 n/a
Oil & Grease 100 200
Priority Pollutant Metals:
Arsenic 0.11 0.20
Cadmium 0.13 0.28
) on !

Chromium 5.3 21
Copper 2.4 6.9
Lead 15 4.2
Mercury 0.071 0.24
Molybdenum 15 15
Nickel 2.3 2.3
Selenium 0.31 0.31
Silver 1.0 4.9
Zinc 3.2 8.6

OtherTrace Elements:

Molybdenum= TBD
Constituent Concentration, ma/L Instantaneous Maximum, mg/L
Minerals:
TDS n/a* n/a
Chloride 300* n/a

17



Other Toxics:
Cyanide 1.1 4.4

pH 6-9511 units 6-11 units

*Tgo be determined

*possible allocation of mass limit for user’s discharging >1% of MAHL

B. The above Local limits apply at the point where the wastewater is discharged to the POTW, also known as the
end-of-pipe. All concentrations for metallic substances are for total metal unless indicated otherwise. The District
may impose mass limitations in addition to concentration-based limitations.

C. The Manager may develop Best Management Practices (BMP’s) by ordinance or in individual wastewater
discharge permits to implement Local Limits and the requirements of Section 4.1 of this ordinance.

4.5 — District’s Right of Revision
The District reserves the right to establish, by ordinance or in individual wastewater discharge permits, more
stringent Standards or Requirements on discharges to the POTW consistent with the purpose of this ordinance.

4.6 — Dilution

No User shall ever increase the use of process water, or in any way attempt to dilute a discharge, as a partial or
complete substitute for adequate treatment to achieve compliance with a discharge limitation unless expressly
authorized by an applicable Pretreatment Standard or Requirement. The Manager may impose mass limitations
on Users who are using dilution to meet applicable Pretreatment Standards or Requirements, or in other cases
when the imposition of mass limitations is appropriate.

4.7  Bypass - Definitions
A. For the purposes of this Ordinanceordinance,
1. Bypass means the intentional diversion of wastestreams from any portion of a User’s treatment facility.
2. Severe property damage means substantial physical damage to property, damage to the treatment
facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and permanent loss of natural resources
which can reasonably be expected to occur in the absence of a bypass. Severe property damage does not
mean economic loss caused by delays in production.

4.8  Bypass Prohibited.
A. Bypass is prohibited. The Manager may take enforcement action against a User for a bypass unless:

1. Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe property damage; and
2. There were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary treatment facilities,
retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal periods of equipment downtime. This
condition is not satisfied if adequate back-up equipment should have been installed in the exercise of
reasonable engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal periods of equipment
downtime or preventative maintenance; and
3. The User submitted notices as required under Section 4.9 of this ordinance.

B. A User may allow a bypass to occur only if it does not cause violations of Pretreatment Standards,
Industrial User Permit, or the District’s NPDES Permit and is for essential maintenance to assure efficient
operation. The Manager may approve a planned bypass after considering its potential adverse effects.

4.9 Bypass Notifications.
A. If a User plans for a bypass, the User must submit prior notice to the Manager at least ten (10) days
before the date of the bypass.



B. A User shall submit a verbal notice of an unanticipated bypass that exceeds applicable Pretreatment
Standards or Permit limits to the Manager within twenty-four (24) hours from the time it becomes aware
of the bypass. A written submission shall also be provided within five (5) days of the time the User
becomes aware of the bypass. The written submission shall contain (i) a description of the bypass and
its cause, (ii) the duration of the bypass, including exact dates and times, and, (iii) the steps taken or
planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the bypass. The Manager may waive the
written report on a case by case basis if the oral report has been received with twenty-four (24) hours.

SECTION 5 - PRETREATMENT OF WASTEWATER

5.1 Pretreatment Facilities

Users shall provide wastewater treatment as necessary to comply with this ordinance and shall achieve compliance
with all categorical Pretreatment Standards, Local Limits, and the prohibitions set out in Section 4.1 of this
ordinance within the time limitations specified by EPA, the State, or the Manager, whichever is more stringent.
Any facilities necessary for compliance shall be provided, operated, and maintained at the User’s expense.
Detailed plans describing such facilities and operating procedures shall be submitted to the Manager for review,
and shall be acceptable to the Manager before such facilities are constructed. The review of such plans and
operating procedures shall in no way relieve the User from the responsibility of modifying such facilities as
necessary to produce a discharge acceptable to the District under the provisions of this ordinance.

5.2 Additional Pretreatment Measures
A. Whenever deemed necessary, the Manager may require Users to restrict their discharge during peak flow
periods, designate that certain wastewater be discharged only into specific sewers, relocate and/or consolidate
points of discharge, separate sewage wastestreams from industrial wastestreams, and such other conditions
as may be necessary to protect the POTW and determine the User’s compliance with the requirements of this
ordinance.

B. The Manager may require any person discharging into the POTW to install and maintain, on their property
and at their expense, a suitable storage and flow-control facility to ensure equalization of flow. An individual
wastewater discharge permit may be issued solely for flow equalization.

C. Grease, oil, and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the Manager, they are
necessary for the proper handling of wastewater containing excessive amounts of grease and oil, or sand;
except that such interceptors shall not be required for residential users. All interception units shall be of a
type and capacity approved by the Manager, shall comply with the District ordinances, and shall be so located
to be easily accessible for cleaning and inspection. Such interceptors shall be inspected, cleaned, and repaired
in accordance with District requirements by the User at their expense.

D. Users with the potential to discharge flammable substances may be required to install and maintain an
approved combustible gas detection meter.

E. The Manager may require any persons dlschargmg |nto the POTW to mstall and maintain, on their
property and at their expense a flowmeter ez
to authenticate the amount of effluent discharge_for determlnatlon of compliance with permlt Ilmlts (daily
and/or peak flow, mass, etc.) and/or for District billing purposes.

5.3 Accidental Discharge/Slug Discharge Control Plans

The Manager shall evaluate whether each SIU needs araceidentatan accidental discharge/slug discharge control
plan or other action to control Slug Discharges. The Manager may require any User to develop, submit for
approval, and implement such a plan or take such other action that may be necessary to control Slug Discharges.
Alternatively, the Manager may develop such a plan for any User. An accidental discharge/slug discharge control
plan shall address, at a minimum, the following:

A. Description of discharge practices, including nonroutine batch discharges;

18



B. Description of stored chemicals;

C. Procedures for immediately notifying the Manager of any accidental or Slug Discharge, as required by
Section 8.6 of this ordinance; and

D. Procedures to prevent adverse impact from any accidental or Slug Discharge. Such procedures include,
but are not limited to, inspection and maintenance of storage areas, handling and transfer of materials,
loading and unloading operations, control of plant site runoff, worker training, building of containment
structures or equipment, measures for containing toxic organic pollutants, including solvents, and/or
measures and equipment for emergency response.

5.55.4 Pollution Prevention, Waste Minimization, Recycling, and Treatment

All Users-must implement a program of waste minimization to reduce the generation of Hazardous Wastes in
accordance with Federal, State, and local policies. This program, at a minimum, shall include adequate
housekeeping measures and product substitution to less hazardous raw materials as much as economically feasible
and recycling of all wastestreams as technically feasible.

Waste minimization must be demonstrated wherever feasible, in the following order of priority, as determined by
EPA policy derived from the Pollution Prevention Act of 1990:

A. Source Reduction: Substitution to less hazardous materials, spill prevention and control measures,
proper storage and handling of chemicals and raw materials, or any methods that accomplish source
reduction.

B. Recycling, Recovery, and /or Reuse: Practice recovery, recycling, and reuse for such waste streams as
solvents, oils ethylene glycol, silver and concentrated bath or spent solutions or other process wastestreams.
C. Treatment: Treatment techniques designed to render Hazardous Wastes harmless or suitable for proper
disposal.

D. Disposal: Destruction of Hazardous Wastes must take precedence over landfilling, but in any case, all
disposal must be in compliance with Federal, State, and local Hazardous Waste disposal laws.

SECTION 6 - INDIVIDUAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMITS

6.1 Wastewater Analysis

When requested by the Manager, a User must submit information on the nature and characteristics of its
wastewater within ten (10) days of the request. The Manager is authorized to prepare a form for this purpose and
may periodically require Users to update this information.

6.2 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit -Requirement

A. No Significant Industrial User shall discharge wastewater into the POTW without first obtaining an individual
wastewater discharge permit from the Manager, except that a Significant Industrial User that has filed a timely
application pursuant to Section 6.3 of this ordinance may continue to discharge for the time period specified
therein.

B. The Manager may require other Users to obtain individual wastewater discharge permits as necessary to carry
out the purposes of this ordinance.

C. Any violation of the terms and conditions of an individual wastewater discharge permit shall be deemed a
violation of this ordinance and subjects the wastewater discharge permittee to the sanctions set out in Sections 12
through 14 of this ordinance. Obtaining an individual wastewater discharge permit does not relieve a permittee
of its obligation to comply with all Federal and State Pretreatment Standards or Requirements or with any other
requirements of Federal, State, and local law.

19



6.3 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permitting: Existing Connections

Any User required to obtain an individual wastewater discharge permit who was discharging wastewater into the
POTW prior to the effective date of this ordinance and who wishes to continue such discharges in the future, shall,
within ten(28twenty (20) days after said date, apply to the Manager for an individual wastewater discharge permit
in accordance with Section 6.5 of this ordinance, and shall not cause or allow discharges to the POTW to continue
after thirty(30sixty (60) days of the effective date of this ordinance except in accordance with an individual
wastewater discharge permit issued by the Manager.

6.4 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permitting: New Connections

Any User required to obtain an individual wastewater discharge permit who proposes to begin or recommence
discharging into the POTW must obtain such permit prior to the beginning or recommencing of such discharge.
An application for this individual wastewater discharge permit, in accordance with Section 6.5 of this ordinance,
must be filed at least ten-{10sixty (60) days prior to the date upon which any discharge will begin or recommence.

6.5 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Application Contents
A. All Users required to obtain an individual wastewater discharge permit must submit a permit application.
The Manager may require Users to submit all or some of the following information as part of a permit
application:

(1) Identifying Information.

a. The name and address of the facility, including the name of the operator and owner.
b. Contact information, description of activities, facilities, and plant production processes on the
premises;

(2) Environmental Permits. A list of any environmental control permits held by or for the facility.

(3) Description of Operations.

a. A brief description of the nature, average rate of production (including each product produced by
type, amount, processes, and rate of production), and standard industrial classifications of the
operation(s) carried out by such User. This description should include a schematic process diagram,
which indicates points of discharge to the POTW from the regulated processes;

b. Types of wastes generated, and a list of all raw materials and chemicals used or stored at the
facility which are, or could accidentally or intentionally be, discharged to the POTW;

c. Number and type of employees, hours of operation, and proposed or actual hours of operation;

d. Type and amount of raw materials processed (average and maximum per day);

e. Site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans, and details to show all sewers, floor drains,
and appurtenances by size, location, and elevation, and all points of discharge;

(4) Time and duration of discharges;
(5) The location for monitoring all wastes covered by the permit;

(6) Flow Measurement. Information showing the measured average daily and maximum daily flow, in
gallons per day, to the POTW from regulated process streams and other streams, as necessary, to allow
use of the combined wastestream formula set out in Section 4.2(40 CFR 403.6(e)).

(7) Measurement of Pollutants.

a. The categorical Pretreatment Standards applicable to each regulated process and any new
categorically regulated processes for Existing Sources.

20



b. The results of sampling and analysis identifying the nature and concentration, and/or mass, where
required by the Standard or by the Manager, of regulated pollutants in the discharge from each
regulated process.

c. Instantaneous, Daily Maximum, and long-term average concentrations, or mass, where required,
shall be reported.

d. The sample shall be representative of daily operations and shall be analyzed in accordance with
procedures set out in Section 8.10 of this ordinance. Where the Standard requires compliance with a
BMP or pollution prevention alternative, the User shall submit documentation as required by the
Manager or the applicable Standards to determine compliance with the Standard.

e. Sampling must be performed in accordance with procedures set out in Section 8.11 of this
ordinance.

(8) Any other information as may be deemed necessary by the Manager to evaluate the permit
application.

B. Incomplete or inaccurate applications will not be processed and will be returned to the User for revision.

6.6 Application Signatories and Certifications
A. All wastewater discharge permit applications, User reports and certification statements must be signed by an
Authorized Representative of the User and contain the certification statement in Section 8.14 A of this ordinance.

B. If the designation of an Authorized Representative is no longer accurate because a different individual or
position has responsibility for the overall operation of the facility or overall responsibility for environmental
matters for the company, a new written authorization satisfying the requirements of Section 1.4 C of this ordinance
must be submitted to the Manager prior to or together with any reports to be signed by an Authorized
Representative.

6.7 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Decisions

The Manager will evaluate the data furnished by the User and may require additional information. Within twenty
{20thirty (30) days of receipt of a complete permit application, the Manager will determine whether to issue an
individual wastewater discharge permit. The Manager may deny any application for an individual wastewater
discharge permit.

6.8 Industrial Wastewater Discharge Permit Classification
Industrial Wastewater Discharge Permits shall be classified as follows:

Class-P/:—Serieus-Hazard— This classification is for Significant Industrial Users, these-tndustries-that-S1Us,
defined in Section 1.4 of this ordinance, and are industrial users regulated under National Categorical Pretreatment

21



Standards, and/or users-thathave eontinuousa reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW’s operation
or for violating any Pretreatment Standard or Requirement.

Class B: This classification is for Industrial Users that are not classified as an SIU, but may require a permit to
communicate and formalize industrial wastewater discharge rules and obligations i.e. implementation of Best
Management _ Practice(s), District _inspection/compliance _monitoring, equipment _installation,  self-
monitoring/reporting, etc. and will involve verification of ongoing compliance with this ordinance and
pretreatment standards or requirements.

Class C: This classification is for:
(1) non-residential users that handle and store toxic or hazardous wastes on site but can demonstrate and
certify that they do not directly or indirectly discharge these wastes to the sewer-which-contain-toxic

(2) Users who require discharge approval for a temporary and/or short-term duration;

(3) Users that have the same or substantially similar types of operations, discharge same types of waste,
require similar compliance monitoring and/or best management practices, require the same standard
treatment equipment and are more appropriately controlled under this type of document.

These non-residential users may be required to submit (a) an application for a Class C permit setting forth

requirements for self-monitoring, reporting, and/or equipment installation, or (b) an certified zero industrial

wastewater discharge statement setting forth such survey or other information as the District may require to
establish that such user will not directly or indirectly discharge toxic or hazardous wastes to the sewer.

SECTION 7 - INDIVIDUAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT ISSUANCE

7.1 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Duration

An individual wastewater discharge permit shall be issued for a specified time period, not to exceed five (5) years
from the effective date of the permit. An individual wastewater discharge permit may be issued for a period less
than five (5) years, at the discretion of the Manager. Each individual wastewater discharge permit will indicate a
specific date upon which it will expire.

7.2 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Contents

An individual wastewater discharge permit shall include such conditions as are deemed reasonably necessary by
the Manager to prevent Pass Through or Interference, protect the quality of the water body receiving the treatment
plant’s effluent, protect worker health and safety, facilitate sludge management and disposal, protect the
wastewater reclamation facHityandfacility and protect against damage to the POTW.

A. Individual wastewater discharge permits must contain:

(1) A statement that indicates the wastewater discharge permits issuance date, expiration date and effective
date;

(2) A statement that the wastewater discharge permit is nontransferable without prior notification to the
District in accordance with Section 7.4 of this ordinance, and provisions for furnishing the new owner or
operator with a copy of the existing wastewater discharge permit;

(3) Effluent limits, including Best Management Practices, based on applicable Pretreatment Standards;

(4) Self—monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and record-keeping requirements.  These
requirements shall include an identification of pollutants (or best management practice) to be monitored,
sampling location, sampling frequency, and sample type based on Federal, State, and local law.

(5) A statement of applicable civil and criminal penalties for violation of Pretreatment Standards and
Requirements, and any applicable compliance schedule. Such schedule may not extend the time for
compliance beyond that required by applicable Federal, State, or local law.

22



(6) Requirements to control Slug Discharge, H-determined-byunless the Manager to-bedetermines that such
requirements are not necessary.

B. Individual wastewater discharge permits may contain, but need not be limited to, the following conditions:

(1) Limits on the average and/or maximum rate of discharge, time of discharge, and/or requirements for flow
regulation and equalization;

(2) Requirements for the installation of pretreatment technology, pollution control, or construction of
appropriate containment devices, designed to reduce, eliminate, or prevent the introduction of pollutants into
the treatment works;

(3) Requirements for the development and implementation of spill control plans or other special conditions
including management practices necessary to adequately prevent accidental, unanticipated, or nonroutine
discharges;

(4) Development and implementation of waste minimization plans to reduce the amount of pollutants
discharged to the POTW;

(5) The unit charge or schedule of User charges and fees for the management of the wastewater discharged
to the POTW;

(6) Requirements for installation and maintenance of inspection and sampling facilities and equipment,
including flow measurement devices;

(7) A statement that compliance with the individual wastewater discharge permit does not relieve the
permittee of responsibility for compliance with all applicable Federal and State Pretreatment Standards,
including those which become effective during the term of the individual wastewater discharge permit; and

(8) Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Manager to ensure compliance with this ordinance, and
State and Federal laws, rules, and regulations.

7.3 Permit Modification
A. The Manager may modify an individual wastewater discharge permit for good cause, including, but not limited
to, the following reasons:

(1) To incorporate any new or revised Federal, State, or local Pretreatment Standards or Requirements;

(2) To address significant alterations or additions to the User’s operation, processes, or wastewater volume
or character since the time of the individual wastewater discharge permit issuance;

(3) A change in the POTW that requires either a temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the
authorized discharge;

(4) Information indicating that the permitted discharge poses a threat to the District’s POTW, District
personnel, the POTW’s beneficial sludge and/or reclaimed water use, or the receiving waters;

(5) Violation of any terms or conditions of the individual wastewater discharge permit;

(6) Misrepresentations or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater discharge permit
application or in any required reporting;

(7) Revision of or a grant of variance from categorical Pretreatment Standards pursuant to 40 CFR 403.13;
(8) To correct typographical or other errors in the individual wastewater discharge permit; or

(9) To reflect a transfer of the facility ownership or operation to a new owner or eperaterwhereoperator
where requested in accordance with Section 7.4 of this ordinance.

23



7.4 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer

Individual wastewater discharge permits may be transferred to a new owner or operator only if the permittee gives
at least twenty—{20sixty (60) days advance notice to the Manager and the Manager approves the individual
wastewater discharge permit transfer. The notice to the Manager must include a written certification by the new
owner or operator which:

A. States that the new owner and/or operator has no immediate intent to change the facility’s operations
and processes;

B. Identifies the specific date on which the transfer is to occur; and

C. Acknowledges full responsibility for complying with the existing individual wastewater discharge
permit.

Failure to provide advance notice of a transfer renders the individual wastewater discharge permit void as of the
date of facility transfer.

7.5 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Revocation
The Manager may revoke an individual wastewater discharge permit for good cause, including, but not limited
to, the following reasons:

A. Failure to notify the Manager of significant changes to the wastewater prior to the changed discharge;

B. Failure to provide prior notification to the Manager of changed conditions pursuant to Section 8.5 of
this ordinance;

C. Misrepresentation or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater discharge permit
application;

D. Falsifying self-monitoring reports and certification statements;

E. Tampering with monitoring equipment;

F. Refusing to allow the Manager timely access to the facility premises and records;

G. Failure to meet effluent limitations;

H. Failure to pay fines;

I. Failure to pay sewer charges;

J. Failure to meet compliance schedules;

K. Failure to complete a wastewater survey or the wastewater discharge permit application;

L. Failure to provide advance notice of the transfer of business ownership of a permitted facility; or

M. -Violation of any Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, or any terms of the wastewater discharge
permit or this ordinance.

Individual wastewater discharge permits shall be voidable upon cessation of operations or transfer of business
ownership. All individual wastewater discharge permits issued to a User are void upon the issuance of a new
individual wastewater discharge permit to that User.

7.6 Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Reissuance

A User with an expiring individual wastewater discharge permit shall apply for individual wastewater discharge
permit -reissuance by submitting a complete permit application, in accordance with Section 6.5 of this ordinance,
a minimum of thirty{30sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the User’s existing individual wastewater
discharge permit.

24



7.7 Regulation of Waste Received from Other Jurlsdlctlons

“Qutside ContrlbutoH contrlbutes Wastewater to the D1str1ct s POTW the District shall enter into an

agreement with the Outside Contributor.

B. An agreement, as required by paragraph A, above, shall contain the following conditions:

(1) A requirement for the Outside Contributor to adopt sewer use requirements which (i) are at least as
stringent as this ordinance, (ii) contain Local Limits, which are at least as stringent as those set out in
Section 4.4 of this ordinance, and (iii) includes requirements for Baseline Monitoring Reports
{BMRs)-. The sewer use requirements shall specify that such requirements and limits must be revised
as necessary to reflect changes made to the District’s ordinance or Local Limits;

(2) A provision specifying which pretreatment implementation activities, including individual wastewater
discharge permit issuance, inspection and sampling, and enforcement, will be conducted by the
Outside Contributor; which of these activities will be conducted by the Manager; and which of these
activities will be conducted jointly by the Outside Contributor and the Manager;

(3) A requirement for the Outside Contributor to provide the Manager with access to all information that
the Outside Contributor obtains as part of its pretreatment activities;

(4) Limits on the nature, quality, and volume of the contributing municipality’s wastewater at the point
where it discharges to the POTW;

(5) Requirements for monitoring the Outside Contributor’s discharge;

(6) A provision ensuring the Manager access to the facilities of users located within the outside
contributor jurisdictional boundaries for the purpose of inspection, sampling and any other duties
deemed necessary by the Manager:;

(7) A provision specifying remedies available for breach of the terms of the agreement; and

{4}(8) A provision specifying that, where the Outside Contributor has primary responsibility for
permitting, compliance monitoring, or enforcement, the District has the right to take action to enforce
the terms of the Outside Contributor’s sewer use requirements or to impose and enforce Pretreatment
Standards and Requirements directly against dischargers in the event the Outside Contributor is unable
or unwilling to take such action.

SECTION 8 - REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

8.1 Baseline Monitoring Reports

A. Within either one hundred eighty (180) days after the effective date of a categorical Pretreatment Standard,
or the final administrative decision on a category determination under 40 CFR 403.6(a)(4), whichever is later,
existing Categorical Industrial Users currently discharging to or scheduled to discharge to the POTW shall submit
to the Manager a report which contains the information listed in paragraph B, below. At least ninety (90) days
prior to commencement of their discharge, New Sources, and sources that become Categorical Industrial Users
subsequent to the promulgation of an applicable categorical Standard, shall submit to the Manager a report which
contains the information listed in paragraph B, below. A New Source shall report the method of pretreatment it
intends to use to meet applicable categorical Standards. A New Source also shall give estimates of its anticipated
flow and quantity of pollutants to be discharged.

B. Users described above shall submit the information set forth below.

(1) All information required in Section 6.5A (1) a, Section 6.5A (2), Section 6.5A (3) a, and Section 6.5A
(6) of this ordinance.

(2) Measurement of pollutants.
a. The User shall provide the information required in Section 6.5A (7) a through d of this ordinance.

b. The User shall take a minimum of one representative sample to compile that data necessary to
comply with the requirements of this paragraph.

25



c. Samples should be taken immediately downstream from pretreatment facilities if such exist or
immediately downstream from the regulated process if no pretreatment exists. If other wastewaters
are mixed with the regulated wastewater prior to pretreatment the User should measure the flows
and concentrations necessary to allow use of the combined wastestream formula in 40 CFR
403.6(e) to evaluate compliance with the Pretreatment Standards. Where an alternate concentration
or mass limit has been calculated in accordance with 40 CFR 403.6(e) this adjusted limit along
with supporting data shall be submitted to the Control Authority;

d. Sampling and analysis shall be performed in accordance with Section 8.10 of this ordinance;

e. The Manager may allow the submission of a baseline report which utilizes only historical data so
long as the data provides information sufficient to determine the need for industrial pretreatment
measures;

f.  The baseline report shall indicate the time, date and place of sampling and methods of analysis,
and shall certify that such sampling and analysis is representative of normal work cycles and
expected pollutant Discharges to the POTW.

(3) Compliance Certification. A statement, reviewed by the User’s Authorized Representative as defined
in Section 1.4 C of this ordinance and certified by a qualified professional, indicating whether Pretreatment
Standards are being met on a consistent basis, and, if not, whether additional operation and maintenance
(O&M) and/or additional pretreatment is required to meet the Pretreatment Standards and Requirements.

(4) Compliance Schedule. If additional pretreatment and/or O&M will be required to meet the Pretreatment
Standards, the shortest schedule by which the User will provide such additional pretreatment and/or O&M
must be provided. The completion date in this schedule shall not be later than the compliance date
established for the applicable Pretreatment Standard. A compliance schedule pursuant to this Section must
meet the requirements set out in Section 8.2 of this ordinance.

{43(5)  Signature and Report Certification. All baseline monitoring reports must be certified in
accordance with Section 8.14 A of this ordinance and signed by an Authorized Representative as defined
in Section 1.4 C of this ordinance.

8.2 Compliance Schedule Progress Reports
The following conditions shall apply to the compliance schedule required by Section 8.1(B)(4) of this ordinance:

A. The schedule shall contain progress increments in the form of dates for the commencement and
completion of major events leading to the construction and operation of additional pretreatment required
for the User to meet the applicable Pretreatment Standards (such events include, but are not limited to,
hiring an engineer, completing preliminary and final plans, executing contracts for major components,
commencing and completing construction, and beginning and conducting routine operation);

B. No increment referred to above shall exceed nine (9) months;

C. The User shall submit a progress report to the Manager no later than fourteen (14) days following
each date in the schedule and the final date of compliance including, as a minimum, whether or not it
complied with the increment of progress, the reason for any delay, and, if appropriate, the steps being
taken by the User to return to the established schedule; and

D. Inno event shall more than nine (9) months elapselapse between such progress reports to the
Manager.

26



8.3 Reports on Compliance with Categorical Pretreatment Standard Deadline

Within ninety (90) days following the date for final compliance with applicable categorical Pretreatment
Standards, or in the case of a New Source following commencement of the introduction of wastewater into the
POTW, any User subject to such Pretreatment Standards and Requirements shall submit to the Manager a report
containing the information described in Section 6.5A(6) and (7) and 8.1B(2) of this ordinance. For all users
subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards expressed in terms of allowable pollutant discharge per unit of
production (or other measures of operation), this report shall include the User’s actual production during the
appropriate sampling period. All compliance reports must be signed and certified in accordance with Section 8.14
A of this ordinance. All sampling will be done in conformance with Section 8.11 of this ordinance.

8.4 Periodic Compliance Reports

A. All Significant Industrial Users must, at a frequency determined by the District, submitresubmit no
less than twice per year (June-by January 31% and July 31° for the six-month periods ending December
31 and June 30™) reports indicating the nature, concentration of pollutants in the discharge which are
limited by Pretreatment Standards and the measured or estimated average and maximum daily flows for
the reporting period. In cases where the Pretreatment Standard requires compliance with a Best
Management Practice (BMP) or pollution prevention alternative, the User must submit documentation
required by the District or the Pretreatment Standard necessary to determine the compliance status of the
User.

B. All periodic compliance reports must be signed and certified in accordance with Section 8.14 A of this
ordinance.

C. All wastewater samples must be representative of the User’s discharge. Wastewater monitoring and
flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, kept clean, and maintained in good working order
at all times. The failure of a User to keep its monitoring facility in good working order shall not be
grounds for the User to claim that sample results are unrepresentative of its discharge.

D. If a User subject to the reporting requirement in this Section monitors any regulated pollutant at the
appropriate sampling location more frequently than required by the Manager, using the procedures
prescribed in Section 8.11 of this ordinance, the results of this monitoring shall be included in the report.

8.5 Reports of Changed Conditions
Each User must notify the District of any significant changes to the User’s operations or system which might alter
the nature, quality, or volume of its wastewater at least ten{20thirty (30) days before the change.

A. The District may require the User to submit such information as may be deemed necessary to evaluate
the changed condition, including the submission of a wastewater discharge permit application under
Section 6.5 of this ordinance.

B. The District may issue an individual wastewater discharge permit under Section 7.6 of this ordinance
or modify an existing wastewater discharge permit under Section 7.3 of this ordinance in response to
changed conditions or anticipated changed conditions.

8.6 Reports of Potential Problems
A. In the case of any discharge, including, but not limited to, accidental discharges, discharges of a
nonroutine, episodic nature, a noncustomary batch discharge, a Slug Discharge or Slug Load, that might
cause potential problems for the POTW, the User shall immediately telephone and notify the Manager of
the incident. This notification shall include the location of the discharge, type of waste, concentration and
volume, if known, and corrective actions taken by the User.

B. Within five (5) days following such discharge, the User shall, unless waived by the District, submit a
detailed written report describing the cause(s) of the discharge and the measures to be taken by the User

27



to prevent similar future occurrences. Such notification shall not relieve the User of any expense, loss,
damage, or other liability which might be incurred as a result of damage to the POTW, natural resources,
or any other damage to person or property; nor shall such notification relieve the User of any fines,
penalties, or other liability which may be imposed pursuant to this ordinance.

C. A notice shall be permanently posted on the User’s bulletin board or other prominent place advising
employees who to call in the event of a discharge described in paragraph A, above. Employers shall
ensure that all employees, who could cause such a discharge to occur, are advised of the emergency
notification procedure.

D. Significant Industrial Users are required to notify the Manager immediately of any changes at its
facility affecting the potential for a Slug Discharge.

8.7 Reports from Unpermitted Users
All Users not required to obtain an individual wastewater discharge permit shall provide appropriate reports to
the Manager as the Manager may require.

8.8 Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling and Reporting

If sampling performed by a User indicates a violation, the User must notify the Manager within twenty-four (24)
hours of becoming aware of the violation. The User shall also repeat the sampling and analysis and submit the
results of the repeat analysis to the Manager within thirty (30) days after becoming aware of the violation.
Resampling by the Industrial User is not required if the District performs sampling at the User’s facility at least
once a month, or if the District performs sampling at the User between the time when the initial sampling was
conducted and the time when the User or the District receives the results of this sampling, or if the District has
performed the sampling and analysis in lieu of the Industrial User.

8.9 Discharge of Hazardous Waste - Notification of Unintentional Discharge
Discharge of hazardous wastes, except as specified in this ordinance, is prohibited. Notification of any
unintentional discharge of hazardous waste shall be reported in accordance with Section 8.6 of this Ordinance.

8.10 Analytical Requirements

All pollutant analyses, including sampling techniques_to collect and preserve, to be submitted as part of a
wastewater discharge permit application or report shall be performed in accordance with the techniques prescribed
in 40 CFR Part 136 and amendments thereto, unless otherwise specified in an applicable categorical Pretreatment
Standard. If 40 CFR Part 136 does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the pollutant in question, or
where the EPA determines that the Part 136 sampling and analytical techniques are inappropriate for the pollutant
in question, sampling and analyses shall be performed by using validated analytical methods or any other
applicable sampling and analytical procedures, including procedures suggested by the Manager or other parties
approved by EPA.

8.11 Sample Collection

Samples collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based on data obtained through appropriate sampling
and analysis performed during the period covered by the report, based on data that is representative of conditions
occurring during the reporting period. A Chain-of-Custody form is required to be submitted with all monitoring
data.

A. Except as indicated in Section B and C below, the User must collect wastewater samples using 24-hour
flow-proportional composite sampling techniques, unless time-proportional composite sampling or grab
sampling is authorized by the Manager. Where time-proportional composite sampling or grab sampling
is authorized by the District, the samples must be representative of the discharge. Using protocols
(including appropriate preservation) specified in 40 CFR Part 136 and appropriate EPA guidance, multiple
grab samples collected during a 24-hour period may be composited prior to the analysis as follows: for

28



cyanide, total phenols, and sulfides the samples may be composited in the laboratory or in the field; for
volatile organics and oil and grease, the samples may be composited in the laboratory. Composite samples
for other parameters unaffected by the compositing procedures as documented in approved EPA
methodologies may be authorized by the District, as appropriate. In addition, grab samples may be
required to show compliance with Instantaneous Limits.

B. Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, total phenols, sulfides, and volatile organic
compounds must be obtained using grab collection techniques.

C. For sampling required in support of baseline monitoring and 90-day compliance reports required in
Sections 8.1 and 8.3 of this ordinance [40 CFR 403.12(b) and (d)], a minimum of four (4) grab samples
must be used for pH, cyanide, total phenols, oil and grease, sulfide and volatile organic compounds for
facilities for which historical sampling data do not exist; for facilities for which historical sampling data
are available, the Manager may authorize a lower minimum. For the reports required by paragraphs
Section 8.4 of this ordinance (40 CFR 403.12(e) and 403.12(h)), the Industrial User is required to collect
the number of grab samples necessary to assess and assure compliance by with applicable Pretreatment
Standards and Requirements.

8.12 Date of Receipt of Reports

Written reports will be deemed to have been submitted on the date postmarked. For reports, which are not mailed,
postage prepaid, into a mail facility serviced by the United States Postal Service, the date of receipt of the report
shall govern.

8.13 Recordkeeping

Users subject to the reporting requirements of this ordinance shall retain, and make available for inspection and
copying, all records of information obtained pursuant to any monitoring activities required by this ordinance, any
additional records of information obtained pursuant to monitoring activities undertaken by the User independent
of such requirements, and documentation associated with Best Management Practices established under Section
4.4 C of this ordinance. Records shall include the date, exact place, method, and time of sampling, and the name
of the person(s) taking the samples; the dates analyses were performed; who performed the analyses; the analytical
techniques or methods used; and the results of such analyses. These records shall remain available for a period
of at least three (3) years. This period shall be automatically extended for the duration of any litigation concerning
the User or the District, or where the User has been specifically notified of a longer retention period by the
Manager.

8.14  Certification Statements
A. Certification of Permit Applications, User Reports and Initial Monitoring Waiver

The following certification statement is required to be signed and submitted by Users submitting permit
applications in accordance with Section 6.6 of this ordinance; Users submitting baseline monitoring reports under
Section 8.1 B (5) of this ordinance; Users submitting reports on compliance with the categorical Pretreatment
Standard deadlines under Section 8.3; and Users submitting periodic compliance reports required by Section 8.4
A-D of this ordinance;. The following certification statement must be signed by an Authorized Representative as
defined in Section 1.4 C of this ordinance:

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction
or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system,
or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the
best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. | am aware that there are significant

29



penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

SECTION 9 - COMPLIANCE MONITORING

9.1 Rightof Entry: Inspection and Sampling

The District shall have the right to enter the premises of any User to determine whether the User is complying
with all requirements of this ordinance and any individual wastewater discharge permit or order issued hereunder.
Users shall allow the District ready access to all parts of the premises for the purposes of inspection, sampling,
records examination and copying, and the performance of any additional duties.

A. Where a User has security measures in force which require proper identification and clearance before
entry into its premises, the User shall make necessary arrangements with its security guards so that, upon
presentation of suitable identification, the District shall be permitted to enter without delay for the
purposes of performing specific responsibilities.

B. The District shall have the right to set up on the User’s property, or require installation of, such devices
as are necessary to conduct sampling and/or metering of the User’s operations.

C. The District may require the User to install monitoring equipment as necessary. The facility’s
sampling and monitoring equipment shall be maintained at all times in a safe and proper operating
condition by the User at its own expense. All devices used to measure wastewater flow and quality shall
be calibrated -according to manufacturer’s specifications to ensure their accuracy.

D. Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the facility to be inspected and/or
sampled shall be promptly removed by the User at the written or verbal request of the District and shall
not be replaced. The costs of clearing such access shall be borne by the User.

E. Unreasonable delays in allowing the District access to the User’s premises shall be a violation of this
ordinance.

F. The monitoring facility shall (i) provide ample room in or near the monitoring facility to allow accurate
sampling and preparation of samples and analysis, (ii) comply with all District requirements, (iii) comply
with all applicable local construction standards and specifications, and (iv) be constructed and maintained
in such manner so as to enable the District to perform independent monitoring activities.

9.2 Inspection Warrants

If the District has been refused access to a building, structure, or property, or any part thereof, and is able to
demonstrate probable cause to believe that there may be a violation of this ordinance, or that there is a need to
inspect and/or sample as part of a routine inspection and sampling program of the District designed to verify
compliance with this ordinance or any permit or order issued hereunder, or to protect the overall public health,
safety and welfare of the community, they may seek issuance of an inspection warrant from the Santa Barbara
Superior Court pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1822.50 et seq.

SECTION 10 - CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Information and data on a User obtained from reports, surveys, wastewater discharge permit applications,
individual wastewater discharge permits, and monitoring programs, and from the District’s inspection and
sampling activities, shall be available to the public without restriction, unless the User specifically requests, and
is able to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the District, that (i) the release of such information would divulge
information, processes, or methods of production entitled to protection as trade secrets under applicable State law,
and (ii) such information is exempt from disclosure under the California Public Records Act (California
Government Code Section 6250 et seq.). Any such request must be asserted at the time of submission of the
information or data. When requested and demonstrated by the User furnishing a report that such information
should be held confidential, the portions of a report which might disclose trade secrets or secret processes shall

30



not be made available for inspection by the public, but shall be made available immediately upon request to
governmental agencies for uses related to the NPDES program or pretreatment program, and in enforcement
proceedings involving the person furnishing the report. Wastewater constituents and characteristics and other
effluent data, as defined at 40 CFR 2.302, shall not be recognized as confidential information and shall be available
to the public without restriction.

SECTION 11 - PUBLICATION OF USERS IN SIGNIFICANT NONCOMPLIANCE

The District shall publish annually, in a newspaper of general circulation that provides meaningful public notice
within the jurisdictions served by the POTW, a list of the Users which, at any time during the previous twelve
(12) months, were in Significant Noncompliance with applicable Pretreatment Standards and Requirements. The
term Significant Noncompliance shall be applicable to all Significant Industrial Users (or any other Industrial
User that violates paragraphs (C), (D) or (H) of this Section 11) and shall mean:

A. Chronic violations of wastewater discharge limits, defined here as those in which sixty-six percent
(66%) or more of all the measurements taken for the same pollutant parameter taken during a six- (6-)
month period exceed (by any magnitude) a numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including
Instantaneous Limits as defined in Section 2 of this ordinance;

B. Technical Review Criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in which thirty-three percent (33%)
or more of wastewater measurements taken for each pollutant parameter during a six- (6-) month period
equals or exceeds the product of the numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement including
Instantaneous Limits, as defined by Section 2 of this ordinance multiplied by the applicable criteria (1.4
for BOD, TSS, fats, oils and grease, and 1.2 for all other pollutants except pH);

C. Any other violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement as defined by Section 2 of this
ordinance (Daily Maximum, long-term average, Instantaneous Limit, or narrative standard) that the
District determines has caused, alone or in combination with other discharges, Interference or Pass
Through, including endangering the health of POTW personnel or the general public;

D. Any discharge of a pollutant that has caused imminent endangerment to the public or to the
environment, or has resulted in the District’s exercise of its emergency authority to halt or prevent such a
discharge;

E. Failure to meet, within ninety (90) days of the scheduled date, a compliance schedule milestone
contained in an individual wastewater discharge permit or enforcement order for starting construction,
completing construction, or attaining final compliance;

F. Failure to provide within forty-five (45) days after the due date, any required reports, including baseline
monitoring reports, reports on compliance with categorical Pretreatment Standard deadlines, periodic
self-monitoring reports, and reports on compliance with compliance schedules;

G. Failure to accurately report noncompliance; or

H. Any other violation(s), which may include a violation of Best Management Practices, which the
District determines will adversely affect the operation or implementation of the local pretreatment
program.

SECTION 12 - ADMINISTRATIVE ENFORCEMENT REMEDIES

12.1  Notification of Violation

When the Manager finds that a User has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of this ordinance, an
individual wastewater discharge permit, —or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or
Requirement, the Manager may serve upon that User a written Notice of Violation. Within thirty (30) days of the
receipt of such Notice of Violation, the User shall submit to the Manager an explanation of the violation and a

31



plan for the satisfactory correction and prevention thereof, to include specific required actions. Submission of
such a plan in no way relieves the User of liability for any violations occurring before or after receipt of the Notice
of Violation. Nothing in this Section 12 shall limit the authority of the Manager to take any action, including
emergency actions or any other enforcement action, without first issuing a Notice of Violation.

12.2  Consent Orders

The Manager may, on behalf of the District-may, enter into Consent Orders, assurances of compliance, or other
similar documents establishing an agreement with any User responsible for noncompliance. Such documents
shall include specific action to be taken by the User to correct the noncompliance within a time period specified
by the document. Such documents shall have the same force and effect as the administrative orders issued
pursuant to Sections 12.4 and 12.5 of this ordinance and shall be judicially enforceable.

12.3  Show Cause Hearing

The Manager may order a User which has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of this ordinance, an
individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or
Requirement, to appear before the Manager and show cause why the proposed enforcement action should not be
taken. Notice shall be served on the User specifying the time and place for the meeting, the proposed enforcement
action, the reasons for such action, and a request that the User show cause why the proposed enforcement action
should not be taken. The notice of the meeting shall be served personally or by registered or certified mail (return
receipt requested) at least thirty (30) days prior to the hearing. Such notice may be served on any Authorized
Representative of the User as defined in Section 1.4 C and required by Section 6.6 A of this ordinance. A show
cause hearing shall not be a bar against, or prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User.

12.4 Compliance Orders

When the Manager finds that a User has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of this ordinance, an
individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or
Requirement, the Manager may issue an order to the User responsible for the discharge directing that the User
come into compliance within a specified time. If the User does not come into compliance within the time
provided, sewer service may be discontinued unless adequate treatment facilities, devices, or other related
appurtenances are installed and properly operated. Compliance orders also may contain other requirements to
address the noncompliance, including additional self-monitoring and management practices designed to minimize
the amount of pollutants discharged to the sewer. A compliance order may not extend the deadline for compliance
established for a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, nor does a compliance order relieve the User of liability
for any violation, including any continuing violation. Issuance of a compliance order shall not be a bar against,
or a prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User.

12.5 Cease and Desist Orders

When the Manager finds that a User has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of this ordinance, an
individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or
Requirement, or that the User’s past violations are likely to recur, the Manager may issue an order to the User
directing it to cease and desist all such violations and directing the User to:

A. Immediately comply with all requirements; and

B. Take such appropriate remedial or preventive action as may be needed to properly address a continuing or
threatened violation, including halting operations and/or terminating the discharge. Issuance of a cease and
desist order shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User.

12.6  Administrative Penalties

A. If the District seeks to impose an administrative penalty, the District shall issue an administrative complaint
to any person who violates any requirement adopted or ordered by the District pursuant to this ordinance. The

32



administrative complaint shall allege the act or failure to act that constitutes the violation of the District's
requirements, the provisions of law authorizing civil liability to be imposed, and the proposed penalty.

B. The administrative complaint shall be served by personal delivery or certified mail (return receipt requested)
on the person subject to the District's discharge requirements, and shall inform the person served that a hearing
shall be conducted within sixty (60) days after the person has been served. The hearing shall be before a hearing
officer designated by the Governing Board of the District. The person who has been issued an administrative
complaint may waive the right to a hearing, in which case the District shall not conduct a hearing. A person
dissatisfied with the decision of the hearing officer may appeal to the Governing Board of the District within thirty
(30) days of notice of the hearing officer's decision.

C. If after the hearing, or appeal, if any, it is found that the person has violated reporting or discharge
requirements, the hearing officer or Governing Board may assess a civil penalty against that person. In
determining the amount of the civil penalty, the hearing officer or Governing Board may take into consideration
all relevant circumstances, including, but not limited to, the extent of harm caused by the violation, the economic
benefit derived through any noncompliance, the nature and persistence of the violation, the length of time over
which the violation occurs and corrective action, if any, attempted or taken by the discharger.

D. Administrative penalties may be imposed by the District as follows:

(1) Inan amount which shall not exceed two thousand dollars ($2,000) for each day for failing or refusing
to furnish technical or monitoring reports.

(2) In an amount which shall not exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000) for each day for failing or
refusing to timely comply with any compliance schedule established by the local agency.

(3) In an amount which shall not exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000) per violation for each day for
discharges in violation of any waste discharge limitation, permit condition, or requirement issued,
reissued, or adopted by the local agency.

(4) In an amount which does not exceed ten dollars ($10) per gallon for discharges in violation of any
suspension, cease and desist order or other orders, or prohibition issued, reissued, or adopted by a local
agency.

(5) The amount of any civil penalties imposed under this section which have remained delinquent for a
period of sixty (60) days shall constitute a lien against the real property of the discharger from which the
discharge originated resulting in the imposition of the civil penalty. The lien provided herein shall have
no force and effect until recorded with the Santa Barbara County Recorder and, when recorded, shall have
the force and effect and priority of a judgment lien and continue for ten (10) years from the time of
recording unless sooner released, and shall be renewable in accordance with the provisions of Sections
683.110 to 683.220, inclusive, of the California Code of Civil Procedure.

E. All moneys collected under this Section 12 shall be deposited in a special account of the District and shall be
made available for the monitoring, treatment, and control of discharges into the local agency’s sanitation or sewer
system or for other mitigation measures.

F. Unless appealed, orders setting administrative civil penalties shall become effective and final upon issuance
thereof, and payment shall be made within thirty (30) days. Copies of these orders shall be served by personal
service or by registered mail upon the party served with the administrative complaint and upon other persons who
appeared at the hearing and requested a copy.

33


http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CACPS683.110&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062741
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CACPS683.110&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062741
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CACPS683.220&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062741

G. The District may, at its option, elect to petition the Superior Court to confirm any order establishing civil
penalties and enter judgment in conformity therewith in accordance with the provisions of Sections 1285 to
1287.6, inclusive, of the California Code of Civil Procedure.

H. No penalties shall be recoverable under this Section 12 for any violation for which civil liability is recovered
under Government Code Section 54740.

I. Any party aggrieved by a final order issued by the Governing Board of the District under this Section 12.6after
granting review of the order of a hearing officer, may obtain review of the order of the Governing Board in the
Superior Court by filing in the court a petition for writ of mandate within thirty (30) days following the service of
a copy of a decision and order issued by the Governing Board. Any party aggrieved by a final order of a hearing
officer issued under this Section 12.6, for which the Governing Board denies review, may obtain review, of the
order of the hearing officer in the Superior Court by filing in the court a petition for writ of mandate within thirty
(30) days following service of a copy of a decision and order denying review by the Governing Board.

J. If no aggrieved party petitions for writ of mandate within the time provided by this Section 12.6, an order of
the Governing Board or a hearing officer shall not be subject to review by any court or agency, except that the
Governing Board may grant review on its own motion of an order after the expiration of the time limits set by this
Section 12.6.

K. The evidence before the court shall consist of the record before the Governing Board, including the hearing
officer's record, and any other relevant evidence which, in the judgment of the court, should be considered to
effectuate and implement policies of this division. In every such case, the court shall exercise its independent
judgment on the evidence.

L. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, subdivisions (e) and (f) of Section 1094.5 of the California Code
of Civil Procedure shall govern proceedings pursuant to this Section 12.6.

12.7 Emergency Suspensions

The Manager may immediately suspend a User’s discharge, after informal notice to the User, whenever such
suspension is necessary to stop an actual or threatened discharge, which reasonably appears to present, or cause
an imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or welfare of persons. The Manager may also
immediately suspend a User’s discharge, after notice, that threatens to interfere with the operation of the POTW,
or which presents, or may present, an endangerment to the environment.

A. Any User notified of a suspension of its discharge shall immediately stop or eliminate its contribution.
In the event of a User’s failure to immediately comply voluntarily with the suspension order, the Manager
may take such steps as deemed necessary, including immediate severance of the sewer connection, to
prevent or minimize damage to the POTW, its receiving stream, or endangerment to any individuals. The
Manager may allow the User to recommence its discharge when the User has demonstrated to the
satisfaction of the Manager that the period of endangerment has passed, unless the termination
proceedings in Section 12.8 of this ordinance are initiated against the User.

B. A User that is responsible, in whole or in part, for any discharge presenting imminent endangerment
shall submit a detailed written statement, describing the causes of the harmful contribution and the
measures taken to prevent any future occurrence, to the Manager prior to the date of any show cause or
termination hearing under Sections 12.3 or 12.8 of this ordinance.

Nothing in this Section 12.7 shall be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any Emergency Suspension.

12.8 Termination of Discharge
In addition to the provisions in Section 7.5 of this ordinance, any User who violates the following conditions is
subject to discharge termination:

34


http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CACPS1285&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062741
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CACPS1287.6&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062741
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CAGTS54740&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000211&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062741
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CAGTS54740.5&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000211&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062742
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CAGTS54740.5&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000211&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=5062742
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?referencepositiontype=T&docname=CACPS1094.5&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&referenceposition=SP%3b7fdd00001ca15&pbc=2CFC3CDA&tc=-1&ordoc=5062742
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?referencepositiontype=T&docname=CACPS1094.5&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&referenceposition=SP%3bae0d0000c5150&pbc=2CFC3CDA&tc=-1&ordoc=5062742
http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?referencepositiontype=T&docname=CACPS1094.5&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000201&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&referenceposition=SP%3bae0d0000c5150&pbc=2CFC3CDA&tc=-1&ordoc=5062742

A. Violation of individual wastewater discharge permit conditions;
B. Failure to accurately report the wastewater constituents and characteristics of its discharge;

C. Failure to report significant changes in operations or wastewater volume, constituents, and characteristics
prior to discharge;

D. Refusal of reasonable access to the User’s premises for the purpose of inspection, monitoring, or sampling;
or

E. Violation of the Pretreatment Standards in Section 4 of this ordinance.

Such User will be notified of the proposed termination of its discharge and be offered an opportunity to show
cause under Section 12.3 of this ordinance why the proposed action should not be taken. Exercise of this option
by the Manager shall not be a bar to, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User.

SECTION 13 - JUDICIAL ENFORCEMENT REMEDIES

13.1  Injunctive Relief

When the Manager finds that a User has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of this ordinance, an
individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or
Requirement, the Manager may petition the Superior Court through the District’s attorney for the issuance of a
temporary or permanent injunction, as appropriate, which restrains or compels the specific performance of the
individual wastewater discharge permit, order, or other requirement imposed by this ordinance on activities of the
User. The Manager may also seek such other action as is appropriate for legal and/or equitable relief, including
a requirement for the User to conduct environmental remediation. A petition for injunctive relief shall not be a
bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action against a User.

13.2  Civil Penalties

A. Pursuant to California Government Code Sections 54739 and 54740 and the Clean Water Act, a User who has
violated, or continues to violate, any provision of this ordinance, an individual wastewater discharge permit, or
order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement may be civilly liable in a sum of not
to exceed twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) a day for each violation.

B. The District may petition the Superior Court to impose, assess, and recover the sums provided for in Section
13.2 A of this ordinance. In determining the amount, the court shall take into consideration all relevant
circumstances, including, but not limited to, the extent of harm caused by the violation, the economic benefit
derived through any noncompliance, the nature and persistence of the violation, the length of time over which the
violation occurs, and corrective action, if any, attempted or taken by the discharger.

C. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, all civil penalties imposed by the court for a violation of this
Section 13.2 shall be distributed to the District.

D. Remedies under this Section 13.2 are in addition to and do not supersede or limit any and all other remedies,
civil or criminal, but no liability shall be recoverable under this Section 13.2 for any violation for which
administrative penalties are recovered under California Government Code Section 54740.5.

13.3  Criminal Prosecution

A. A User who willfully or negligently discharges pollutants, except in compliance with waste discharge
requirements, or who willfully or negligently violates any order, prohibition, waste discharge requirement,
effluent standard, water quality related effluent standard, federal standard or performance, pretreatment or toxicity
standard or requirement, or who refuses to comply with the requirements adopted to control the disposal of
pollutants into wells, or who fails to comply with the conditions of their permit, compliance schedule or any
standard, condition or requirement set forth in this ordinance, shall be punished by a fine of not more than One

35


http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?tc=-1&docname=CAGTS54740.5&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&sv=Split&rs=WLW11.01&db=1000211&tf=-1&findtype=L&fn=_top&mt=373&vr=2.0&pbc=2CFC3CDA&ordoc=1256030

Thousand Dollars ($1,000) for each day such violation occurs, or by imprisonment for not more than thirty (30)
days, or both.

B. A User who knowingly makes any false statement, representation, record, report, plan or other document filed
with a Regional Water Quality Control Board or the State Water Resources Control Board, or who falsifies,
tampers with or knowingly renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method required by the laws of the State
of California, shall be punished by a fine of not more than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000), or by imprisonment
for not more than six (6) months, or both.

C. If the District believes a criminal offense has been committed hereunder, it may refer the matter to the District
Attorney for prosecution.

13.4 Remedies Nonexclusive

The remedies provided for in this ordinance are not exclusive. The Manager may take any, all, or any combination
of these actions against a noncompliant User. Enforcement of pretreatment violations will generally be in
accordance with the District’s Enforcement Response Plan. However, the Manager may take other action against
any User when the circumstances warrant. Further, the Manager is empowered to take more than one enforcement
action against any noncompliant User.

SECTION 14 - SUPPLEMENTAL ENFORCEMENT ACTION

14.1 Payment of Outstanding Fees and Penalties

The Manager may decline to issue or reissue an individual wastewater discharge permit to any User who has
failed to pay any outstanding fees, fines or penalties incurred as a result of any provision of this ordinance, a
previous individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued hereunder.

14.2  Public Nuisances

A violation of any provision of this ordinance, an individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued
hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement is hereby declared a public nuisance and shall be
corrected or abated as directed by the Manager. Any person(s) creating a public nuisance shall be subject to the
provisions of California law governing such nuisances.

14.3 Performance Bonds

The Manager may decline to issue or reissue an individual wastewater discharge permit to any User who has
failed to comply in any material respect with any provisions of this ordinance, a previous individual wastewater
discharge permit or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or requirement, unless such User
first files a bond in a form satisfactory to the Manager, payable to the District in a sum not to exceed a value
determined by the Manager to be necessary to achieve consistent compliance.

SECTION 15 - AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES TO DISCHARGE VIOLATIONS

A User shall have such affirmative defenses to an enforcement action brought against it for noncompliance with
this ordinance as may be provided by State and Federal law.

SECTION 16—MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

16.1 Pretreatment Charges and Fees
The District may adopt reasonable fees for reimbursement of costs of setting up and operating the District’s
Pretreatment Program, which may include:

A. Fees for wastewater discharge permit applications including the cost of processing such applications;

36



B. Fees for monitoring, inspection, and surveillance procedures including the cost of collection and analyzing a
User’s discharge, and reviewing monitoring reports and certification statements submitted by Users;

C. Fees for reviewing and responding to accidental discharge procedures and construction;
D. Fees for filing appeals;

E. Fees to recover administrative and legal costs associated with the enforcement activity taken by the Manager
to address User noncompliance; and

F. Other fees as the District may deem necessary to carry out the requirements contained herein. These fees
relate solely to the matters covered by this ordinance and are separate from all other fees, fines, and penalties
chargeable by the District.

16.2  Severability

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held to be
unconstitutional, ineffective or in any manner in conflict with the laws of the United States, or of the State of
California, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Governing
Board of the District hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each section, subsection,
sentence, clause and phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection, sentence,
clause or phrase be declared unconstitutional, ineffective, or in any manner in conflict with the laws of the United
States or the State of California.

16.3 Publication

The Secretary of the District is hereby directed to cause a summary-er-display advertisement relating to this
Ordinaneeordinance to be published once in a newspaper published and of general circulation in the District in
accordance with Health & Safety Code Section 6490.

16.4 Effective Date
This Ordinanceordinance shall take effect and be in force one week following publication as provided in Section
16.3 hereof.

16.5 Repeal of Prior OrdinraneesOrdinance

As of the effective date of this Q#émanee—the—ﬁe“ew—egordmance District ede&nees—aFe—he#ebyOrdmance No.
771s |s repealed in themts entlrety: i

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th _ day of Apri;-2012 , 2020, by the
following vote of the Governing Board of the Goleta Sanitary District:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTENTIONS:
ABSENT:

George W. Emerson

Sharon Rose

Governing Board President
COUNTERSIGNED

37



Kamil S. Azoury
Robert O. Manqus, Jr.,
Governing Board Secretary

38



AGENDA ITEM #2



AGENDA ITEM: 2

MEETING DATE: December 7, 2020

NATURE OF ITEM
Status Report of 2020 Pre-Winter Storm Preparation Activities
BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The District’s collection system and treatment plant facilities are generally safe
from damages due to winter storm events. However, each year in anticipation of
possible strong winter storms, staff identifies and implements a series of pre-
winter storm preparation activities. These activities are intended to reduce the
risk of flood damage during high flow storm events and/or to document the
existing (pre-storm) condition of the District’s facilities. Inspection reports that
include photographs of the existing condition of our facilities are being prepared
in order to be eligible for public assistance funding in the event of any damage
resulting from a State and/or Federally declared disaster event.

Attached to this report is a list of the winter storm preparation activities that are
being implemented this year along with the status of the activity. Also attached is
a copy of a National Weather presentation on the 2020-21 Winter Outlook.
COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

This report is for informational purposes only. No Board action is required.
REFERENCE MATERIAL

2020 Winter Storm Emergency Preparation Activity List

2020-21 Winter Storm Outlook Presentation by NWS



Goleta Sanitary District

2020 Winter Storm Emergency Preparation

Activitiy List
Status

Collections System
Pre Storm Creek Crossing Facility Inspection Reports Completed
Inspect and confirm rain stoppers installed where required In Progress
Inspect and confirm MH lids bolted down where required Completed
Pre Storm Inspection Report for Firestone Liftstation In Progress
Portable Pump and Sandbags staged at Firestone Liftstation Completed
Install above ground connections for Firestone Liftstation bypass Completed
Update Mutual Aid Contact List as needed In Progress
Inspect all manholes in off-tract areas In Progress
Plant
Review and Update High Flow Treatment Procedures Completed
Pre Storm Creek Bank Inspection Report and Documentation In Progress
Pre Storm Faciltiy Inspection and Documentation Report In Progress
Review of diesel tank refueling protocol for winter storm season Completed
Efluent Diversion Pump Test Scheduled
Install connection for Interstage Pump Station Hi Flow Bypass Completed
Inspect and confirm Outfall MH lids are bolted down Completed
Meetings w/ GWSD and SB Airport on Inflow/Infiltration Completed
Administration
Review and Update Emergency Response Plan as required Completed
Coordinate Emergency Response Training of all staff as required Ongoing
Confirmation of Mutual Aid Support with local Agencies Completed
Update Prequalified Emergency Response Contractor List In Progress

Rev. 12-3-20




Mark Jackson
Meteorologist in Charge
NWS Los Angeles/Oxnard, CA

weather.gov/losangeles weather.gov/losangeles Updated 11/4/20



Precipitation Temperature

weather.gov/losangeles



Oct 29, 2019 Oct 27, 2020

Abnormally Moderate Severe Extreme Exceptional

None Dry Drought Drought Drought Drought



La Nina Advisory* in effect!

weather.gov/losangeles *|ssued when La Nifia conditions are observed and expected to continue



OO

o081



(Do) Ajlewouy 1SS v'EOUIN



weather.gov/losangeles






weather.gov/losangeles



La Nifia (90% of ave)



weather.gov/losangeles















Seasonal Drought Outlook — End 1/31/21



weather.gov/losangeles



Montecito gauge

Peak 5-minute rainfall rates (inches)

v= Tmeofpf  Montecito Rainfall

A= January 9, 2018

SSme

9 os

2 05 v

c 04

‘T 03

0.2

c

-éo.l

T 0

m oOMN O MNOoOMLOLMLONMONMONONOLOWMWOWmOoO LW, O Wn
O N-dFToMunNATdnoadNdToOoNMAT MO

Time (local) Jan 9th, 2018

5-min Rate Cumulative

10:50
11:15
11:40

Total Rainfall [in]



Web: Facebook:

weather.gov/LosAngeles NWSLosAngeles
Phone (Operations): Twitter:
805-988-6626 (unl) @NWSLosAngeles
YouTube:
NWSLosAngeles

weather.gov/losangeles



AGENDA ITEM #3



AGENDA ITEM: 3

MEETING DATE: December 7, 2020

NATURE OF ITEM

Consideration and Approval of Purchase of New 4-inch Portable Trash Pump
with Sound Attenuated Enclosure

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

District staff uses portable trash pumps for a variety of Operations and Collection
System department tasks. In 2017 the District was required to replace existing
trash pumps due to Air Resources Board (ARB) Regulations. One of the District
remaining pumps that is below the registration requirement for ARB has recently
failed, and replacement parts are no longer available.

District staff has determined that the correct sizing for a replacement pump would
be the same as a pump purchased in 2017. This pump was sized to be an
emergency backup for the Firestone Lift Station. This size of this pump also
avoids the requirement for registration with the ARB.

District staff requested quotes from three different manufacturers with the
specification that the pump performance must be 500 Gallons Per Minute (GPM)
at 25 Feet Total Dynamic Head (TDH) and include a sound attenuated enclosure.
The summary listing of bids follows:

Vendor | Model Horsepower | ARB Sound Price
Registration | Attenuated | (Freight and
Tax Excluded)
Necessary
Rockwell | 4” Pioneer | 36 No Yes $47,742
Xylem 6” Godwin | 62 Yes Yes $45,560
CEC 4" Barmesa | 67.6 Yes No $36,985

1. COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a
purchase order for the Rockwell 4” Pump. This pump will have the same
specifications as an existing pump that the District owns, requiring less training
and fewer spare parts for redundancy. Also, the efficiency of this pump requires
less horsepower and does not require ARB registration, reducing long term
operational costs.

The District’s approved FY 2020-21 budget includes a total of $55,000 for the
purchase of a 4” pump. The total estimated cost including freight and taxes is

$52,942.




REFERENCE MATERIAL

Rockwell Engineering Quote
California Environmental Controls, Inc. (CEC) Quote

Xylem Quote



R)

ROCKWELL

ENGINEERING AND EQUIPMENT

November 3, 2020
To:  Goleta Sanitary District
Attn: John Crisman

Subject: 4” Pioneer Pump Trailer Package with Sound Attenuation

Per your request, I am pleased to quote a 4” Pioneer Prime Engine Driven Pump Trailer Package
with Sound Attenuation Enclosure. This pump has similar pump operational performance features
as the 4” pump at Goleta Collections Department purchased in 2017:

-Pioneer 4x4” Heavy Duty Solids Handling Vacuum Assisted Pump
-Ductile Iron Construction w/Run Dry Mechanical Seal & CI Wear Rings
-10.0 Inch Full Diameter CA6NM Stainless Steel Impeller

-Oil Lubricated Bearing Frame

-Deutz Model D2.9L4 Tier 4 Diesel Rated for 36HP @ 1800 RPM

-DOT Trailer Mounted Package with 12 Volt — 4D Heavy Duty Battery
-Auto Start/Stop Programmable Engine Control Panel, Murphy MPC10
-Sound Attenuation Enclosure - See Attached Drawing #19304A
-Completely Mounted, Aligned, Primed and Painted Pioneer Green

Order Model# PP44S10L71-D2.9GL2
Net Price (QTY 1) $ 47,742.00
Goleta Sales Tax @ 7.75% $ 3,700.00
Freight $ 1,500.00*
Total $52,942.00

*Shipping: 6 Weeks ARO FOB Canby, OR

Please let me know if you have any questions or need further clarifying information. Rock-
well appreciates your consideration and this opportunity to quote while looking forward to
continuing to serve Goleta SD in its pump requirements.

Best Regards,
\qu L
Mike Ladgdo

[Attached Pioneer Drawing #19304A]

Southern California Office Northern California Office
2913 El Camino Real, Suite #337 2010 A Harrison Drive, #337
Tustin, CA 91728 Vacaville, CA 95687
Phone: 714-505-9700 Phone: 707-447-6300

Fax: 714-505-9800 Fax: 714-505-9800



WATER CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROLS, INC.
TREATMENT 6739 Washington Ave, P.O. Box 469, Whittier, CA 90608
(562) 945-3425 / (714) 523-5920

SYSTEMS FAX: (562) 693-5257
cec@calencon.com / www.cech2o.com
QUOTATION
TO: Goleta Sanitary District DATE: 13-Nov-20 PAGE 1 OF 3
1 Moffett Place
Goleta, CA 93117 QUOTE NO.: C1707918 Rev. 1
ATTENTION: Luis Astorga SUBJECT: 4" Engine driven Pump
PHONE NO.: 805-967-4519 REFERENCE: Barmesa

EMAIL: lastorga@goletasanitary.com

EQUIPMENT / SERVICE TO BE OFFERED ON THE FOLLOWING:

ITEM|QTY. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE | EXTENTION

1 1 |[Barmesa Model SH4-R/N-4TNV98C Engine Driven, Trailer $ 36,985.00 | $ 36,985.00
Mounted, Self-Priming Pump Incuding the Following:
* 4" x 4" NPT female suction / discharge flange

» Cast iron casing pump

» 2 vane ductile iron open impeller

* Mechanical double floating silicon carbide seal

* 67.6 HP, 2500 RPM, 4 cylinder final tier 4 engine

» DOT trailer

+ Battery (shipped loose)

NOTE: PRICE(S) DOES (DO) NOT INCLUDE TAX UNLESS SPECIFICALLY NOTED

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS, upon approved credit CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROLS, INC.

EST. DATE OF SHIPMENT: 3-4 Weeks BY WW
4

Michael Kennedy
EST. SHIPPPING WEIGHT: N/A Ibs. Please sign and return original copy. Retain duplicate copy for your records.

ACCEPTED BY

F.O.B.: Goleta, CA, FFA

Title Date

IMPORTANT: - Prices specified herein are exclusive of all taxes unless specifically noted

- This proposal is subjected to all terms and conditions on page 3 of this quotation




WATER

TREATMENT C1608709R01
SYSTEMS STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS PAGE 2 of

Z

1. AGREEMENT. The terms and conditions set forth below and on the front side hereof constitute the entire Agreement between the customer named on the front side hereof ("Buyer") and California Environmental
Controls, Inc., a California corporation ("Seller").

2. TERMS OF SALE. (a) TAXES: Prices specified herein on the Goods are exclusive of all local, state and federal taxes including without limitation taxes on manufacturing, sales, receipts, gross income, occupation,
use and all similar taxes. Wherever applicable, such taxes will be invoiced as a separate charge which Buyer agrees to pay the Seller. (b) TERMS OF PAYMENT: Net cash, due 30 days following the date of shipment
of the Goods to approved credit accounts. The Buyer agrees to pay Seller an additional charge of one and one-half percent (1 and 1/ 2%) per month (or such lesser amount equal to the maximum rate permitted by
law) on any invoices not paid according to these terms. (c) SECURITY INTEREST: Until payment in full of the purchase price therein specified, seller reserves a security interest in the goods securing payment of such
purchase price. (d) DELIVERY: Prices quoted are f.0.b. point of origin of shipments. Prices include domestic packing for rail or commercial shipments only. Shipment and delivery dates are estimates based upon
schedules of Seller's suppliers and are computed from the time of settlement of all details and receipt of full approval of drawings where drawing approval is required.

3. ACCEPTANCE. This quotation is an offer upon the terms and conditions herein specified. Acceptance by the Buyer may be effected by signing a copy of this quotation where specified and returning same to the
Seller, or by the Buyer issuing a purchase order and delivering same to the Seller, which shall constitute Buyer's acceptance of this quotation and all of the terms and conditions herein specified. Acceptance of this
offer is limited to its terms. Acceptances or confirmation which state additional or different terms from this offer shall be operative as acceptances; provided, however, that all such additional or different terms shall be
deemed material alterations within the meaning of Section 2207 (2) (b) of the California Commercial Code, and notice of objection to them pursuant to Section 2207 (2) (c) of the California Commercial Code is hereby
given.

4. CANCELLATION. Orders may be cancelled by the Buyer only with Seller's written consent and upon payment of reasonable and proper cancellation charges, including factory costs and expenses.

5. INSPECTION. Buyer agrees to inspect the goods, supplies, merchandise and material covered hereby ("Goods") immediately upon their receipt by Buyer, secure a written acknowledgement from the delivering
carrier as to any loss or damage and within three (3) business days of their receipt and to give written notice to the Seller of any claim that the Goods do not conform with the terms of the Agreement. Failure to make
such a claim within the stated period shall constitute an irrevocable acceptance of the Goods and an admission that they fully comply with all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement. Buyer expressly waives any
right it may have to revoke acceptance after such three (3) day period.

6. DELAYS. Seller shall not be liable for any delays or failures in making shipments or deliveries caused by any contingency beyond Seller's control, or the control of Seller's suppliers or manufacturers including,

without limitation, failures or delays brought about by, caused by or in any manner arising from (i) labor conditions including strikes and shortages of labor, (ii) shortages of fuel, power, material or supplies, (iii)
transportation delays, (iv) acts of God, fires, floods or weather problems, (v) damage to, or destruction in whole or in part of Goods, vehicles or manufacturing plants, (vi) accidents, or (vii) riots, government
interference, embargos, regulations, war, insurrection or terrorist acts. The non occurrence of the above contingencies with respect to Seller, its suppliers and manufacturers is a basic assumption of this agreement.

7. DELAY IN INSTRUCTIONS. Buyer agrees to furnish complete shipping instructions in such a manner as to reach the Seller at its main office ten (10) days before the date for any shipment specified herein.
Buyer's failure to so furnish complete shipping instructions shall, without notice, automatically extend the shipping date from day to day until the Buyer furnishes complete shipping instructions, or until the Seller
exercises its right to terminate the Agreement.

8. RISK OF LOSS. Unless Buyer and Seller specifically agree in writing to modify the terms of Paragraph 2.(d), above, all risk or loss shall pass to the Buyer when the Goods are delivered by Seller to the carrier. In
the event that Buyer and Seller agree in writing that the Goods are sold f.o.b. destination, Seller's responsibility for loss or damage terminates upon tender of delivery to Buyer by the carrier and the written
acknowledgement and claims procedure provided for in Paragraph 5, above, shall be a precondition to any claim by Buyer for loss of damage in transit), all risk or loss shall pass to the Buyer when the Goods are
delivered by Seller to the carrier.

9. RETURNS. In no case are any Goods to be returned to Seller without first obtaining the written permission of Seller which permission Seller may refuse to give at Seller's sole discretion. Only standard unused
Goods as currently manufactured or inventoried by Seller which have been invoiced to Buyer within the previous ninety (90) days will be considered by Seller for return. Special items manufactured to order may not
be returned under any circumstances. Goods which Seller accepts for return and credit will in any event be subject to a minimum handling and service charge of 25% plus all transportation charges. All returned
Goods, if Seller accepts the return thereof, must in any case be securely packaged and shipped freight prepaid and the risk of loss shall remain with Buyer until the Seller actually receives the Goods.

10. DEFAULTS. In the event Buyer fails to comply with any of the terms of the Agreement or becomes bankrupt or insolvent or Buyer's financial condition becomes impaired or unsatisfactory to Seller, Seller may do
any or all of the following: (a)Terminate the Agreement upon written notice thereof to Buyer without prejudice to Seller's rights to receive any amount then due under the Agreement; (b) Withhold all further deliveries
under the Agreement; (c) Require that Buyer pay for all future shipments in advance or provide other satisfactory security or guarantees to Seller that all existing and future invoices will be paid on or before their due
dates; (d) Make partial shipments only to Buyer, which Buyer agrees to accept; (e) Recall any Goods then in transit and retake the same and repossess all Goods which may be stored with Seller, in which case Buyer
consents that all Goods so recalled, retaken or repossessed shall become the absolute property of Seller, provided that Buyer is given full credit therefor; (f) Upon written notice to Buyer revise the stated credit terms,
if any, contained in this Agreement; (g) Without limitation, exercise any rights or remedies available to Seller under the Uniform Commercial Code as in force and effect on the date of the Agreement; or (h) Without
limitation, exercise any other rights or remedies available to Seller under any applicable federal, state or local law.

11. ATTORNEY'S FEES. In the event of a default by Buyer of any of the terms or conditions of the Agreement Buyer agrees to pay all costs of collection and enforcement incurred by Seller including without limitation
Seller's reasonable attorney's fees and court costs.

12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This agreement supersedes all previous representations, statements, promises, agreements or understandings, written or otherwise. This Agreement is intended by the parties as a final
expression of their understanding and no casual or prior dealings shall be relevant to explain any of the terms or conditions hereof. The Seller shall not be bound by any agent's or employee's representations,
promises, statements or inducements not set forth in the Agreement. If any inconsistency exists between any typed or handwritten materials on the front hereof and these Standard Terms and Conditions, the former
shall be controlling.

13. NO CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. The Buyer agrees that notwithstanding the form in which any legal or equitable action, proceeding or position may be brought or asserted by Buyer against Seller including,
without limitation, claims based upon actual or alleged delays or breaches of warranty, that Seller's liability, if any, arising out of or in any way related to this Agreement, shall be limited to actual money damages in an
amount not to exceed the total amount actually paid for the Goods by Buyer and Buyer further agrees that Seller shall not be liable for any special consequential, punitive or exemplary damages.

14. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. (a) Field Supervision: Unless specifically provided on the front side hereof, no installation assistance or field supervision by Seller is included in the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. (b) Governing Law / Consent to Jurisdiction: This Agreement shall be deemed to be accepted at the Seller's office in Whittier, California, as a contract made in the State of California and it is the intention
of the parties hereto that all terms, conditions and provisions hereof shall be governed by the internal laws of the State of California. The parties hereto consent to the jurisdiction and venue of any court of general
jurisdiction in the Southeast District of Los Angeles County and the United States District Court for the Central District of California with respect to any proceedings arising out of or in connection with the Agreement or
any purchase hereunder, and further agree that mailing to either party by certified or registered mail shall constitute lawful and valid service of process. (c) No Waiver: No waiver by Seller of any default by Buyer shall
be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default by Buyer. (d) Severability: Should any of the terms or conditions of the Agreement be declared invalid or unenforceable, it shall not affect the validity or enforceability of
any of the remaining terms and conditions.

15. VALIDITY. The price quoted is firm for thirty (30) days, unless otherwise identified on the front page of this quotation.
16. ERRORS. California Environmental Controls, Inc. reserves the right to correct or identify any stenographic or clerical errors in the quotation without any liability to California Environmental Controls, Inc.

17. TECHNICAL ADVICE. Upon Buyer's request, Seller may furnish technical advice with reference to the use of the material sold hereunder, to such extent as Seller has such information conveniently available;
however, it is expressly agreed that there is no obligation to furnish any such advice, and that if any advice or assistance is furnished, which will be without charge, it shall be given and accepted at Buyer's risk, and
Seller shall not be responsible or liable for the advice or assistance given or results thereof.

18. WARRANTIES. THE SELLER MAKES NO WARRANTY, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE DESCRIPTION, QUALITY OR MERCHANTABILITY OF THE GOODS, OF THEIR FITNESS FOR ANY
PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF PRODUCTIVENESS, OR THAT THE BUYER SHALL HOLD THE GOODS FREE OF THE CLAIMS OF ANY THIRD PERSON BY WAY OF PATENT OR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT,
OR ANY OTHER MATTER EXCEPT UNDER THE CONDITIONS AND TO THE EXTENT, IF ANY, THAT THE GOODS ARE WARRANTED BY THE MANUFACTURER, WHOSE WARRANTY WILL BE FURNISHED
BY THE SELLER UPON WRITTEN REQUEST FROM THE BUYER. Neither Seller nor Seller's manufacturer or supplier shall incur any liability or any manufacturer's warranty, if one exists, unless and until Seller has
first been given a reasonable opportunity to inspect the Goods alleged to be defective and the installation and use made thereof by Buyer and to suggest and/or make corrections.



November 18, 2020
Goleta Sanitary District

Attention: Mr. John Chrisman

1701 West Walnut Parkway
Compton, CA 90220
Tel: 310-830-3636

xylem

Let's Solve Water

Sale Quotation # 127009507
Page1of 1 godwin®  eeE—
SALE QUOTATION
UNIT SALE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL
A 1 Dri-Prime CD150S Ciritically $45,560.00 $ 45,560.00

Silenced Sound Attenuated Enclosure

6" 150# Flange Suction and Discharge
Isuzu 4LE2X FT4 Diesel Engine with FST
Global Series 6 Skid-mounted,

Spill Containment, 110% Fuel Containment

*With purchase of above pump(s) we recommend that you also purchase the PM Service Kit(s) listed below:

1 KTCD150ARS25 CD150S 1-2 yr Recommended Spares Kit 1,200.00 1,200.00
1 KTISUZU4LE2XFKO Isuzu 4LE2X T4 Engine Filter Kit 245.00 245.00
B 1 Global Series6 Trailer Kit 3,104.00 3,104.00
» with Bolt on Tongue, Fenders,
» Axlewith Electric Brakes,
» and Wiring Harness
e FitsN32-10374
C 1 PrimeGuard Float Set 388.00 388.00
* w/ 65 Mechanical Floats
D 1 Inbound Freight Delivery Br 027 2,500.00 2,500.00
Our current delivery lead-times associated with this Quotation are best estimates at
this time. Due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 virus pandemic and its global effects
on commerce, supply chain, and logistics, these lead-times are an estimate only and
not a commitment. Xylem is and will continue to use all commercially reasonable
efforts to minimize any delivery delay impacts.
Net Sale Total with Recommended PM Service Kits $52,997.00
NET SALE TOTAL $51,552.00

Please note all salepricingisin U.S. Dollars. The price does not include freight, export boxing, duties, taxes, or
any other items not specifically mentioned.

This pricing information is for internal use only. We ask that these items and terms be kept confidential. All applicable tax and freight charges will be added to invoices. All

quotations are subject to credit approval. All quotations are valid for 30 days. All prices quoted in US dollars.

This order is subject to the Standard Terms and Conditions of Sale - Xylem Americas effective on the date the order is accepted which terms are available at
https://www.xylem.com/en-US/support/xylem-americas-standard-terms-and-conditions/ and incorporated herein by reference and made a part of the agreement between the parties.



https://www.xylem.com/en-US/support/xylem-americas-standard-terms-and-conditions/

GENERAL MANAGER'S
REPORT



GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

The following summary report describes the District’s activities from November 17, 2020
through December 7, 2020. It provides updated information on significant activities under
three major categories: Collection System, Treatment/Reclamation and Disposal Facilities,
and General and Administration Items.

1. COLLECTION SYSTEM REPORT

LINES CLEANING
Staff is conducting routine lines cleaning along the Atascadero Creek trunk line from
Walnut Lane to Ward Drive.

CCTV INSPECTION
Staff continues routine Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) inspections in the Atascadero
Creek easement areas between the south end of Patterson Avenue and Ward Drive.

2020 CCTVI PROJECT

The project kick-off meeting was held Monday, November 30, 2020. The Notice to
Proceed was given to the contractor, National Plant Services. Work is scheduled to begin
the week of December 7, 2020.

REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE

Staff removed portions of the coating from two manholes on the Atascadero Creek trunk
line where it had failed and peeled away from the manhole. This coating will be repaired
as part of the next Capital Improvement Project. Jeff Hayes Truck Repair completed the
90 Day Basic Inspection of Terminals (BIT) on the Vactor and Vaccon trucks. No
deficiencies were noted. The BIT inspection program is part of a State mandated
inspection program for all commercial license vehicles such as the Vactor and Vaccon.

GREASE AND OIL INSPECTIONS
Staff continues with follow-up inspections on Food Service Establishments (FSE) which
had high grease and oil concentrations in previous inspections.

COMPETENCY-BASED TRAINING (CBT)
Staff has finalized review of the Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SSO) Response Guide.

WINTER STORM PREPARATION
Staff has completed the creek and bridge crossings inspections. Inventory of critical items
is updated and refresher training on emergency response procedures continues.

2. TREATMENT, RECLAMATION AND DISPOSAL FACILITIES REPORT
Plant flows have reduced to an average of 3.9 million gallons per day (MGD) with the
holiday and the further closures due to COVID-19. Reclamation demand has decreased
to 0.5 MGD with the cooler temperatures and shorter days. The facility will be shut down
for the months of December and January with the Goleta Water District providing potable
water to the system.

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2020\GMR 2020\2020-12-07 GMR.docx



General Manager’'s Report
December 7, 2020
Page 2

Operations staff met with Hazen and Sawyer to conduct filter surveillance. This project is
to determine whether the tertiary filter system is operating as designed. Due to the
increased influent concentrations and the frequency of toxic conditions occurring at the
plant, ensuring that all systems are operating optimally will help maintain permit
compliance. Also, the investigation of the filtration system will inform the most appropriate
use of planned capitol replacement at the facility.

Centrifuge operations are continuing as planned. Dredging operations have been
completed across about 65% of the lagoon.

Operations staff are investigating a water leak near the reclamation facility.

PUBLIC OUTREACH AND EDUCATION

The District’s Fall 2020 newsletter arrived in customer’s mail during the second week of
November. The focus of the newsletter is on the District’s energy sustainability measures
and plans for the future. One member of the public sent an email commenting on the
quality of the newsletter, which was nice feedback as this was the first newsletter
produced by the new marketing company hired by the District. The next planned
newsletter will be in Spring 2021.

. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS

Financial Report
The District account balances as of December 7, 2020 shown below are approximations
to the nearest dollar and indicate the overall funds available to the District at this time.

Operating Checking Accounts: $ 728,898
Investment Accounts: $ 25,214,575
Total District Funds: $ 25,943,473

The following transactions are reported herein for the period 11/17/20 — 12/07/20.

Regular, Overtime, Cash-outs and Net Payroll: $ 298,268
Claims: $ 322,159
Total Expenditures: $ 630,426
Total Deposits: $ 41,559
Transfers of funds:
LAIF to Community West Bank Operational (CWB): $-15,974,000
CWB Operational to CWB Money Market: $ 15,974,000
CWB Money Market to CWB Operational: $ -0-

The District’s investments comply with the District’s Investment Policy adopted per
Resolution No. 16-606. The District has adequate funds to meet the next six months of
normal operating expenses.

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2020\GMR 2020\2020-12-07 GMR.docx



General Manager’'s Report
December 7, 2020
Page 3

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

LAIF Monthly Statement — November, 2020.
LAIF Quarterly Report — Previously submitted.
PMIA/LAIF Performance — Previously submitted.
PMIA Effective Yield — Previously submitted.

Community West Bank (CWB)
CWB Money Market Account — November, 2020.

Deferred Compensation Accounts
CalPERS 457 Deferred Compensation Plan — October, 2020.
Lincoln 457 Deferred Compensation Plan — November, 2020.

COVID-19 Response Plan Update
A verbal update will be provided at the meeting.

Bicycle Accident Claim

A claim related to a bicycle accident that occurred in June during the 2020 Pipeline
Rehabilitation Project was received on November 30, 2020. The claim is under review by
Alliant Services and will be brought to the Board for consideration at a subsequent
meeting.

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2020\GMR 2020\2020-12-07 GMR.docx



California State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, cpPA

Local Agency Investment Fund
P.O. Box 942809

Sacramento, CA 94209-0001
(916) 653-3001

December 01, 2020

LAIF Home
PMIA Average Monthly Yields

GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT
GENERAL MANAGER

ONE WILLIAM MOFFETT PLACE
GOLETA, CA 93117

Account Number: 70-42-002

November 2020 Statement

Tran Web
Effective Transaction Confirm Confirm
Date Date Number Number
11/30/2020 11/25/2020 RW 1660812 N/A
Account Summary
Total Deposit: 0.00
Total Withdrawal:

-15,974,000.00 Ending Balance:

ROBERT O. MANGUS, JR

Beginning Balance:

Tran Type Definitions

VZ

Authorized Caller Amount

-15,974,000.00

17,974,381.04
2,000,381.04


https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif/index.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/Transaction%20Types%20Regular.htm

l » Community West Bank

445 Pine Avenue
Goleta, CA 93117

RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED

GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT
MONEY MARKET

1 WILLIAM MOFFETT PL
GOLETA CA 93117-3901

Statement Ending 11/30/2020

GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT
Customer Number: XXXXXXXX5554

Page 1

All Community West Bank branch offices are open to serve you Monday through Friday,

9:00 am to 5:00 pm.

Business Loans

If your business plans include needing new funding or commercial real estate financing, contact your Community West
Banker to discuss a loan or line of credit. We have the flexible financing your business needs, offered at competitive

rates.

Treasury Management Disclosure and Agreement Updated

An updated Treasury Management Disclosure Agreement has been published. The Agreement contains the general
terms, conditions and service descriptions governing each Community West Bank Treasury Management product. You
are encouraged to familiarize yourself with the Agreement. Please refer questions regarding the agreement to you
Banking Relationship Manager. The updated agreement is available online at:

https://www.communitywestbank.com/disclosures.php

Summary of Accounts

Account Type

Account Number

Ending Balance

PUBLIC AGENCY-MMDA

XXXXXXXX5554

PUBLIC AGENCY-MMDA - XXXXXXXX5554

$23,214,193.82

Account Summary

Date Description

10/31/2020 Beginning Balance
2 Credit(s) This Period
0 Debit(s) This Period

11/30/2020 Ending Balance

Amount
$7,235,850.25
$15,978,343.57
$0.00
$23,214,193.82

Average Ledger Balance

$7,751,140.57

Account Activity
Post Date Description Debits Credits Balance
10/31/2020 Beginning Balance $7,235,850.25

11/30/2020 LAIF x-fer from checking to MMkt

Member

EQUAL HOUSING FDI‘
LENDER

$15,974,000.00

$23,209,850.25


https://www.communitywestbank.com/disclosures.php

(™
C.D Community West Bank

Statement Ending 11/30/2020

GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT Page 3 of 4
Customer Number: XXXXXXXX5554
PUBLIC AGENCY-MMDA - XXXXXXXX5554 (continued)
Account Activity (continued)
Post Date Description Debits Credits Balance
11/30/2020 INTEREST AT .6598 % $4,343.57 $23,214,193.82

11/30/2020 Ending Balance

Daily Balances
Date Amount

11/30/2020 $23,214,193.82

$23,214,193.82



r lLiIICD]Il
Financial Group=~

Multi-Fund®

MultiFund

Performance Update

Quoted performance data represents past performance. Past performance does not guarantee nor predict future performance. Current
performance may be lower or higher than the performance data quoted. Please keep in mind that double-digit returns are highly unusual and
cannot be sustained.

Variable products are sold by prospectus. Consider the investment objectives, risks, charges, and expenses of the variable product and its
underlying investment options carefully before investing. The prospectus contains this and other information about the variable product and
its underlying investment options. Please review the prospectus available online for additional information. Read it carefully before investing.

Investment return and principal value of an investment will fluctuate so that an investor's unit values, when redeemed, may be worth more or
less than their original cost.

Monthly hypothetical performance adjusted for contract fees *

Average Annual Total Return (%)

as of 11/30/2020
Inception Change
Date from
Previous YTD as of YTD as of Since

Investment Options Day 11/30/2020 11/30/2020 1Mo 3Mo 1Yr 3Yr 5Y¥Yr 10Yr Incep.
Risk Managed
DWS Equity 500 Index VIP Portfolio - RM10/01/1997 -0.46 12.71 12.71 10.84 358 1596 11.76 1255 1273 6.58
Class A"
DWS Small Cap Index VIP Portfolio - RM08/25/1997 -1.91 8.95 8.95 1832 16.49 1195 570 885 9.78 6.49
Class A8 1
Fidelity® VIP Freedom 2055 PortfolioSM - *M  04/11/2019 -1.20 12.22 12.22 1110 6.71 16.16 N/A N/A N/A 1431
Service Class’°
Fidelity® VIP Freedom 2060 PortfolioSM - *M  04/11/2019 -1.20 12.32 12.32 11.07 6.78 16.28 N/A N/A N/A 1438
Service Class’®
Neuberger Berman AMT Mid Cap RM11/03/1997 0.49 33.09 33.09 1243 13.76 34.01 1747 15.04 13.12 942

Growth Portfolio (I Class)®

Maximum Capital Appreciation

AB VPS Global Thematic Growth MCA 01/11/1996 -0.32 31.22 31.22 8.43 926 34.83 1477 1414 8.72 5.86
Portfolio - Class B2

Delaware VIP® Smid Cap Core Series - VCA 07/12/1991 -1.82 3.62 3.62 15.03 14.33 4.80 4.92 7.71 10.75 8.94
Standard Class* 8

DWS Alternative Asset Allocation VIP MCA " 02/02/2009 -0.61 1.46 1.46 701 445 370 141 25 157 401
Portfolio - Class A" 239,10

LVIP Baron Growth Opportunities Fund - MCA 10/01/1998 -0.47 24.86 24.86 1516 11.86 2597 17.06 1545 14.10 1145
Service Class®

LVIP SSGA Emerging Markets 100 MCA " 06/18/2008 -2.40 -6.51 -6.51 13.79 1196 -1.24 -3.72 3.31 -0.61 1.51
Fund - Standard Class’- °

LVIP SSGA Small-Cap Index Fund - MCA  04/18/1986 -1.91 8.74 8.74 18.31 16.46 11.74 5.51 8.65 9.54 6.93
Standard Class® "'

LVIP T. Rowe Price Structured Mid-Cap V©A 02/03/1994 0.54 23.60 23.60 12.82 1158 2563 1746 1563 1398 7.33
Growth Fund - Standard Class®

Printed On 12/01/2020 at 18:01 EST

©2020 Lincoln National Corporation. All rights reserved.

Lincoln Financial Group is the marketing name for Lincoln National Corporation and its affiliates.



Multi-Fund®

Performance Update B
Monthly hypothetical performance adjusted for contract fees *
Average Annual Total Return (%)
as of 11/30/2020
Inception Change
Date from
Previous YTD as of YTD as of Since
Investment Options Day 11/30/2020 11/30/2020 1Mo 3 Mo 1VYr 3Yr 5Yr 10Yr Incep.

Long Term Growth

American Funds Global Growth Fund - LTG  04/30/1997 -0.73 22.58 22.58 10.17 522 2713 14.02 1352 11.88 9.42
Class 2!

American Funds Growth Fund - Class LTG02/08/1984 -0.70 40.99 40.99 1444 6.44 4540 2201 1949 1564 1223
2

American Funds International Fund - LTG 05/01/1990 -1.12 6.11 6.11 13.98 11.00 10.19 4.08 7.75 5.63 6.85
Class 2!

Delaware VIP Small Cap Value* 8 LTG 12/27/1993 -2.55 -10.40 -10.40 17.37 1498 -736 -251 453 718 849
Fidelity® VIP Contrafund® Portfolio - LTG 01/03/1995 0.03 25.37 25.37 797 -0.27 2831 1496 13.78 1275 10.60

Service Class

Fidelity® VIP Growth Portfolio - Service -’ 10/09/1986 -0.42 36.85 36.85 990 374 4180 2148 19.01 16.23 10.10
Class

LVIP BlackRock Global Real Estate LTG 04/30/2007 -1.20 -6.88 -6.88 1282 510 -6.20 2.06 2.96 4.32 0.46
Fund - Standard Class’ 27

LVIP Delaware Mid Cap Value Fund - LTG 12/28/1981 -1.59 -5.51 -5.51 15.17 1453 -3.23 1.08 6.43 8.63 10.00
Standard Class* 8

LVIP Delaware Social Awareness Fund -'© 05/02/1988 -0.56 14.15 14.15 10.89 487 17.21 1254 1158 12.38 9.88
- Standard Class*

LVIP Dimensional U.S. Core Equity 1 LTC 12/28/1981 -0.92 10.04 10.04 1259 7.03 1324 953 1132 1190 9.62
Fund - Standard Class

LVIP Mondrian International Value Fund - 05/01/1991 -2.17 -9.17 -9.17 1735 852 -561 -210 240 348 504
- Standard Class'

LVIP SSGA International Index Fund - LTG  04/30/2008 -1.47 1.89 1.89 1492 7.66 4.87 1.96 4.84 4.45 1.12
Standard Class! 1. 20

LVIP SSGA S&P 500 Index Fund - LTG 05/01/2000 -0.45 12.65 12.65 10.85 359 1592 11.74 1258 1277 5.25
Standard Class'" 2!

LVIP Vanguard Domestic Equity ETF LTG  04/29/2011 -0.62 13.64 13.64 11.56 5.41 16.55 11.51 12.05 N/A 10.63
Fund - Service Class® 2

LVIP Vanguard International Equity ETF LTG  04/29/2011 -2.13 3.66 3.66 12.71 8.12 8.05 2.35 6.00 N/A 2.84
Fund - Service Class'- 9 2

MFS® VIT Utilities Series - Initial LG 01/03/1995 -1.42 1.46 1.46 6.00 8.31 4.80 7.53 9.08 8.28 10.04
Class?

Growth and Income

American Funds Growth-Income Fund - ¢ 02/08/1984 -0.77 8.41 8.41 1092 3.77 1144 997 1149 1192 10.02
Class 2

Printed On 12/01/2020 at 18:01 EST

©2020 Lincoln National Corporation. All rights reserved.

Lincoln Financial Group is the marketing name for Lincoln National Corporation and its affiliates.



Multi-Fund®

Performance Update B
Monthly hypothetical performance adjusted for contract fees *
Average Annual Total Return (%)
as of 11/30/2020
Inception Change
Date from
Previous YTD as of YTD as of Since
Investment Options Day 11/30/2020 11/30/2020 1Mo 3 Mo 1VYr 3Yr 5Yr 10Yr Incep.

BlackRock Global Allocation V.I. Fund - Gl 02/28/1992 -0.71 15.20 15.20 9.41 554 17.91 7.46 7.27 5.86 6.42
Class I"-3

Delaware VIP REIT? 47 Gl 05/04/1998 -1.28 -14.38 -14.38 858 230 -1555 -050 1.19 6.24 6.88

Delaware VIP Value* Gl 07/28/1988 -1.05 -4.43 -4.43 13.69 771 -144 374 667 1052 7.63

Fidelity® VIP Freedom 2020 PortfolioSM - ¢! 04/26/2005 -0.68 10.38 10.38 6.81 421 1267 723 777 7.09 5090

Service Class® 12

Fidelity® VIP Freedom 2025 PortfolioSM - ¢! 04/26/2005 -0.79 10.85 10.85 756 465 1343 766 828 7.86 6.41

Service Class® 12

Fidelity® VIP Freedom 2030 PortfolioSM - ¢/ 04/26/2005 -0.92 11.27 11.27 846 521 1427 813 913 847 6.63

Service Class? 2

Fidelity® VIP Freedom 2035 PortfolioS™ - ¢! 04/08/2009 -1.06 11.83 11.83 10.12 6.18 1542 864 986 9.14 11.71

Service Class? 2

Fidelity® VIP Freedom 2040 PortfolioSM - G
Service Class® 12

04/08/2009 -1.19 12.29 12.29 11.08 6.76 16.18 886 10.03 929 11.91

Fidelity® VIP Freedom 2045 PortfolioSM - ©
Service Class® 2

04/08/2009 -1.19 12.35 12.35 1111 6.76 1620 8.87 10.03 936 12.00

Fidelity® VIP Freedom 2050 PortfolioSM - ¢! 04/08/2009 -1.15 12.36 12.36 1114 6.75 1621 885 10.02 940 1212

Service Class® 12

LVIP BlackRock Advantage Allocation Gl 07/28/1988 -0.51 9.32 9.32 6.00 2.38 10.81 6.12 6.46 6.08 5.78
Fund - Standard Class® 4 '3

LVIP Delaware Wealth Builder Fund - Gl 08/03/1987 -0.51 2.22 2.22 7.37 4.09 3.74 3.54 4.71 5.81 5.93
Standard Class®* 13

LVIP JPMorgan Retirement Income Gl 04/27/1983 -0.42 6.15 6.15 5.31 3.1 7.38 4.45 4.93 4.90 6.60
Fund - Standard Class® 4 13

Delaware VIP Diversified Income* ° " 05/16/2003 0.08 9.26 9.26 2.14 1.43 9.27 5.13 4.13 3.23 4.60
Delaware VIP High Yield* 56 07/28/1988 -0.01 4.59 4.59 3.63 3.04 6.60 4.51 5.80 4.94 5.67
LVIP BlackRock Inflation Protected 04/30/2010 0.07 3.44 3.44 0.67 0.02 3.86 2.60 1.97 1.36 1.62
Bond Fund - Standard Class®

LVIP Delaware Bond Fund - Standard 12/28/1981 0.07 8.42 8.42 1.43 0.83 8.27 4.90 3.75 3.1 6.73
Class*®

LVIP Delaware Diversified Floating Rate 04/30/2010 0.04 -0.06 -0.06 0.45 0.21 0.23 0.76 0.85 0.28 0.32
Fund* 16

LVIP Global Income Fund - Standard 05/04/2009 -0.09 5.00 5.00 0.96 0.77 5.02 3.71 2.78 1.78 2.87

Class“ 5,13,15

Printed On 12/01/2020 at 18:01 EST

©2020 Lincoln National Corporation. All rights reserved.

Lincoln Financial Group is the marketing name for Lincoln National Corporation and its affiliates.



Multi-Fund®

Performance Update e
Monthly hypothetical performance adjusted for contract fees *
Average Annual Total Return (%)
as of 11/30/2020
Inception Change
Date from
Previous YTD as of YTD as of Since

Investment Options Day 11/30/2020 11/30/2020 1Mo 3 Mo 1VYr 3Yr 5Yr 10Yr Incep.
LVIP SSGA Bond Index Fund - 04/30/2008 0.03 6.39 6.39 099 024 6.09 413 299 233 283
Standard Class® '
PIMCO VIT Total Return Portfolio - 12/31/1997 0.00 7.29 7.29 111 057 698 442 356 282 443

Administrative Class®

Preservation of Capital

LVIP Government Money Market Fund - PC01/07/1982 -0.01 -0.64 -0.64 -0.08 -025 -062 016 -0.23 -060 2.78
Standard Class'® '8

‘

isk Managed - Asset Allocation

LVIP Global Conservative Allocation RMAA - 05/03/2005 -0.39 3.79 3.79 540 248 5.01 3.96 457 480 4.80

Managed Risk Fund - Standard Class" %
9,13,17

LVIP Global Growth Allocation Managed RV4* 05/03/2005 -0.78 1.26 1.26 6.91 194 340 279 467 460 424
Risk Fund - Standard Class" 39 13.17

LVIP Global Moderate Allocation RMAA" 05/03/2005 -0.64 1.93 1.93 597 168 378 3.07 454 456 453

Managed Risk Fund - Standard Class' %
9,13,17

LVIP SSGA Global Tactical Allocation RMAA " 05/03/2005 -1.02 244 244 924 578 450 251 442 410 343
Managed Volatility Fund - Standard
ClaSS1’ 3,9,13,14,15

‘

isk Managed - US Large Cap

LVIP BlackRock Dividend Value RMUSL 02/03/1994 -1.56 -3.46 -3.46 1467 984 -08 136 547 590 6.19
Managed Volatility Fund - Standard

Class'® 14

LVIP Blended Large Cap Growth RMUSL 02/03/1994 -0.16 18.47 18.47 940 205 2142 1027 994 914 6.84

Managed Volatility Fund - Standard

Asset Allocation

LVIP T. Rowe Price 2010 Fund AsA05/01/2007 -0.47 8.51 8.51 6.11 3.39 10.11 5.81 5.49 4.84 3.90
(Standard Class)® 12 13

@]
)
®
mﬂ
o
IS
&

LVIP T. Rowe Price 2020 Fund AsA05/01/2007 -0.60 9.00 9.00 747 421 1103 648 629 528 3.91
(Standard Class)® 12 13

LVIP T. Rowe Price 2030 Fund AsA 05/01/2007 -0.81 10.10 10.10 953 538 1263 7.04 672 563 3.98
(Standard Class)® 12 13

LVIP T. Rowe Price 2040 Fund AsA05/01/2007 -0.94 10.77 10.77 11.08 6.25 13.71 7.52 719 595 3.74
(Standard Class)? 12 13

LVIP T. Rowe Price 2050 Fund AsA04/29/2011 -0.99 10.80 10.80 1157 6.50 13.90 7.87 7.93 N/A 4.97
(Standard Class)® 12 13

Printed On 12/01/2020 at 18:01 EST

©2020 Lincoln National Corporation. All rights reserved.

Lincoln Financial Group is the marketing name for Lincoln National Corporation and its affiliates.



Multi-Fund®

Performance Update e
Monthly hypothetical performance adjusted for contract fees *
Average Annual Total Return (%)
as of 11/30/2020
Inception Change
Date from
Previous YTD as of YTD as of Since
Investment Options Day 11/30/2020 11/30/2020 1Mo 3 Mo 1VYr 3Yr 5Yr 10Yr Incep.
LVIP T. Rowe Price 2060 Fund - ASA04/30/2020 -1.05 N/A N/A 12.34 685 N/A N/A N/A N/A 2712

Standard Class® 12 13

Risk Managed - US Mid Cap

LVIP Blended Mid Cap Managed RMUSM 05/01/2001  0.53  19.64 19.64 1142 983 2134 13.88 1248 7.40 467
Volatility Fund - Standard Class® 13 4
15

LVIP JPMorgan Select Mid Cap Value ~ RMYSM 05/01/2001 -1.48 -3.21 -3.21 1353 1122 -0.88 -0.76 3.28 550 5.31
Managed Volatility Fund - Standard
Class& 13,14, 15

Risk Managed - Global/lnternational

LVIP Franklin Templeton Global Equity RV 08/01/1985 -0.86 7.04 7.04 1324 6.85 10.07 274 493 548 6.90
Managed Volatility Fund - Standard

Class“ 13,14

LVIP SSGA International Managed RMGI 12/31/2013 -1.44 -6.41 -6.41 156.07 770 -3.68 -1.10 2.00 N/A  -0.11

Volatility Fund - Standard Class" 9 1%
14

* These returns are measured from the inception date of the fund and predate its availability as an investment option
in the variable annuity (separate account). This hypothetical representation depicts how the investment option would
have performed had the fund been available in the variable annuity during the time period. It includes deductions for
the M&E charge and the contract administrative fee. If selected above, the cost for the i4LIFE® Advantage feature or
a death benefit will be reflected. The cost for other riders with quarterly charges is not reflected. No surrender
charge and no annual contract charge is reflected.

Printed On 12/01/2020 at 18:01 EST

©2020 Lincoln National Corporation. All rights reserved.

Lincoln Financial Group is the marketing name for Lincoln National Corporation and its affiliates.



Multi-Fund®

MultiFund

Performance Update

1 International

Investing internationally involves risks not associated with investing solely in the United States, such as currency fluctuation, political or regulatory risk,
currency exchange rate changes, differences in accounting and the limited availability of information.

2 Sector Funds

Funds that target exposure to one region or industry may carry greater risk and higher volatility than more broadly diversified funds.

3 Asset Allocation Portfolios

Asset allocation does not ensure a profit, nor protect against loss in a declining market.

4 Macquarie Investment Management

Investments in Delaware VIP Series, Delaware Funds, LVIP Delaware Funds or Lincoln Life accounts managed by Macquarie Investment Management
Advisers, a series of Macquarie Investments Management Business Trust, are not and will not be deposits with or liabilities of Macquarie Bank Limited
ABN 46 008 583 542 and its holding companies, including their subsidiaries or related companies, and are subject to investment risk, including possible
delays in repayment and loss of income and capital invested. No Macquarie Group company guarantees or will guarantee the performance of the fund,
the repayment of capital from the fund, or any particular rate of return.

5 Bonds

The return of principal in bond funds is not guaranteed. Bond funds have the same interest rate, inflation, credit, duration, prepayment and market risks
that are associated with the underlying bonds owned by the fund or account.

% High-yield or mortgage-backed funds

High-yield funds may invest in high-yield or lower rated fixed income securities (junk bonds) or mortgage-backed securities with exposure to subprime
mortgages, which may experience higher volatility and increased risk of nonpayment or default.

"REIT

A real estate investment trust (REIT) involves risks such as refinancing, economic conditions in the real estate industry, declines in property values,
dependency on real estate management, changes in property taxes, changes in interest rates and other risks associated with a portfolio that
concentrates its investments in one sector or geographic region.

8 Small & Mid Cap

Funds that invest in small and/or midsize company stocks may be more volatile and involve greater risk, particularly in the short term, than those
investing in larger, more established companies.

9 Fund of funds

Each fund is operated as a fund of funds that invests primarily in one or more other funds, rather than in individual securities. A fund of this nature may
be more expensive than other investment options because it has additional levels of expenses. From time to time, the Fund's advisor may modify the
asset allocation to the underlying funds and may add new funds. A Fund's actual allocation may vary from the target strategic allocation at any point in
time. Additionally, the Fund's advisor may directly manage assets of the underlying funds for a variety of purposes.

10 Alternative Funds

Certain funds (sometimes called "alternative funds") expect to invest in (or may invest in some) positions that emphasize alternative investment
strategies and/or nontraditional asset classes and, as a result, are subject to the risk factors of those asset classes and/or investment strategies. Some
of those risks may include general economic risk, geopolitical risk, commodity-price volatility, counterparty and settlement risk, currency risk, derivatives
risk, emerging markets risk, foreign securities risk, high-yield bond exposure, index investing risk, exchange-traded notes risk, industry concentration
risk, leveraging risk, real estate investment risk, master limited partnership risk, master limited partnership tax risk, energy infrastructure companies risk,
sector risk, short sale risk, direct investment risk, hard assets sector risk, active trading and "overlay" risks, event-driven investing risk, global macro
strategies risk, temporary defensive positions and large cash positions. If you are considering investing in alternative investment funds, you should
ensure that you understand the complex investment strategies sometimes employed and be prepared to tolerate the risks of such asset classes. For a
complete list of risks, as well as a discussion of risk and investment strategies, please refer to the fund's prospectus. The fund may invest in derivatives,
including futures, options, forwards and swaps. Investments in derivatives may cause the fund's losses to be greater than if it invested only in
conventional securities and can cause the fund to be more volatile. Derivatives involve risks different from, or possibly greater than, the risks associated
with other investments. The fund's use of derivatives may cause the fund's investment returns to be impacted by the performance of securities the fund
does not own and may result in the fund's total investment exposure exceeding the value of its portfolio.

" Index

An index is unmanaged, and one cannot invest directly in an index. Indices do not reflect the deduction of any fees.

2 Target-date funds

The target date is the approximate date when investors plan to retire or start withdrawing their money. Some target-date funds make no changes in
asset allocation after the target date is reached; other target-date funds continue to make asset allocation changes following the target date. (See the
prospectus for the funds allocation strategy.) The principal value is not guaranteed at any time, including at the target date. An asset allocation strategy
does not guarantee performance or protect against investment losses. A "fund of funds" may be more expensive than other types of investment options
because it has additional levels of expenses.

13 Manager of managers funds

Subject to approval of the fund's board, Lincoln Investment Advisors Corporation (LIAC) has the right to engage or terminate a subadvisor at any time,
without a shareholder vote, based on an exemptive order from the Securities and Exchange Commission. LIAC is responsible for overseeing all
subadvisors for funds relying on this exemptive order.

14 Managed Volatility Strategy

The fund's managed volatility strategy is not a guarantee, and the fund's shareholders may experience losses. The fund employs hedging strategies
designed to reduce overall portfolio volatility. The use of these hedging strategies may limit the upside participation of the fund in rising equity markets
relative to unhedged funds, and the effectiveness of such strategies may be impacted during periods of rapid or extreme market events.

15 Multimanager

For those funds that employ a multimanager structure, the fund's advisor is responsible for overseeing the subadvisors. While the investment styles
employed by the fund's subadvisors are intended to be complementary, they may not, in fact, be complementary. A multimanager approach may result
in more exposure to certain types of securities risks and in higher portfolio turnover.

Printed On 12/01/2020 at 18:01 EST

©2020 Lincoln National Corporation. All rights reserved.

Lincoln Financial Group is the marketing name for Lincoln National Corporation and its affiliates.



Multi-Fund®

MultiFund

Performance Update

16 Floating rate funds

Floating rate funds should not be considered alternatives to CDs or money market funds and should not be considered as cash alternatives.

17 Risk Management Strategy

The fund's risk management strategy is not a guarantee, and the funds shareholders may experience losses. The fund employs hedging strategies
designed to provide downside protection during sharp downward movements in equity markets. The use of these hedging strategies may limit the upside
participation of the fund in rising equity markets relative to other unhedged funds, and the effectiveness of such strategies may be impacted during
periods of rapid or extreme market events.

18 Money Market Funds

You can lose money by investing in the fund. Although the fund seeks to preserve the value of your investment at $1.00 per share (or, for the LVIP
Government Money Market Fund, at $10.00 per share), it cannot guarantee it will do so. An investment in the fund is not insured or guaranteed by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government agency. The fund's sponsor has no legal obligation to provide financial support to the
fund, and you should not expect that the sponsor will provide financial support to the fund at any time.

9 Emerging Markets

Investing in emerging markets can be riskier than investing in well-established foreign markets. International investing involves special risks not found in
domestic investing, including increased political, social and economic instability, all of which are magnified in emerging markets.

20 MSClI

The fund described herein is indexed to an MSCI® index. It is not sponsored, endorsed, or promoted by MSCI®, and MSCI®; bears no liability with
respect to any such fund or to an index on which a fund is based. The prospectus and statement of additional information contain a more detailed
description of the limited relationship MSCI®; has with Lincoln Investment Advisors Corporation and any related funds.

21 S&P

The Index to which this fund is managed is a product of S&P Dow Jones Indices LLC (SPDJI) and has been licensed for use by one or more of the
portfolio's service providers (licensee). Standard & Poor's®; and S&P® are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC (S&P);
Dow Jones® is a registered trademark of Dow Jones Trademark Holdings LLC (Dow Jones); and these trademarks have been licensed for use by SPDJI
and sublicensed for certain purposes by the licensee. S&P®, S&P GSCI® and the Index are trademarks of S&P and have been licensed for use by SPDJI
and its affiliates and sublicensed for certain purposes by the licensee. The Index is not owned, endorsed, or approved by or associated with any
additional third party. The licensee's products are not sponsored, endorsed, sold or promoted by SPDJI, Dow Jones, S&P, their respective affiliates, or
their third party licensors, and none of these parties or their respective affiliates or third party licensors make any representation regarding the
advisability of investing in such products, nor do they have liability for any errors, omissions, or interruptions of the Index®.

22 Exchange-traded funds

Exchange-traded funds (ETFs) in this lineup are available through collective trusts or mutual funds. Investors cannot invest directly in an ETF.

Asset Categories
Important Disclosures

RM =Risk Managed
Variable products are issued by The Lincoln National Life Insurance Company, Fort Wayne, IN, distributed by
Lincoln Financial Distributors, Inc., and offered by broker/dealers with an effective selling agreement. The Lincoln MCA

=Maximum Capital
National Life Insurance Company is not authorized nor does it solicit business in the state of New York. P

Appreciation
Contractual obligations are backed by the claims-paying ability of The Lincoln National Life Insurance PP
Com LTG  =Long Term Growth
pany.
Limitations and exclusions may apply. Gl =Growth and Income
Lincoln Financial Group is the marketing name for Lincoln National Corporation and its affiliates. Affiliates are =Income

separately responsible for their own financial and contractual obligations.

PC =Preservation of Capital

RMAA  =Risk Managed - Asset
Allocation

RMUSL =Risk Managed - US Large
Cap
AsA = Asset Allocation

RMUSM =Risk Managed - US Mid
Cap
RMGI =Risk Managed -
Global/International

Printed On 12/01/2020 at 18:01 EST

©2020 Lincoln National Corporation. All rights reserved.

Lincoln Financial Group is the marketing name for Lincoln National Corporation and its affiliates.



CalPERS 457 Plan
October 31, 2020

This document includes important information to help you compare the investment options
under your retirement plan. If you want additional information about your investment options,
you can go to https://calpers.voya.com.

A free paper copy of the information available on the website can be obtained by contacting:

Voya Financial
Attn: CalPERS 457 Plan
P.O. Box 55772
Boston, MA 02205-5772
(800) 260-0659

Document Summary

This document has two parts. Part | consists of performance information for the plan
investment options. This part shows you how well the investments have performed in the
past. Part | also shows the total annual operating expenses of each investment option.
Part Il provides additional information concerning Plan administrative fees that
may be charged to your individual account.



CalPERS 457 PLAN
Part I. Performance Information For Periods Ended October 31, 2020

https://calpers.voya.com

Table1 focuses on the performance of investment options that do not have a fixed or stated rate of return. Table 1 shows how these options have performed over
time and allows you to compare them with an appropriate benchmark for the same time periods’. Past performance does not guarantee how the investment
option will perform in the future. Your investment in these options could lose money. Information about an investment option's principal risks is available on the
website listed above.

Table1 also shows the Total Annual Operating Expenses of each investment option. Total Annual Operating Expenses are expenses that reduce the rate of
return of the investment option2. The cumulative effect of fees and expenses can substantially reduce the growth of your retirement savings. Visit the U.S.
Department of Labor's website for an example showing the long-term fees and expenses at http://www.dol.gov/ebsa. Fees and expenses are only one of many
factors to consider when you decide to invest in an option. You may also want to think about whether an investment in a particular option, along with your other
investments, will help you achieve your financial goals.

Table 1 - Variable Net Return Investments

Performance Annualized Performance Total Annual

Name of Fund / 3 1 5 10 Since Inception Operating Expenses3
Name of Benchmark Month Year Years Years Inception Date As a % Per $1000

Equity Funds

State Street Russell All Cap Index Fund - Class | 1.05 9.70 11.06 - 11.15 10/07/13 0.31% $3.10
Russell 3000 Index 1.1 10.15 11.48 - 11.54

State Street Global All Cap Equity ex-US Index Fund - Class | 0.02 -2.28 4.25 - 2.76 10/07/13 0.32% $3.20
MSCI ACWI ex-USA IMI Index (net) -0.10 -2.26 4.36 - 2.95

Fixed Income

State Street US ShortTerm Gov't/Credit Bond Index Fund - Class | -0.03 3.01 1.64 - 1.27 10/07/13 0.32% $3.20
Bloomberg Barclays US 1-3 yr Gov't/Credit Bond Index 0.06 3.39 2.10 - 1.76

State Street US Bond Fund Index - Class | -1.40 5.95 3.74 - 3.57 10/07/13 0.31% $3.10
Bloomberg Barclays US Aggregate Bond Index -1.30 6.19 4.08 - 3.87

Real Assets

State Street Real Asset Fund - Class A -1.56 -6.24 2.14 - -0.04 10/08/13 0.44% $4.40
State Street Custom Benchmark* -1.52 -6.51 2.52 - 0.30

Cash (Cash Equivalents)

State Street STIF -0.03 0.57 1.01 - 0.77 09/02/14 0.33% $3.30
BofA ML 3-month US T-Bill 0.03 0.92 1.20 - 0.98

Target Retirement Date Funds®

CalPERS Target Income Fund -0.71 6.09 4.36 4.31 5.44 12/01/08 0.32% $3.20
SIP Income Policy Benchmark® -0.65 5.95 4.59 4.58 5.98

CalPERS Target Retirement 2015 -0.58 6.23 4.30 4.83 6.53 12/01/08 0.32% $3.20
SIP 2015 Policy Benchmark ° -0.53 6.09 4.52 5.20 7.09

CalPERS Target Retirement 2020 -0.32 6.38 4.52 5.18 7.03 12/01/08 0.32% $3.20
SIP 2020 Policy Benchmark® -0.29 6.16 474 5.55 7.55

CalPERS Target Retirement 2025 -0.12 6.09 5.16 5.78 7.69 12/01/08 0.32% $3.20
SIP 2025 Policy Benchmark® -0.09 5.85 5.38 6.15 8.19

CalPERS Target Retirement 2030 0.10 5.38 5.46 6.21 8.32 12/01/08 0.32% $3.20
SIP 2030 Policy Benchmark® 0.12 5.49 5.75 6.63 8.83

CalPERS Target Retirement 2035 0.34 4.94 5.88 6.61 8.83 12/01/08 0.32% $3.20
SIP 2035 Policy Benchmark® 0.33 4.99 6.15 7.07 9.39

CalPERS Target Retirement 2040 0.43 4.30 6.36 6.96 9.18 12/01/08 0.32% $3.20
SIP 2040 Policy Benchmark® 0.42 4.41 6.64 7.43 9.71

CalPERS Target Retirement 2045 0.43 4.30 6.91 7.25 9.38 12/01/08 0.32% $3.20
SIP 2045 Policy Benchmark® 0.42 4.41 7.18 7.71 9.95

CalPERS Target Retirement 2050 0.43 4.29 6.91 7.24 9.46 12/01/08 0.32% $3.20
SIP 2050 Policy Benchmark® 0.42 4.41 7.18 7.71 9.95

CalPERS Target Retirement 2055 0.43 4.30 6.90 - 5.89 11/01/13 0.32% $3.20
SIP 2055 Policy Benchmark® 0.42 4.41 7.18 - 6.23

CalPERS Target Retirement 2060 0.43 4.22 - - 7.98 11/01/18 0.32% $3.20
SIP 2060 Policy Benchmark® 0.42 4.41 - - 8.23

Broad-Based Benchmarks’
Russell 3000 Index 1.11 10.15 11.48 12.80 - - - -
MSCI ACWI ex-USA IMI Index (net) -0.10 -2.26 4.36 3.58 - - - -
Bloomberg Barclays US Aggregate Bond Index -1.30 6.19 4.08 3.55 - - - -



https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/

Part Il. Explanation of CalPERS 457 Plan Expenses
October 31, 2020

https://calpers.voya.com

Table 2 provides information concerning Plan administrative fees and expenses that may be charged to your individual account
if you take advantage of certain features of the Plan. In addition to the fees and expenses described in Table 2 below,
some of the Plan's administrative expenses are paid from the Total Annual Operating Expenses of the Plan's investment options.

Table 2 - Fees and Expenses

Individual Expenses8

Who do you pay
this fee to?
Loan Origination Fee $50 Per loan application Voya The charge covers the processing of your loan and applies
each time you request a loan from your retirement account.

This fee is deducted from your Plan account.

Service Fee Amount Frequency Description

Maintenance Fee $35 ($8.75 Annual Voya The charge covers the maintenance costs of your loan and
(For loans taken on or after assessed applies on a quarterly basis. This fee is deducted from your
April 1, 2020) quarterly) Plan account.

Self-Managed Account (SMA) $50 Annual fee Voya Schwab Personal Choice Retirement Account is available to
Maintenance Fee deducted monthly you if your Employer has elected it as an option. This fee is
on a pro-rata basis deducted pro rata on a monthly basis from your core fund

investments® in your CalPERS 457 account. For more
information about SMAs, including a complete list of fees
charged by Schwab for different types of investment
transactions, please contact Schwab at (888) 393-PCRA
(7272). Fees may also be incurred as a result of actual
brokerage account trades. Before purchasing or selling any
investment through the SMA, you should contact Schwab at
(888) 393-PCRA (7272) to inquire about any fees, including
any undisclosed fees, associated with the purchase or sale of
such investment.

Self-Managed Account (SMA) 0.29% Annual fee Voya The SMA Plan Administrative fee pays for recordkeeping costs
Plan Administrative Fee ($2.90 per deducted monthly for assets in your SMA account. This fee is deducted pro rata
$1,000) on a pro-rata basis on a monthly basis from your core fund investments in your
CalPERS 457 account. The SMA Plan Administrative Fee is
subject to change based on total Plan assets.

Footnotes for Table 1 and Table 2:

1 Fund returns shown are net of investment management and administrative expenses and fees unless otherwise noted. Benchmark performance
returns do not reflect any management fees, transaction costs or expenses. Benchmarks are unmanaged. You cannot invest directly in a benchmark.

2 Historical annual operating expenses are not available. Reported annual operating expenses are estimated based on SSGA investment management,
Voya recordkeeping, and SSGA capped operating expenses.

3 Total annual operating expenses are comprised of investment management and administrative expenses and fees incurred by the funds.

4 State Street Real Asset Fund has a custom benchmark comprised of 25% Bloomberg Roll Select Commodity Index, 25% S&P® Global LargeMidCap
Commodity and Resources Index, 15% Dow Jones U.S. Select REIT Index, 25% Bloomberg Barclays U.S. TIPS Index, and 10% S&P Global
Infrastructure Index.

5 If the ending market value (EMV) falls to zero in any one month, the inception date resets to the next month with an EMV. Performance is then
calculated from the new inception date.

6 The benchmark for each Target Retirement Date Fund is a composite of asset class benchmarks that are weighted according to each Fund's policy
target weights. The asset class benchmarks are Russell 3000 Index, MSCI ACWI ex-USA IMI Index (net), Bloomberg Barclays US Aggregate Bond
Index, the SSGA customized benchmark for Real Assets (see footnote 4), and BofA ML 3-month US T-Bill.

7 Broad-based benchmarks grouped here provide comparative performance standards for domestic equity, international equity and fixed income.

8 The CalPERS Board of Administration periodically reviews the plan administrative fees and adjusts fees to reflect expenses incurred by the Plan.
Participant fees are charged to reimburse CalPERS for actual administrative fees of the Plan.

9 Core fund investments are listed in Table 1 above the Target Retirement Date funds. Core funds include: State Street Russell All Cap Index Fund
(Class 1), State Street Global All Cap Equity ex-US Index Fund (Class 1), State Street US Short Term Government/Credit Bond Index Fund (Class |,
State Street US Bond Fund Index (Class 1), State Street Real Asset Fund (Class A), and State Street Short Term Investment Fund ("STIF").


https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/

Board Meeting of December 7, 2020

Date:

1. 11/17/2020

2. 11/23/2020

3. 11/24/2020

4. 12/02/2020

Date:

1. 11/25/2020

2. 11/30/2020

DISTRICT
CORRESPONDENCE

Correspondence Sent To:

Dennis Keene

National Plant Services, Inc.

Subject: Notice of Award

Goleta Sanitary District 2020 Pipeline Rehabilitation Project

Greg Eatwell

Eco Friendly Cleaners

Subject: Rescinding of Industrial Wastewater Discharge Permit # 11-232
Letters Also Sent To:

e Diane Honaker, Turnpike One Hour Cleaners, Permit # 11-219

e Jeff Golden, L-3 Maripro, Inc., Permit # All-241

Frank Thompson

Thompson Housing, LLC

Subject: Sewer Service Availability

Proposed Sewer Service Connection for a proposed 12,700 SF complex
of 24 residential studio units

A.P.N. 067-200-005 at 80 N. Patterson Ave., Santa Barbara

Michael Holliday

DMHA Architecture + Interior Design

Subject: Sewer Service Availability

Proposed Sewer Service Connection for replacement of existing
structures at the Santa Barbara Humane Society

A.P.N. 071-220-036 at 5399 Overpass Road, Santa Barbara

Correspondence Received From:

Joseph E. Holland

County of Santa Barbara

County Clerk, Recorder and Assessor Elections Division
Subject: Certificate of Election and Oath(s) of Office

Samantha Francis

Risk Analyst, County of Santa Barbara
County Executive Office, Risk Management
Subject: Claim of Steven Besserman

Hard Copies of the Correspondence are available at the District’s Office for review

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2020\Correspondence 2020\Correspondence Cover 2020\2020-12-07 Correspondence Cover.doc



file:///\\gsdserv10\governance\BOARD\AGENDA%202020\Correspondence%202020\Correspondence%20Cover%202020\2020-12-07%20Correspondence%20Cover.doc

	Agenda 
	Minutes 
	Agenda Item #1
	Agenda Item #2
	Agenda Item #3
	GMR 
	Correspondence Recap

